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Restated (8) Restated (8)

Financial highlights 2003 2002 2001
Turnover from continuing operations (1) £1,9205m £1,871.6m  £1,569.2m
Opera’ting‘proﬁt from continuing operations {2)  £561.7m £553.3m £505.8m
Profit before tax from continuing operations (3} £330.3m £322.7m £289.5m
Adijusted basic earnings per share (4) 48.8p 50.9p 40.3p
Dividend per share 47.6p 47.0p 48.1p
Net debt £3,373.9m £3,060.8m  £2,806.4m
Equity shareholders’ funds £2533.6m £25192m £2,583.0m
Gearing (5) 57% 55% 52%
interest cover {6) 243 2.40 2.30
Adjusted dividend cover (7} 1.03 1.08 0.87

Profit before tax from
continuing operations** up to

330m

Infrastructure
management*** - segmental
operating profit* increased by

6%

to £59 million

Telecommunications -
turnover from business sales
increased by 22% to

£133m

Business process
outsourcing*** — segmental
operating profit* increased

33%

to £19 million

Support services businesses
- order book approaching

$4.5bn

Total dividend for the year

47.0p

an increase of 1.3 per cent

Notes

1} Tumnover from continuing operations
includes the group’s share of joint ventures”
tumover.

2) Operating proftt from continuing operations
is defined as profit from continuing
operations before non-operating tems,
exceptional items, goodwill amortisation,
interest and tax.

3} Profit befors tax from continuing operations
is shown before goodwill amortisation and
exceptional tems.

4) Adjusted basic eamings per share excludes
discontinued operations, exceptional items
and goodwill amortisation.

5) Gearing is measured as net debt divided by
total capital employed, Total capital
employed is equity shareholders’ funds plus
net debt,

8) Interast cover is the number of times the
interest charge is covered by profit from
continuing operations before exceptional
itermns, goodwill amortisation, nen-operating
itemns, interast and tax.

7} Adjusted dividend ¢over is calculated by
dividing adjusted basic eamings per share
by dividend per shara.

8) Restated for the appilication of UITF34 'Pre-
contract costs’ and the change in
accounting policy in respect of
telecommunications network capacity sales.
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* Segmental cperating profit / loss is
defined as the profit / loss from
continuing operations before non-
operating items, goodwill amortisation,
exceptional items, interest and tax for a
segment as shown in note 2 of the
financial staterments.

* Unless otherwise stated, amounts and
percentage movements throughout this
document relating 1o the pwofit and loss
account are stated before goodwill
amortisation and exceptional items.

™* Infrastructure management and
husiness process outsourcng were
previously known as asset management
services and customer maragement
outsourcing respectively. These two
business segments are referred to
collectively as our support services
businesses
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LICENSED MULTI-UTILITY OPERATIONS

£ million 2003 2002 2001
Tumover 1,230.1 11,2089 1,201.6
Segmental

operating profit* 5028 5296 5009
Net operating

assets 6,553.7 6,200.3 5913.7

INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT™**

Restated Restated

£ million 2003 2002 2001
Turnowver 3971 385.9 197.6
Segmental

operating profit* 588 30.0 200
Net operating

assets 82.8 113.0 194.4

BUSINESS PROCESS QUTSOURCING™*

Restated Restated

£ million 2003 2002 2001
Tumover 307.6 2829 2112
Segmental
operating profit* 188 141 7.6
Net operating
assets 121.6 64.5 46.1
TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Restated Restated
£ million 2003 2002 2001
Turnover 161.7 1504 114.3
Segmental
operating loss* (19.5) (23.8) (25.1)
Net operating
assets 1971 2174 17247

UNITED UTILITIES SERVICE DELIVERY

TODAY

United Utilities Service Delfivery owns
and cperates the electricity distribution,
water and wastewater infrastructure in
north west England, it manages more
than 700 treatment works and almost
140,000 kiometres of pipas, sewers
and cablas.

2002/03 HIGHLIGHTS
« Turmnover increased by 1.8 per cent
to £1,230,1 milion.
* 99.8 per cent of electricity supplies
“restored within 18 howrs,
* £713 milion capital investment in the
period,

* Water and wastewster capital

prograrmme ahead of neguiatory
output schedule.

UNITED UTILITIES CUSTOMER SALES

TODAY

United Utiities Customer Sales is
responsible for the sales and service
relationship with 2.9 milion domestic
and business water and wastewater
customers,

2002/03 HIGHLIGHTS

* New payment card delivered to
450,000 customers,

« Dxinking water quality cornpliance
99,8 per cent.

* Anew biling system is being
developed to increase efficiency and
help reduce customer debt.

UNITED UTILITIES CONTRACT SOLUTIONS

TODAY

United Utiities Cordract Sclutions

expioits the group's infrastructure

management skills. it has threa
business areas:

* Operations Management, which
develops and operates contracts int
setactad markets in the UK and
overseas,

= Green Energy, which develops and
operates renewable energy
generation projects; and

* Networks, which provides a “one-
stop' sepvice in the multi-Ltility
matering and connections market.

VERTEX

TODAY

Vertex is a feading provider of business
process outsourcing (BPQ) services
and specialises in the front and back-
ofiice management of customer
relationshins. I provides end-to-end
customer senvica activities to clients in
the utility, commercial and pubic
sectors.

YOUR COMMUNICATIONS

TODAY

Your Communications provides voice,
data, mobila and infemet senvces to
business and specialist sectors such
as gavermment, education, health and
emergency senvices.

2002/03 HIGHLIGHTS

» Narmed as one of the
bidders to help deliver Scottish
Water's £1.8bn capital investment
programime.

* Segmental operating profit’
ncreased by 96 per cent o £58.8
milion,

+ In Novernber 2002, the business
began to provide metering services
to five milion customers under a
£225 million contract with Beitish Gas
Tracing.

2002/03 HIGHLIGHTS

« Tumover i by 8.7 per cert
to £307.6 milion,

» 15 year, £422 milion contract with
Westminster City Councll mobilised

» Segmena operaling margin®
increased from 5.0 per cent to 6.1
per cent,

» The acquisition of 7C adds new
dlients to complement its UK
portfolio and gives Vertex a presence
n Indha.

2002/03 HIGHLIGHTS

» Tumaver from business sales
increased by 22.2 per cent ta
£133.0 milion.

» Turnover increased by 7.5 per cent
io £161.7 million.

* Net cash investment in the business
fall from £45 milion to £25 million.

TOMORROW

United Utilities Service Delivery will
continte to create value theough
strong leadership. Through the
irnplementation of modem
maintenance techniques, we intend to
reduce the whols life costs of our
assets and defiver improved
performarnce. Over the noxt two years,
Service Delivery wit complete an
extensive capital investment
programine.

TOMORROW

United Utilities Customer Sales wil
continue to reduce service costs and
improve customer debt managerment,
whist enhancing the customer
experience and i ing revenues. it
will continue fo huild its presence in
the UK industrial market.

TOMORROW
Since the year end, United Utilties
Contract Solutions has strengthened
its position as the UK's leading
provider of mutti-utility connections
with the acauisition of Connections
Phus. The business wil concentrate on
building and strengthening its national
and combining its diverse
business skills to provide clients with a
range of complernentary sarvices.

TOMORROW

Wertex will continue its expansion ta
build a business which balances
repeatable low-risk services and more
bespoke business changa services
across a focused rangs of sectors and
geographies. [t will continue to
capitalise on its customer
management expertise whilst building
a broader BPO business.

TOMORROW

Your Communications will continua to
build on its integrated communications
capability to businesses. In addition to
the expansion of its range of advanced
indirect services, it will focus on cross-
selling to small and medim sized
businesses o increase revenue
streams and strengthen customer
relationships.




C‘hairman's statement

“We have a strong
management team —
| thank them all
for producing
yet another solid
financial performance.”

steadfast
performance

I'm pleased to report another successful year.
The group has grown its non-requlated income
and continued to achieve efficiencies in its

licensed businesses.

Performance

Tumover {including share of joint ventures)
rose 2.6 per cent to £1,820.5 milion, reflecting
growth in support senvices businesses and
telecommunications, offset by a real regulatory

frice reduction in ficensed multi-utility operations.

We have alsc ended our involvement in
infrastructure management in the Americas.

Operating profit™ (including share of joint
vertures) rose 1.5 per cent to £661.7 milion.
This increase resutted from improved operating
profits in infrastructure management and
business process outsourcing, offset by an
anticipated reduction in profit in licensed
multi-utility operations.

Dividend

The board's confidence in the group's
performance is reflected in its proposed
increase in the final dividend. The final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2003
of 32.1 pence per share will be paid on

29 August 2003 to shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 27 June
2003. Together with the interim dividend of
15.5 pence per sharg, the dividend for the
year is 47.6 pence per share, representing
an increase of 1.3 per cent.

People

i was with regret that we announced on

25 March 2003 that Les Dawson had decided
10 stand down immediately from the board for
personal reasons. A process is underway to
appoint a pemmanent replacement. However,
we have a strong managernent team. | thank
them all for producing yet ancther solid financial
performance in what was the most challenging
vear in the price prefile of the cument regulatory

period, with no real price increases in our water
business and a real price cut of three per cent
in our electricity business.

As John Raberts explains in his review, cutture
change continues to be an important elerment in
driving the business forward. The cutture change
programme is long-term and is at the heart of
generating a high performance culture across
the group.

Looking forward

Our support services businesses made good
progress in the year and we expect further
growth in non-regulated income in the years
ahead. Wa are in consultation with Ofwat and
Ofgem on the processes that will determine
water and electricity price limits from 2005,

In view of the probable size of future capital
programmes, the regulators must ensure that
retums 1o investors are sufficient to attract the
necessary investment into the industry, at the
right price. Government and regulators have a
major role to play, working together, to ensure
that palicy and incentives are pointing in the
same direction. This, perhaps, is the biggest
challenge for the forthcoming price reviews.

ot s
-

Sir Richard Evans
Chairman
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. Chief executive's review
Group overview

John Roberts
Chief executive

"We stick to our core
skills and don't take
on risks we don’t
understand.”

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003

solid

growth

In a year which has seen high profile corporate
collapses and very volatile markets, we are pleased
to report another year of solid, stable growth.

Business performance

Qur support services businesses made
significant progress during the year which
enabled us to grow profit overall. Tris was
achieved despite the anticipated reduction

in profit in owr licensed multi-utiity operations,
reflecting regulatory price profiles and the
commissioning of new assets. Particularly
pleasing was our continued success in
securing contracts in our key target markets ~
the utility and public sectors, where we were
able to apply the experience we've gained

in qur regulated businesses.

In infrastructure management, we saw

a substantial increase in profit as start-up
costs, which accompanied last year's growth in
tumover, came to an end and cur £225 milion
contract with British Gas Trading got underway.
United Utilities was also named as one of the
preferred bidders to partner with Scottish
Water in the delivery of its four-year £1.8 billion
capital investment programme. This would
represent the third ground-breaking utifity
outsowurcing contract won by United Utilities,
following our successes with Welsh Water

and British Gas Trading. The infrastructure
management order book now stands at nearly
£2.5 billion, of which 75 per cent is in the
United Kingdom.

Vertex, our business process outsourcing
arm, continued to grow operating profit and
margins despite start-up costs associated
with the Westminster Gity Council and the
Department for Work and Pensions contracts,
both of which began successfully during the
second half of the year, Segmental operating
margins® increased by 70 per cent over the
last two years, standing at over six per cent
far the full year.

The sales mix in our telecommunications
business, Your Coermmunications, continued to
change away from premium rate services to
higher-margin business sales, which increased
by 22 per cent during the year. With the
network buillding phase completed, net cash
investment in the business fell ta £25 miflion,
compared to £45 million in the previous year,
As capital investment requirements continue fo
fall we are targeting this business to be a net
cash contributor to the group, on a post-tax
basis, in 2003/04.

Qur licensed multi-ufility operations

business is on track to rmeet cur £480 miliion
operating cost saving target over the 2000-05
pediod. Whilst the capital programme in our
water business is currently ahead of schedule,
the next two years will be challenging as the
programme peaks, both in terms of investment
and delivery of outputs. The programme
requires us to deliver around 1,200 outputs

by 2005.

Regulation

The Energy White Paper received a mixed
response, Atthough it was pleasing 10 see
that the govemment remains committed to
its target of 20 per cent of electricity sales
to come from renewable sources by 2020,
we would have preferred to see fhis set

as a fimn, rather than aspirational, target.

rvestors and developers need clarity

and stability. The intended review of the
Renewables Obligation in 2005/06 will
provide an important opportunity to rethink
strategy on this issue. Whilst concerns over
the impact of wind farm developments on

the landscape are understandable, the impact
of climate change may be more devastating.




Regulatory process timeline
*

Water

| T I 1 I ]

AUGUST 2003 JANUARY 2004 APRIL 2004 JUNE 2004 NOVEMBER 2004 APRIL 2005
Companies submit Final ministerial Final business Draft determinations Final determinations New price fimits
draft business plans input plans submitted take effect
Electricity

[ T T ] T I

JUNE 2003 DECEMBER 2003 MARCH 2004 JUNE 2004 OCTOBER 2004 APRIL 2005
Initiaf consultation onthe  Final business plans Policy document on Initial proposals Final proposals New price limits
price control review submitted price control review take effect

Tha Water Bill introduces a number of
improvements to the regulatory regime. We
welcome its recognition of long-term water
resource planning principles from the Water
Framewark Directive. Envircnmental and quality
issues will continue to drive investment, but
customer issues, such as odour control, sewer
flooding and the continuing need to maintain
axisting assets, also need to be addressed.

We alsa welcome Ofwat’s decision last year to
change the minimum notice pericd to terminate
the licence to 25 years, increasing certainty for
the benefit of all stakeholders.

Qur people

Our UCan cuiture change programme

started two years ago. At the outset, we had

a workforce deeply rooted in the heritage of
their companies, some of whom were resistant
to change. Initially we focused on unlocking
potential, improving setf-awareness and tooking
at behaviour. Many initiatives have followed. We
are emphasising the ‘United” in United Utilities ~
acting as one company with several different
business strands. His not a guick win, but for
me, getting the culture right is absolutely
essential for the success of today's company.

Outiook

With allowed real price increases of nearly nine
par cent over the coursa of the next two years,
we expect operating profits 1o improve in our
water business. Next year should also see
greater clarity for our regulated businesses

as the environmental and economic regulators
formutate their views on the next price reviews.
The water business would ike more certainty
from the government on the scale and pace

of future quality programmes, and their funding.

By 20085, the water industry will have

had 15 years of incentive based regulation,
which means the scope for future efficiency
improvernents is less. 1t follows that new
funding for further quality improvements will
have to come principally from customers and
the capital markets. The industry will have

o work closely with the water regulator to
balance the desire for substantial quality
improvements against affordable price
increases for customers, and the retums
required to attract new funding for the industry.

Far the alectricity business, the govemiment's
commitment to green energy will increase the
number of generators directly connected to
distribution networks. This will lead to additiona
capital investrnent as the industry responds

to the regulator's challenge to ‘Rewirs Britain'.
We are working with the regulator to find ways
to encourage the capital markets to provide
funding to meet this challenge.

Tha outlook for our support services
businesses is promising. These have a
combinad order book of neary €4.5 bilion,
mainty from the utility and public sectors in

the United Kingdom. We will continue to grow
these businesses organically, by applying our
core skills of business process and infrastructure
rnanagement to other selected markets.

In the current economic climate, investors
have a right to be cautious. They expect
good performance and punish companies
which fail to deliver, We are now at a stage
where consistency in our strategy is starting
1o bear fruit, } is a strategy we don't intend
to change ~ we stick to our core skilis and
don’t take on risks we don't understand.

United Utilities is growing at national and
international levels. We will continue to build
our reputation as a competent, responsible
and enterprising company.

\jobM @m

John Roberts
Chief executive

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003
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* Operating review
Licensed multi-utility operations

United Utilities Service Delivery

aligning
resources

BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES

QUTPERFORMING
REGULATORY
CONTRACTS

ALIGNING
RESOURCES
TO ACHIEVE
SYNERGY
SAVINGS

IMPROVING
CUSTOMER
SERVICE
PERFORMANCE

* Segmertal operating profitloss is
defined as the profitloss from continuing
Cpenations hefors non-comisting dems,

il armartisation, exceptional items,
interest and tax for a segment as shown
in nate 2 of the financial statements.

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003

Over the past year, the multi-utility team
has made massive strides to standardise both

assets and processes.

Business overview

United Utifities Service Defivery owns and
operates our licensed electricity distribution,
water and wastewater networks in north
west England.,

Service Delivery is camying out the most
extensive capital investment programme
in the UK utility sector. Between 2000
and 2005, the business is investing

moare than £3.5 bilion ~ a guarter of all
the money being spent in England and
Wales on improving the water and electricity
infrastructure. It is the equivalent of nearly
£2 milion a day, every day, for five years. At
its peak, it is estimated that the prograrmme
will require more investment in the north
wast's infrastructure than is being
proposed in the rall, gas, road and air
travet industries combined.

Business objeciives

John is very clear about Service Defivery’s goal.

“The business must create value through
efficient management of our assets.” The three
key objectives are:

* 10 focus on the defivery and out-performance
of the regulatory contracts;

* to deliver synergy savings by aligning our
resources within the common geography
of our thres wutility networks; and

* t deliver improvements to customer
service performance.

The past twelve months were a challenging
period for Service Delivery, but John believes
the business strategy is sound.

“Managing our capital investment programme —
and ensuring value for money for our customers
- will help us exceed our regulatory targets.”

“THE BUSINESS HAS A CLEAR
GOAL: TO CREATE VALUE
THROUGH EFFICIENT
MANAGEMENT OF OUR ASSETS.”

The business has made significant strides

to improve its procurement processes and
expects to achieve substantial savings over
the next three years. “We now have software
that will enable us to implement secure onfine
tendering and auction processes for a large
number of goods and services.”

The Master Asset Management System {(MAMS),
consolidating some 20 asset management

IT systems into a single system, enables the
business to manage its information in a more
effective way. John does not underestimate
the importance of the project. “Our strategies
are all about extracting the benefits from our
muiti-utility status, integrating cur systems

and procedures so they cperate at maximum
efficiency. Successful delivery of the MAMS
project gives us the hasis for future efficiencies.”

In electricity distribution, our asset replacement
strategy focuses on stabilising fault rates, We
are successfully reducing fault rates across
most slements of our network,

Business impacts

When assessing future business impacts,
John believes the next price reviews are
a key factor. “This is the biggest issue on
the horizon for Service Delivery right now.,
We operate two regicnat moncpolies and



ALIGNING OUR PECPLE

AND INFRASTRUCTURE TO YIELD
EFFICIENCIES AND MEET THE
CHALLENGES OF REGULATION



United Utilities Service Delivery sets the standard for the
multi-utility sector. In bringing together our electricity

and water operations we have raised our game and
created an efficient business, delivering value to both

customers and shareholders.

4.20

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION ~ OUT OF 5

LAST YEAR: 4.18

Cigem measure of customer satisfaction with
the overall quality of our telephone response

99.83%

ELECTRICITY SUPPUES RESTORED
WITHIN 18 HOURS

TARGET: 99.5%

Ofgem key performance Indicator - EOS1

or.7

CUSTOMER MINUTES LOST PER YEAR

TARGET: 68.2 by 2004/05

Cigem measure of glectricity supplies, calculated as
the average number of minutes lost per customer

COMMONWEALTH
GAMES

UNITED UTILITIES WAS PROUD TO BE
OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PARTNER TO
THE Xvii COMMONWEALTH GAMES
HELD IN MANCHESTER IN JULY 2002.

WE WERE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
INSTALLATION AND MANAGEMENT

OF THE UTIUTY INFRASTRUCTURE FOR
THE CITY OF MANCHESTER STADIUM
AND OTHER MAJOR SPORTS VENUES.
COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURES ENSURED THERE WAS NO
INTERRUPTION IN SUPPLY DURING THE
GAMES. OUR EMPLOYEES ALSO WON
UTILITY WEEK MAGAZINE’S PRESTIGIOUS
‘TEAM OF THE YEAR' AWARD FOR THEIR
WORK AT THE GAMES,




Uperating review
Licensed multi-utility operations

United Utilities Service Delivery (continued)

the price reviews are the reguiators’ way

of ensuring we provide value for money.

It is essential that we achieve a sensible
outceme. It's not just about maximising
profits for cur shareholders, we must defiver
for 2l our stakeholders. ff we can outperfom
the regulators’ requirements in both delivery
and value terms, we are giving ourselves
the best chance of maintaining and
improving shareholder value in the future.”

“THE NEXT PRICE REVIEWS
ARE THE BIGGEST ISSUE ON
THE HORIZON FOR SERVICE
DELIVERY RIGHT NOW.”

When John joined the group, the electricty
and water teams were divided physically

and culturally. Through strong leadership

and implementation of the United Lttifties
culiure change pregramme {UCan), 1he 1eams
are now working closer together and clearty
understand the challenges of the future. “UCan
has been extremely well received and we are
seeing the beneiits of this programme. Pecple
are {aking responsipiiity for their actions and
Ywing our values,” Although he admits there is
still some way to go, he is determined o
support this programme. *In order to succeed
as a business, our emnployees must be with
us - they are vital {0 our success.”

Business performance

John is proud of the hard work the Service
Delivery team has put inte delivering regulatory
outputs this year, “We are ahead of target,
despite the challenges of the largest capital
investment programme in the UK water sector.
And we are already starting to see results.”
With £1.65 bilion being spent in the current
regulatory period on improving wastewater
treatment, more coastal waters than ever
before around north west England are satisfying
the ELs directive on bathing waters, The
Environment Agency has announced that

river water quality in the region is the best

it has been for over 200 years,

By 31 March 2003, United Utilties had
delivered around a third of the 1,200 regulatory
capital cutputs required through its AMP3
programme over the 2000-05 period, and

was ahead of the schedule set by the water
regulator. Al remaining projects have been
started, with the vast majority currently at

the construction or detailed design stage.

Capital investment is anticipated to peak

this year at aimost £3 milion per day, with
United Utilities expecting 1o deliver around
300 combined sewer overflow and quality

enhancement outpuls at its water and
wastowater treatment works. Although capital
expenditure is expected to fall in 2004/05, the
number of outputs delivered is expected to
peak as we finish schemes that were started
earfier in the regulatory period and complete
work on a large number of small projects.

“In 2002, one of our biggest challenges and
successes was the Commonwealth Games.”
United Utilities supplied the utiity infrastructure
to the main stadium and spent two years
ptanning for the event, evaluating and
managing risks to ensure continuity of supplies.
However, he bealieves that the real success was
the effact the Garnes had on our employees.,
“Qur people were proud to be involved in
such a prestigious event. Their dedication and
teamwork helped us to play a significant role
in the Games and was a fine example of how
we ¢an work together in a united way. The
event will eave an imprint on our emiployees
for years to come.”

“IN ORDER TO SUCCEED AS
A BUSINESS OUR EMPLQYEES
MUST BE WITH US - THEY ARE
VITAL TO OUR SUCCESS.”

Whilst 2002/03 was the most challenging year
n the price profire of the cument regulatory
peried, the next two years wili be the most
chalfenging in terms of delivery of outputs.
United Utilities has already put in place robust
processes to address this challenge, such as
frammework agreements with contractors and
standardisation of the design and construction
of its assets.

Financial
summary

Turnover increased by 1.8 per
cent 1o £1,230.1 million, despite
water and wastewater prices
remaining constant in real terms
and a 3.0 per cent real reduction
in electricity distribution prices.
This compared with growth of
0.6 per cent in 2001/02 when the
regulatory price reduction of 1.0
per cent in water charges was
applied.

Segmental operating profit*,
reduced by 5.1 per cent in
2002/03 reflecting the regulatory
price profiles and Increased
costs associated with the
acceleration in the capital
investment programme.
Segmental operating profit*
increased by 5.7 per cent in
2001/02, as cost savings more
than offset price reductions,

Qur target for cost savings over
the five-year period to 2005 was
increased by £30 million to £480
millien in 2001/02. Our
performance in 2002/03 has
remained on frack

to achieve this goal.

Capital investment for the year
was E713 million. £591 million

United Utilities Annual Repert & Accounts 2003
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United Utilities Service Delivery and Customer Sales
offer water customers outstanding service, quality and
reliability. The skills we have gained in our regulated
businesses form the basis of the services we offer

in competitive markets.
SEWER FLOODING

UNITED WUTILITIES IS SPENDING MORE
THAN £50 MILLION ON TACKLING SEWER
FLOODING BETWEEN 2000 AND 2005,

IN MAY 2003, WE ANNOUNCED AN
INVESTMENT PACKAGE TO TARGET
MORE THAN 1,000 HOMES AND
BUSINESSES WHICH HAVE SUFFERED
REPEATED SEWER FLOODING INCIDENTS.

WE RECOGNISE HOW IMPORTANT IT
I$ TO TACKLE THESE PROBLEMS ON
BEHALF OF OUR CUSTOMERS AND
GAINING PERMISSION FROM THE
REGULATOR TO SPEND THE EXTRA
MONEY WAS ONLY ONE PART OF OUR
RESPONSE YO CUSTOMERS' MEEDS,

WE ALSO UNDERTOOK A REVIEW OF
OUR PROCEDURES TO ENSURE WE
REMAIN AS RESPONSIVE AS POSSIBLE.
THE REVIEW LOOKED AT EVERYTHING
FROM HOW WE COULD OPTIMISE
PERFORMANCE OF THE WASTEWATER
NETWORK BY USING HYDRAULIC
MODELLING SOFTWARE, TO HOW

WE DEAL WITH OUR CUSTOMERS
WHEN THE WORST HAS HAPPENED.

94.7%

TELEPHONE CALLS ANSWERED
WITHIN 30 SECONDS

TARGET: 86%

Ofwat key performance indicator — DG9

0.037%

CUSTOMERS AFFECTED
BY LOW PRESSURE

TARGET: 0.06%

Otwat key performance indicator — DG2

014%

PROPERTIES AFFECTED
BY SUPPLY INTERRUPTIONS

TARGET: 0.23%

Ofwat key performance indicator - DG3




Operating review
Licensed multi-utility operations

United Utilities Customer Sales

BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES

MAXIMISE
PROFITABILITY
AND CASH FLOW

MAINTAIN AND
IMPROVE SERVICE
LEVELS TOQ EXCEED
CUSTOMER
EXPECTATIONS

MANAGE OUR
REPUTATION AND
INFLUENCE THE
REGULATORY
AGENDA

Bob Armstrong’s vision for the business is

“to be the first service provider to emerge from

the water sector with an outstanding record for
creating value from our customer relationships.”

Business overview

United Utilities Custormer Sales is responsible
for a regulated customer base of 2.9 million
domestic households and business premises
in north west England. It is also a major
provider of water and wastewater services in
the competitive industrial market throughout
the UK.

Business objectives

Business largets for the year reflect the
vision for the business. “Our chiectives are
to maxirnise profitability and cash fiow; to
maintain and improve our levels of custorner
service; and to manage our reputation and
influence the regulatory agenda.”

Often working in partnership with other parts
of the group, Custormer Sales aims to increase
revenues. This includes cross-selling non-
regulated products and services 1o domestic
customers and building upon the group’s
presence in the industrial market. In addition
to increasing sales, the aim is to reduce costs.
“We are intfroducing & new customer biling
system to bring down costs further. A new
payment card system was successfully
delivered to 450,000 customers this year 100,
suppoerting our drive to improve income and
debt management.”

Business impacts

With rcbust planning, Bob believes
Customer Sales can achieve a positive
cutcome in the price raview, “We have teams
developing strategies to influence regulatory
propesals and standards.” A programme of
stakeholder engagement, including lobbying
of government and regulators, will benefit the
business. “We are working hard to ensure the
outcome is balanced for our customers and
the ervironment.” As chair of Waier UK,

a representative organisation which brings
together all of the UK's water and wastewater
utilities, Bob is actively engaged in the debate
on walter regulation at an industry level.

“We also have to keep a keen eye on
competition, Customer service improvements,
product development and the group's

reputation will put us in a strong position to
thrive where competitive markets develop.”

“l AM CONFIDENT THAT THE
BUSINESS IS IN A STRONG
POSITION TO MAINTAIN AND
IMPROVE ITS PERFORMANCE.”

Business performance

*Putting customers at the heart of our business
is the key to continued success, Our ‘Future
Customer Experience’ piict has confirmed the
custormer service expectations of our domestic
customers and sets the business new goals.
‘We are working to deliver a high level of
custormer senvice that is both valued by our
customers and is cost effective for our business.”

The business has also developed new
products — launching a home telephone
service for domestic water customers using
Your Communications’ network.

Looking to the future, Bob is confident that the
business is in a strong position to maintain and
improve its performance. "We're focusing on
increasing profitability and cash flow through

a variety of inftiatives. We are improving the
customer expetience and will be working hard
with the regulator on the price review and other
regulatory develcprnents for the benefit of the
business and its stakeholders.”

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003
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* Operating review
Infrastructure management

United Utilities Contract Solutions

BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES

MAXIMISE
RETURNS
FROM QOUR
MANAGEMENT
EXPERTISE AND
MINIMISE RISKS
ON CAPITAL

EXPLOIT

SKILLS FROM

OUR LICENSED
BUSINESSES AND
APPLY THEM TO
GROWTH MARKETS

SECURE LONG-
TERM INCOME
STREAMS FOR
THE BUSINESS

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003

exploitin
strre)ngthgsJ

Gordon Waters manages the fastest growing
and most diverse business within the group.
“Essentially, we take United Utilities’ core
management and operational skills and
experience out into competitive markets.”

Business overview

United Utitities Contract Selutions ig a rapidty
growing infrastructure management business
which operates and manages utility activities
serving over ten million people throughout
the UK and overseas. The business operates
in three market areas.

* Operations Management develops and
operates contracts in selected markets.
It includes: our Intemational business; the
provision of operations and maintenance
services to Weish Water; and the Industrial
busingss, which offers a waste management
service 10 industry.

+ Green Energy develops and operates
renewable energy generation projects.
Traditionally, these have been in the areas
of landfill gas and small hydro schemes,
but the business sees onshore and
offshore wind projects as the way forward.

» Networks is a mutti-utiity metering and
connections business. Our connections
arm offers mutti-utiity connection services
1o developers in the domestic housing and
the industrial and commercial markets. The
metering activity offers a range of services
for the provision, ownership and operation
of meters for energy supply companies.
The business also provides an energy
efficiency service to small and mediumn
sized companies and local authorities.

Business objectives

The role of Centract Solutions is to grow
non-regutated earnings from the group's

infrastructure management expertise.

By applying the core skills of the Fcensed
multi-utility business to other markets,

Contract Solutions seeks to grow without
materially increasing the risk portfolio within
the group.,

Gordon is positive about the recent

Energy White Paper. “The government is
committed to the reduction of greenhouse
gases. The paper is very supportive of
renewables, s0 we should expect a massive
expansion in the renewable generation
market.” Contract Solutions is well placed
to play a leading role in this expansion.
The business aims to develop its renewable
energy capacity from 62 MW to 250 MW
in the medium-term.

Europsan legiglation offers another
opportunity, particularly the changes

in environmental legislation, which mean
that many liquid wastes currently put 1o
landfill will have to be treated. “This creates
a huge opportunity for our Industrial business,
which is expanding out of its traditional areas
of Wales and north west England and aims
to become a truly nationa! player.”

The changing nature of the utility

sector in the UK also presents real growth
opportunities. “Different financial structures
aligned with commercial pressures mean
that companies are seeking new ways cf
providing services. | believe this wil open
up new outsourcing cpportunities.”

Eastern and central Europe also offer
significant opportunity for growth in operations
management. “The accession of new countries
to the European Union gives cur business

real expansgion possibiities.”



LOCKING IN CUR UNIQUE SKILLS
AND EXPERIENCE WILL HELP OUR
CLIENTS OUTPERFORM THEIR
INDIVIDUAL CAPABILITIES



United Utilities Contract Solutions applies the group’s
core skill in infrastructure management and serves over
ten million people in the UK and overseas. The contract
with Welsh Water is an example of how this strategy will

deliver long-term value.
WELSH WATER

SINCE UNITED UTILITIES TOOK OVER
THE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
OF WELSH WATER'S ASSETS IN 2001
UNDER A FOUR-YEAR CONTRACT,
WELSH WATER HAS MOVED FROM
SEVENTH TO THIRD IN OFWAT'S
OVERALL PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT
AND ACHIEVED SOME OF ITS BEST

EVER RESULTS IN THE DRINKING WATER
INSPECTORATE PERFORMANCE TABLES.

THE RESULTS HAVE, IN PART,

BEEN ACHIEVED THROUGH THE
PARTNERSHIP THAT THE BUSINESS
HAS WITH ITS TRADE UNIONS. THE
‘WORKING TOGETHER' INITIATIVE
BETWEEN TRADE UNIONS AND
MANAGEMENT HAS ALLOWED THE
BUSINESS TO FOCUS ON ITS GOALS
WITH ALL SIDES WORKING TOWARDS
A COMBMON QBJECTIVE.

96%

INCREASE IN SEGMENTAL
OPERATING PROFIT*

LAST YEAR: 50% INCREASE
Reported segmental operating profit*

791

DAYS LOST THROUGH ACCIDENTS

LAST YEAR: 1,283

Number of days tost through accidents in
the workplace on the Welsh Water contract

£2.5bn

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE
MANAGEMENT ORDER BOOK

TOTAL: Approaching £4.5bn

across our support services businesses




Operating review
Infrastructure management

United Utilities Contract Solutions (continued)

Business impacts

Gordon believes that Contract Scluticns offers
the group excellent prospects for sustained
and centrolled growth but recognises that

a number of external issues are key 1o

future perforrmance.

“A key area is the conflict between the
governmenit’s renewables targets and the
negative reaction encountered in many parts
of the country o wind farm developments,
both onshore and offshore, Green Energy has
a significant number of projects awaiting or
about to be submitted for planning approval.
if the government is as sericus about reducing
carbon dioxide as it appears to be, then &
needs to address some of the planning issues
which are arising.” Despite these planning
obstacles, it is anticipated that some of these
projects will move inte construction during the
coming year.

Business performance

Looking back on what has been a hectic,

but successful year, Gordon reflects on how
much the business has changed. “Our Welsh
operations have performed extremely well and
it is particularly satisfying to have built on this
success by becoming one of the preferred
bidders to partner Scottish Water.”

The partnership will be responsible for managing
Scottish Water's capital investment requirements
1o improve drinking water quality and meet
environmental chiigations. The contract is in

the final stages of negotiation and it is expected
it will be signed in the near future. Scotland

is not new territory for the business. Six

Plants commissioned as part of three existing
contracts are performing well and profitably,

United Utilities is expanding its operations

in Australia through a wastewater treatment
contract with the city of Onkaparinga, It has
also been named as preferred bidder to build,
own and operate a wastewater treatment plant
at Victor Harbour, and provide operations and
management services for Coliban Regional
Water Authority. The combined value of

ihese contracts is approximately £80 million.

The legal dispute between NOSS Consortium,
in which North West Water International Limited
is & pariner, and the Bangkok Metropalitan
Authority is now proceeding into full arbitration,
it relates to a confract which was terminated by
NOSS Gonsortium in March 1998. No outcome
is expected within the next financial year.

United Utilities Networks has strengthened
its pesition as the UK's leading provider of

mutti-utility connections through the recent
acquiisition of Connections Plus fwhich
provides gas connections senvices to industrigt
and commercial customers} from National Grid
Transco PLC. The business has annualised
revenues of around £7 million.

The £225 million five-year contract with British
Gas Trading (BGT) began in November. It
involves the provision of metering services to
around five million customers in north west
and north east England and north Wales,

“CONTRACT SOLUTIONS
OFFERS THE GROUP EXCELLENT
PROSPECTS FOR SUSTAINED
AND CONTROLLED GROWTH.”

During the year, the business chose to
withdraw from the Americas to concentrate
on the UK, central and eastem Europe.
Concessions in central and eastern Europe
continue to perform well in terms of cost
and service levels.

And what of the future? Gordon predicts
another year of profitable growth ahead, one
in which the business will focus increasingly
on its people,

“A growth business needs to have the

right people with the right approach to help

it grow. One of our key goals in the coming
year will be to develop our employees to help
therm operate more effectivety in a customer-
centyic, competitive environment. Al our senior
managers have attended development centres
and we are putting training and support
services in place o ensure we have the

right people with a range of skills to

deliver continuing high performance.”

Financial
summary

Turnover increased by 2.9 per
cent to £397.1 million. Excluding
turmover from operations in the
Americas, turnover increased by
18.5 per cent to £389.4 million,
This was tlue to the British Gas
Trading contract and increased
revenues from other contracts
within the Operations
Management division. This
compares with an increase in
turnover of 95.3 per cent in
2001/02 achieved largely

as a result of the first year of the
Welsh Water contract.

Segmental operating profit*
increased by 96 per cent to £58.8
million, as the period of start-up
costs which accompanied last
year’s growth in turnover has
came to an end. This compares
with an increase of 50.0 per cent
to £30.0 million in 2001/02,
reflecting first year contributions
from the Welsh Water contract
and concessions

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003 13
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* Operating review
Business process outsourcing

Vertex

BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES

DEVELOP

BROADER BASED
BUSINESS PROCESS
QUTSOURCING
SERVICES

TARGET GROWTH

IN THE PUBLIC AND
FINANCIAL SERVICES
SECYORS

DEVELOP CUR
POSITION IN NORTH
AMERICA THROUGH
PARTNERSHIPS

United Uilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003

customer
diversification

Tom Drury has been at the helm of Vertex since its
inception. The vision for the future is “to be successful,
trusted and respected in the UK and internationally as
a leading transformational outsourcing business in our

chosen market sectors.”

Business overview

When Vertex was created seven years
ago, the business was predeminantly an
n-house provider of traditional customer
service functions. Today, it provides a
broader business process outsourcing
(BPQ) service to clients in the UK and
overseas. Vertex is the leading UK provider
of customer management outsourcing
services, operating across the utility,
cemmercial and public sectors.

From a start-up base of 2,500 peopk: in twee
north west locations, Vertex now employs over
9,000 pecple across 32 jocations on three
continents, with over two-thirds of its revenue

generated from outside the United Utilities group.

In the last year, Vertex was awarded new
contracts worth £600 million. Over the last
five years it has achieved ¢ompound annual
growth in turnover of 17 per cent and
segmental operating margins™ have increased
by 70 per cent over the last two years,

Business objectives

In order to pretect the business from market
fluctuations, Tom intends to develop a portfolio
of clients across different geographic and
business sectors. “Measured expansion wilt
allow Us 10 increase our opportunities in
markets we understand. We are also
broadening our capabilities to complement our
exdsting customer management operations. At
the same time, we are largeting the financial
services sector and significantly increasing our
presence in the public secter.” The intention is
to grow the business by around 15 per cent
per annum and at the same time increase
rargins and cash flow,

He sees Vertex as a company that engenders
trust by acting with integrity and honesty;

a company with a culture that attracts and
manages the industry's brightest talents. “We
want to be renowned for getting the basics
right and adding value to shareholders and
clients alike.”

“OUR EXPERTISE IN THE UK
UTILITY SECTOR WILL
STAND US IN GOOD STEAD
AS UTILITY MARKETS
ELSEWHERE DEREGULATE.”

Business issues

As with any business enjoying significant
growth, the voyage from start-up to maturity
has not always been smeoth.

“The last year has been particularly challenging
but we have coped extremely welj due, in no
small part, to an excellent senior management
team and dedicated, flexible professionals at
the fromt fine delivering exceptional customer
service. We have experienced the effects

of recent economic disturbances with some

of our clients, most notably in the mebile
telecommunications market.” This is & sector
where the business has a significant presence.

By adopting effective business strategies, Tom
believes that these challenges will actually lead
to more opportunities for Vertex to contribute
sustained growth to the group. “Our expertise
in the UK utility sector, particufarly our experience
of deregulated markets, will stand us in good
stead as utility markets elsewhere dereguiate.”

The business will increasingly offer a broader
range of services. "We se¢ partnerships as the




POSITIVE SERVICE CULTURE HAS
HELPED US TO GROW QUICKLY AND
DIVERSIFY OUR CUSTOMER BASE




Vertex applies the group’s business process management
skills in growth markets. The business is accessing new
markets and new sectors and is focused on developing
a broader customer base.

£492m

CONTRACT WINS IN PUBLIC SECTOR

LAST YEAR: £23.5m

Reflecting wins during the year

97 %

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

TARGET: over 95%

The CARES customer satisfaction rating is a
measure of success according to our clients
and a driver of mprovement

6.1%

SEGMENTAL OPERATING MARGIN®

LAST YEAR: 5.0%

The segmental operating margin® reficets maturity
of the contract portfolio and cost reductions

WESTMINSTER
CITY COUNCIL

PUTTING CUSTOMERS AT THE HEART
OF ITS BUSINESS WAS THE VISION OF
WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL.

THEY EMBARKED UPON AN AMBITIOUS
CUSTOMER SERVICE INITIATIVE THAT
[WOULD ALLOW THEM TO
CONCENTRATE ON STRATEGY AND
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BY
OUTSOURCING CUSTOMER SERVICE
RELATED ACTIVITIES.

IN THE UK'S LARGEST LOCAL
GOVERNMENT QUTSQURCING

DEAL, WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL
[AWARDED A 15 YEAR, £422 MILLION
CONTRACT TO VERTEX. AROUND 300
EMPLOYEES TRANSFERRED TO VERTEX
AND A NEW CONTACT CENTRE AND
CUSTOMER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
WERE DEVELOPED.

VERTEX WILL LOOK AFTER 67
{DIFFERENT SERVICES INVOLVING SEVEN
COUNCIL DIRECTORATES, RESULTING IN
IMPROVED ACCESS FOR CITIZENS TO A
NUMBER

QF KEY COUNCIL SERVICES, RANGING
FROM COUNCIL TAX ADVICE TO
PARKING PERMITS AND SCHOOL
ADMISSIONS.
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Business process outsourcing

Vertex (continued)

solution 1o Theet our clients’ demands for more
complex services and plan to continue working
coliaboratively with Cap Gemini Emst & Young
UK as our preferred TF partner. At the same
time, we will seek 10 buitd relationships with
new pariners in related figlds to enable us 10
deliver a compiehensive service portfolio.”

Business performance

The success of Vertex's strategy aver the
jast twelve months is demonstrated by the
company’s expansion o North America
and India. Vertex continues to seek suitable
acquisition targets and growif opportunities.

During the year, Vertex purchased the

UK contact cenire operator, 7G, and is
sharehoiding in 7C India. The acquistion
included the iransfer of 7C's key clionts
ncluding lastminute.cam, Vodaione and
Freoview. The business nas peen successtully
integrated into the existing organisation and
i now giming to optimise #15 fndian contact
cenire capacity. Tom is delighted with the
acquisition and leoks forward to buiding 2
strong relationship with GE Capitel -2 financial
senices company with 8 strategic investrment
in 7C India.

I addition, the business Nas won nearly

£500 milion of business in 1he public sector

in the last twalve months. The confrack with the
Department for Work and Pengions, which
promotes the payrrent of state benefits direcity
into bank accounts, begen auccesshully in
October, Tris included the delivery ot 1T
systerns to time, scope and pudget. Around
200 employees areé cumently working on the
coniract and this figure is expected 10 ncrease
1o 800 during the peak onthe towards the
end of this year.

The second phase of the Westminster City
GCounail contract began successiuly

in February. The contract, worth up 10

€422 millon over 15 years, covers the
integration and defvery of 67 council senvices

in seven departments. Over B850 employees
have transferred o e business and its partners
as part of the contract, and a new flagsnip
contact centre has been opened in Westminster.

Vartex has alse recently been awarded a
conftraci 1o provide customer managemenit
services to Tesco PLG, in support of its new
senvice, Tesco Telecom. The multi-million
pound cantract s scheduled 1o begin in
early summer 2003 and wil last for five years.

In September, Vertex signed an extended
contract with TXU Eurcpe. Although Powergen

acquired TXU Europe’s retall business in
Octaber 2002, Vertex confinges (o supply
custorner management services under the
contract. Pawergen and Vertex have recently
sighed a memorancharm of understanding, and
based on this, good progress is being made
1o finalise & new contracl.

“THE BUSINESS HAS PERFORMED
WELL IN A TOUGH MARKET AND
1S ON TARGET TO ACHIEVE ITS
STRATEGIC GOALS.”

Tom is confident that the business is in

a strong position 10 withstand any futre
economic dowrtum, He predicts that the
Trarket wil continue ta grow strongly a5
aeganisations sesk thie sirategic advantages
that outsoarcing can bring.

*There is a frend away from pure
transactional processing 10 full business
process management. Service providers
nave to be actively involved in changing
customars’ businesses ~ transformational
autsourcing — rather than simply defivering
service to specification. Our response is 10
seek both Tepeatable, low-risk, transactional
wark with a modest margin and more
bespoke, higher risk, transformational
work at highe(-margins.”

Yo believes the business has periorrned
waell in & tough market “We are on target to
acHieve our strategic godls and 1o continue 1o
grow in a sustainable and profitable manner.”

—7

Financial
summary

Saos increased by 8.7 per cant 10
£a07 6 miliion primariy thwough New
contracts secured in the year for the
Depariment for Work ang Pensions
and for Westrminster City Council.
Tris cormpases with an increase of
23.9 per cent in 200102 when new
contracts were entered info with
Corpanies House, Birmingham Gty
Council and Marks and Spencer.

Segmentat Operating proft”

has improved by 33.3 per cent

to £18.8 milion refiecting the flow
fheough of increased turmover and
margins. This cornpared with an
increacs of 85.5 per cent in 2001402
as cost efficiencies were generated
on intermal contracts and activity

on extemnal contracts increased.

Vertex's segmental operatng
margin® improved o 6.1 per cent
from 5.0 per cent last year and from
3.6 per centin 2000/01, reflecting
e inq roaturity of the extemal
contract portiolio and cost recuctions
i INE-GICUD COMIAGES.

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003
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Operating review
Telecommunications

Your Communications

Hugh Lagan
Managing director

BUSINESS
QBJECTIVES

MAXIMISE
PROFITABILITY
THROUGH
BUSINESS
EFFICIENCIES

OFFER NEW
SERVICES TO
STRENGTHEN
EXISTING CLIENT
RELATIONSHIPS

DEVELOP A
MULTI-CHANNEL
SALES APPROACH
TO WIN NEW
BUSINESS IN OUR
TARGET MARKETS

United Utilities Annual Repert & Acceunts 2003

speaking

directly

Hugh Logan is confident about the prospects for
Your Communications — even though conditions
have been tough in the telecommunications market.
“We are aiming to be a net contributor of cash to
the group on a post-tax basis by this time next year.”

Business overview One clear strategy for maintaining and
In the UK tetecommunications market, Your improving performance is to use existing
Communications remains a medium-sized technology and systems, such as the new
alternative network, which operates in the cusiomer support system. “We aim 1o
business-to-business sector. get further into the customer base and
cross-sell our voice, data, mobile and
Hugh is pleased that the business has been internet products. The brief now is to
abls to maintain positive growth whils many add value, increase revenue streams
competitors have faced very severe trading and strengthen customer refationships.”

difficulties. "Your Communications has continued
to grow year-on-year with seven out of eight

N ! Business issues
sales channels making significant improvement.”

Hugh sees the state of the UK market as
the kay issue facing his business. “The main

“THE BRIEF NOW IS TO ADD infiuence has been the economic downtura, Cur
VALUE, INCREASE REVENUE customers have been reluctant to invest in new
STREAMS AND STRENGTHEN telecommunications products and services to
CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS.” improve their efficiency. However, they are

increasingly beginning to realise that, if they

Business objectives are going 10 find a way out of the downturn,

Hugh has a clear focus for the year ahead. they must invest in new technology.”

“We have 10 organise the business 1o be as

efficient as it can be. We must direct our He cites other influences, not least the regulatory

energies to winning new work without ervironment. “Over the past year Oftel has made

neglecting our existing business.” some important regulatory policy decisions which

82.2% ||2.67bn

BUSINESS SALES MINUTES OF NETWORK USAGE
LAST YEAR: 72.4% LAST YEAR: 2.01bn
Proportion of tumover relaing 1o business sales Number of minutes camried on our network in the year




have had a positive impact on our business.
The draft Gommunications Bill published on

7 May 2002 proposes a new unified regulator
‘Ofcom" and there have been a number of
related legislative initiatives. We will be monitoring
and assessing developments closely, especially
the review of the communications market being
uriertaken by Oftel.”

Business performance

Hugh believes a steady focus on immediate
business cbjoctives has resutted in sofid
performance, “CQur objective over the last year
was 10 complete our network. Having buit this
we now have a highly flexible state-of-the-art
infrastructure with which we can cornect,
manage and switch our customers’ trafiic.”

“HAVING COMPLETED QUR
NETWORK WE NOW HAVE A
HIGHLY FLEXIBLE STATE-OF-
THE-ART INFRASTRUCTURE
WITH WHICH WE CAN CONNEGT,
MANAGE AND SWITCH OUR
CUSTOMERS® TRAFFIC.”

“The completion of the natwork is an important
element in attaining profitability. This will allow
us to grow and develop new services for our
portfolio — for example, Garrier Pre Seiect,

our new advanced indirect service, will enable
us to reach a wider target sector both
geographically and in terms of the size of
business we can sevice.”

225m

NET CASH INVESTMENT

LAST YEAR: £45m

Net cash investment in Your Communications fef
as the business completed its network build phase

“In essence, what we have done, whilst
maintaining a kigh degree of network efficiency
and redigbility, is endeavour to increase e
traffic coming across the network.” The key,
for Hugh, has been to develop a mutti-channgl
sales approach to help win new customers,
whilst retaining and growing the relationship
with existing customers.

“This is delivering resufts and | believe it will
continue to do so, Market conditions remain
tough in this secter, maostly due to aver-
capacity, but our business strategies are
helping us to improve results. Our immediate
financial target is to become a net contributor of
cash to the group, on a post-ax basgis, in
2003/04."

Financial
summary

Turnover grew by 7.5 per cent
in the year to £161.7 million.
This is a result of further
improved performance in the
wholesale

and retail markets, Sales growth
in 2001/02 was 31.6 per cent,
largely atiributable to increased
focus on business sales from
voice and data services.
Segmental operating losses*
reduced in the year by

18.1 per cent to £19.5 million
compared with a reduction of
5.2 per cent in 2001/02. This
was due to both increased
sales and an improved product
mix

as higher margin business sales
continued to increase as a
proportion of total sales.

Business customers now make
up 82.2 per cent of sales.
Business sales from voice and
data services increased by 22.2
per cent to £133.0 million, whilst
premium rate services fell by
30.8 per cent to £28.7 million.

With the network building phase
completed, net cash investment
in the business fell to £25
million, compared with £45
million in the previous year. As
ongoing capital investment
requirements cantinue to fall,
the business has a target

United Utilities Anrual Report & Accounts 2003
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responsible
evolution

We recognise that managing our impacts is
critical to the success of our business and the
health of our environment and communities.
Our shareholders expect us to behave
ethically, having regard for the environment

and society as a whole.

Our sharehalders have a range of
investments and they expect us (0
generate long-term value. Therefore, we
endeavour to manage relationships with
our employees, suppliers, custorners and
other stakeholders in an effective and
sustainable way.

Respensible management

Qur corporate social responsibility steering
group and sustainable development panel
provide key management respansibility

and direction for these areas. Both groups

are chaired by chisf executive, John Roberts.
Cur executive leadership team have objectives
linked to corporate responsibility,

During 2002, action plans covering sustainable
development and corporate social responsibility
were developed for the group, fo ensure best

- practice compliance, continuous improvement

and that we rmanage our impacts in a
respensible and approptiate manner. This
demonstrates a maturing, ‘business as
usual' attitude in this area.

Last year, we published a lisi of business
principies setiing out the standard of conduct
which our stakeholders have a right 1o expect.
We have also published on our websie the
key high-level policies which underpin and
suppart our business principles.

United Lititities Annual Report & Accounts 2003

Performance benchmarking

In 2002, we took part in the frst comporate
responsibility index, launched by Business in the
Community. We were pleased 1o be leaders in
our field, scoring 78 per cent, We wers placed in
the top 20 per cent of participating companies,
which included mere than half of the FTSE 100,

Our score of 94 per cent in the Business in the
Environment index demonstrates our continued
attention to best practice.

We were ranked 32nd in the Giving List of tha
UK's topr 100 companies and are now in the
top 50 of the FTSE4Gocd Index. Nearty £2.7
million was nvested during the year in gocial
and environmentat inftiatives. Our nvestiment
in this area is evaluated using the London
Benchmarking Group model.

“NEARLY £2.7 MILLION
WAS INVESTED DURING
THE YEAR IN SOCIAL AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INITIATIVES.”

Impact and risk management

The group operates management systems
which identiffy ervironmental impacts. Wheve
possible these meet external standards. For
example, Contract Soluticns is committed to
impiermenting the international standard for
emvironmental management systerns — 150

14001 - in its UK operations. Our risk reporting
process is now Gty ecnbedded throughaout
the group.

Stakeholder engagement

Last year, we introduced our approach
to mapping the impacts of concern to
our stakeholders. We will continue to
refine our approach through engagement
with our stakeholders.

Stakeholder consultation helps us to
understand key concerns, initiate other
forms of research and enables us to focus
our reporting accordingly. The table opposite
shows cur main stakeholder groups and
shows the key issues they have identified.

OCur 2002/03 research shows that 73 per cent
of stakeholders agreed that United Utillties is
meeting thetr expectations in fulfiing its soclal
and environmental responsibilities. Last year
we reported 69 per cent of stakeholders

in agreement.

Reporting

Each year, we produce a report dedicated
o corporate social responsibility and
sustainabiity issues. This vear, we have
renamed it a5 our corporate responsibility
report, This reflects that it reports on our
responsibilitios to all stakeholders. A copy
of the report, plus additional performance




and case study information can be found on
our website, www.unitedutilities.com, of can
be obtained by email from info@uuplc.co.uk

Reporting and independent assurance

Our cerporate responsibility report, and
the processes, policies and governance
arrangements in place for generating the

data and content for the report, are subject
to an independent assurance process. The
summary Statement from our independent
assurers, csr network, can be found inthe
corporate responsibility report.

ENVIRONMENT COMMUNITY MARKETPLACE WORKPLACE
GOVERNMENTY  » Surface and * Rural economy * Investment = Sidlls and job
groundwater qualty * Access and programme fraining
* Compliance with recreation * Charging policy
environmental legisiation + Urban regeneration
* Climate change/
rergwable energy
COMMUNITY « Biodiversity « Urban regeneration  * Investment * Skills and job
= Resource efficiency/depletion  « Access and programme training
« Surface/ground water quality recreation * Supply chain + Heaith and safety
* Land cpality * Rurad economy management + Equa opportunties
CUSTOMERS - Waste minimisation/ * Drinking water « Charging poli
recycling quality . rds of senvice
= Goodt neighbour » Business athics
INVESTORS * Ervironmental management * Environimental * Investrent + Heahth and safety
systems ([EMS) education programme « Skills and Job
- i * Socl inciusion * Supply chain raining
*» Resource depletion/efficiency + Business ethics * Equal opportunities
* Climate ¢change/
renewabde energy
SUPPLIERS +*EMS * Visual impact * Stancards » Health and safety
* Compliance with of service « Skills and job
environrnental legislation * Prosecutions training
* Waste minimisation/recycling « Equal opportunities
EMPLOYEES «EMS * Jab greation/ * Business ethics + Shdis and job training
unempioyrnent = Human rights = Equal opportunities

HIGHLIGHTS

SCORED 78 PER
CENT IN BHC
CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY
INDEX

94 PER CENT
SCORE IN
BUSINESS IN THE
ENVIRONMENT
INDEX

ONE OF TWO UK
UTILITIES LISTED
IN THE DOW
JONES WORLD
SUSTAINABILITY
INDEX IN 2002
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a

- Corporate responsibility {(continued)

Environment

United Wilities has recently formed a
partnership with the Forestry Commission and
the Northwest Development Agency to help
deliver the Newlands Project. This aims to

restore more than 900 acres of brownfield land.

Under the agreernent, we will identify sutabie
sites within our ownership for the creation
of community woadland and facilitate the
environmental regeneration of these locations.

Environmental impacts

The key environmental interests identified by
our stakeholders are waste and rescurce
managerert, climate change and renewable
energy, legislative and regulatory cornpliance,
biodiversity and surface water quality. We
have made innovative strides in many of
these areas - some of which have already
fed to significant improvement.

The proportion of wastewater sludge cur
regulated business dispeses to landfill has
decreased to 14 per cent this year. More is
going to use in land reclamation and water
sludges are now also being used in the
manufacture of bricks.

River water quality in north west England
conlinues o improve, thanks largely 1o the
ongoing investment programme on wastewater
treatment in cur reguiated business. 92.4 per
cent of river length in north west England is
now rated as of good or fair quality.

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003

We have developed biodiversity plans for habitats
and species on our lancdholdings and undertaken

work to conserve wildlife, such as the red squinel.

Our best practice approach to access and
recreation was recognised with a Green Flag
award for our Sirinesdale Natwe Reserve.

Renewable energy is a key area for the group.
Last year, we generated 387 GWh, or enough
efectricity to supply nearly 91,000 homes. We
are aiming to increase this amount inthe next
twelve months.

However, the overall amount of energy being
consumed by the group has grown during the
reporting period. New processes to improve
the treatment of wastewater and drinking water
within our licensed water operations are the
main cause. To counter this, we have an
ongoing programme to improve owr energy
efficiency and generate mare energy from
renewahle sources for our cwn US6.

We take our responsibilities to protect

the environment very seriously and were
disappointed with the prosecution record
of our licensed water business in 2002,

We have introduced & wide range of initiatives
as aresult and are confident that there will

be significant improvement in 2003.

99.8%

DRINKING WATER QUALITY
COMPLIANCE MAINTAINED

LAST YEAR: 99.8%

OWi scone on drinking watsr compliance at
customers' taps, within our regulated water business

86%

OF WASTEWATER SLUDGE RECYCLED

LAST YEAR: 69%

Propartion of sludge disposed of by our requlated
water business which is recycled to land

SUMMARY

OFFICE WASTE
RECYCLING
INCREASED FROM
21 PER CENT TO
45 PER CENT

LAUNCHED THE
LOW CARBON
PARTNERSHIP
N WALES

COMPLETED

A £60 MILLION
WASTEWATER
IMPROVEMENT
SCHEME FOR THE
MORAY FIRTH




Community

As Official Community Partner to the 2002
Cormmaonwealth Games, we distibuted Games
tickets to community groups throughout north
west England.

Qur community ticketing initiative was extrernely
successful. 371 community groups received
tickets, enabling 10,000 pecple to attend who
would otherwise have been unable to go.

40 per cent of the tickets were allocated io
community groups outside Greater Manchester,
demonstrating strong community support for
the Games throughout the region.

Community impacts

The Key areas of interest to our stakeholders
include environmental education, access and
recraation, rural economy, urban regeneration
and drinking water quality.

As a community-based business, we feoognise
the importance of healthy communities and the
impact that we have upon them.

Qur corporate sccial responsibility steering
group is responsible for policy implementation
and for ensuring cur community intiatives afign
with business objectives. It monitors activity

in our trres foous areas of emironment,
education and training, and social inclusion,
ensuring our community activity is aligned
with best practice. The steering group also
oversees financial and management reperting

of community spend, and reviews and
aurthorises opportunities with community
partners.

Careful consideration is given to ensure the
steering group's spproach complements that of
the sustainable development panel and
enhances performance. Community activity is
reported at board level as appropriate.

Engaging employees

Following research conducted in 2002,

when only 30 per cent of employees told us
they were encouraged to get involved in the
communily, we have focused on improving our
community programme and the initiatives on
offer to employees. This has incuded improved
communication, using our employee magazine
and intranet site, launching an employee
volunteering scheme in conjunction with
charities, holding a roadshow to meet.
employees face-to-face and launching an
incentive-driven payroll giving scheme. As a
result, in 2003, 58 per cent of employees said

that we now encourage them to get invoived in

their focal community.

58%

OF EMPLOYEES FEEL ENCOURAGED TO
GET INVOLVED IN THEIR COMMUNITY

LAST YEAR: 30%

Cormparative figures deawn from ancual company
research findings

£839K

INVESTMENT IN EDUGCATION
AND TRAINING

LAST YEAR: £790k

Annual lavel of discretionary spend on education
and training, evaluated using LBG model

SUMMARY

10,000 GAMES
TICKETS
DISTRIBUTED TO
371 COMMUNITY
GROUPS

13,000 STUDENTS
VISITED OUR SIX
ENVIRONMENTAL
EDUCATION
CENTRES

WE AIM TO RAISE
£50,000 FOR OUR
EMPLOYEES’
CHARITY OF

THE YEAR -
MACMILLAN
CANCER CARE
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Marketplace

We supply essential services to over seven
million people and businesses in north west
Engiand, We work to strict legislative standards
in order 10 improve the quality of drinking water
and the treafment of wastawater, bringing benefit
to customers and the region as a whole. Cur
Service Defivery business works closaly with a
number of key contractors 1o defiver our capital
investment programme,

Although tap water is the cleanest it has ever
been, we ere still improving quality, For example,
£38 million is being invested to improve water
suppiies for 42,000 households in Lancashire,
Franklaw water treatment works (pictured)

is being extended to provide an additional
220 million litres of raw water a day.

Marketplace impacts

Marketplace areas of concern to our
stakeholders inciude our investment programme,
the way we carry out business, supply chain,
standards of service and charging policy.

r

Qur aim is o provide a reliable service, while
seeking to make improvernents to mest the
needs of our customers. We demand quality
from our suppliers and contractors and
encourage them to develop even higher
standards. Frequent health, safety and
environmental audits are carried out on

all projects under construction to ensure
our key contractors work 10 high regulatory
standards and {o our own intemal criteria.

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003

- Corporate responsibility (continued)

We are’ developing a systematic approach to
incorporate environmental criteria in our supply
chain process. We conducted a pilot study
with a selection of our suppliers to determine
realistic performance measures, We are also
developing a series of guidance packs for both
our buyers and suppliers,

Customers with special needs receive help in a
package of ExtraCare senvices. During the year,
we infroduced new services including freephone
contact numbers and a dedicated emergency
line for dialysis customers, in the event of an
emergency water shut-off. We have signed up to
the National Cold Calling Protocol Programime,
aimed at beating bogus callers. The programme
was launched last year and ensures employees
foliow a set procedure when caling on
customers, including the use of a new farge-style
1D card to help people with visual impairrnent.

We have continued to improve the reliability

of our electricity distribution network reducing
the armount of customer hours lost for gur worst
served customers by 191,000 during 2002/03.

3,024

WRITTEN GUSTOMER COMPLAINTS

LAST YEAR: 4,119

12% reduction in complaints from our regulated
water, wastewater and electricity custome

014%

UNPLANNED WATER SUPPLY
INTERRUPTIONS

TARGET: 0.19%

Measure of properties experiencing unplanned water
supply interruptions in our regufated

SUMMARY

35,000
CUSTOMERS
CONNECTED IN
FREE METER
OPTION

QVER 450,000
CUSTOMERS
NOW USE
PAYMENT CARDS

£25 MILLION
INVESTMENT TO
ENABLE REMOTE
POWER
RESTORATION




Workplace

We have introduced a group-wide induction
programme based on our values. For the first
time, all new employees will receive a consistent
introduction to what the group does, its values
and an appreciation of who our stakeholders
ara — and why they are important.

The programme includes group activities,
videos, presentations and outlines the ways in
which employees can become involved in our
community volunteering aclivities. in a separate
half-day sassion John Roberts formally
welcomes our new employees to the group.

Workplace impacts

Our workplace stakeholders have identified
skits and job training, equal opportunities and
health and safety as their main interest areas.

UCan, our culture change programme, has
made good pregress. Over the past twelve
manths, 7,500 employees have attended a UCan
workshop — in the UK and overseas. Workshops
focus on listening skils, teamwork and
accountabilty. 53 of our employees have receaived
extensive training to enable them to faciltate the
workshops. UCan workshops help employees
understand the group’s values and dermonstrate
how to put them into practice in the workplace.
These values are now clearly represented in our
performance management systems. Performance
Is determined not onty by what is delivered, but
how i aligns with our values.

The group is committed to locking after the
financial welfare of its employees not only
during employment but for the rest of their lives
after they retire. The group’s pension schemes
have several different sections, including a local
government section, a defined benefit section
and a defined contsibution section.

Health and safety

Our health and safety performance has
continued to improve significantly during the
past year. In particular, the lost-time accident
incidence rate fell 21 per cent in the year
primarily dus to a change in our risk profile
resulting from withdrawal from infrastrociure
management in the Americas. This is a 58 per
cent reduction n total aver the course of the last
three years. We are making excellent progress
towards mesting our targets, which we
published last year, and which align to
government strategy. The group was free of all
legal and enforcement action. The number of
‘major accidents' fell, as did the number of lost
wark days. We repott performance data in
more detail on our website and provide more
information on curment issues, initiatives and
the areas of focus for the year ahead.

40%

INCREASE IN BMPLOYEES FROM
ETHNIC MINORITIES

LAST YEAR: 15% DECREASE

£24 of our employees are from ethnic minorties,
representing 5.6 per cent of our workforee

75%

EMPLOYEE SATISFACTION WITH
INTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS

LAST YEAR: 54%

Percentage of employees befieving we kesp our
employees informed about key achieverments

SUMMARY

PARTNERSHIP
AGREEMENTS IN
PLACE WITH ALL
TRADE UNIONS

7,500 EMPLOYEES
ATTENDED UCAN
WORKSHOPS

WOMEN MAKE
UP 23.6 PER CENT
OF MANAGERS
ACROSS THE
GROUP
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Financial review

“The dividend for
the year is 47.6
pence, an increase
of 1.3 per cent.”

* Segmental operating profitloss is
defined as the proftioss from i
Goations LEfons norns-opoat .
goodwill amortisation, excep! items,
interest and tax for a segment as shown
in note 2 of the financial statements.
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“The group’s support services
businesses have made significant
progress during the year.”

Overview

The group's support services businesses
have made significant progress during the
year. This performance has more than offset
the expected fall in operating profits from
our requlated businesses.

We have changed the names of the

asset management setvices and customer
management outsourcing segments to
infrastructure management and business
precess outsourcing, reflecting the development
of these activities into wider markets.

Infrastructure management turnover and
segmental operating profit* grew substantially
as the period of start-up costs which
accompanied last year's growth in tumover
came to an end. Our £225 million contract with
British Gas Trading has been mobilised and
wa have been named as one of the preferred
bidders o partner with Scottish Water in the
delivery of their four year £1.8 billion capital
investment programme. The business's order
beok now stands at nearly £2.5 biltion,

Business process outsourcing tumover grew by
nearly nine per cent principally due to the
Westminster City Gouncil and Departrment for
Work and Pensions contracts, which commenced
during the year. In addition, Vertex purchased
the UK contact centre operator, 7C and its
shareholding in 7C India and is now pursuing a
number of opportunities to utiise its Indian
contact centre capacity in conjunction with its
current and prospective clients. Verlex's segmental
operaling margins* have increased by 70 per
cent over the last two vears, standing at over six
per cent in 2002/03, reflecting the increasing
maturity of the external contract portfolio.

The growth in telecommunications' turmover
has continued and segrnental operating losses”
have reduced reflecting the trend towards a
cash positive position. As capital investment
requirements continue to fall, we are targeting
the business to be a net cash contributer to
the group after taxation in 2003/04,

Our licensed businesses remain on track to
meet our £480 milicn operating cost saving

target over the 2000-05 regulatory period.

Qur capital investment programme is ahead of
schedule in respect of outputs, with investment
of £713 million made during the year.

MNew financial reporting standards and

changes in accounting policies

Urgent Issues Task Force {UITF) Abstract 34
Pre-contract cosls

Wae have adopted Urgent Issues Task Force
{UITF) Abstract 34 within these financial
staterments. The application of this abstract

is reflected in the year and in the appropriate
restaternent of the resuits for the vears ended
31 March 2001 and 2002. UITF 34 requires that
pre-contract costs should only be recognised
as an asset after the point where it is virtually
certain that a contract will be entered into with
net cash inflows that will recover the costs
capitalised. Previously, the group's policy was o
capitalise and fully provide against pre-contract
costs until their recovery was considered to

be secured by profitable contracts. Once the
contract was secured, the provision was
released and capitalised costs amortised

over the expected life of the contract.

The effect of adopting UITF 34 is a reduction
of shareholders’ funds by £12.6 million at

31 March 2002 and a reduction in profit for
years ended 31 March 2003 by £1.5 millicn,
31 March 2002 by £1.4 million and 31 March
2001 by £2.3 million (net of tax).

Telecommunications network capacity sales
Where there is excess capacity in the
tefecommunications network, Your
Communications may sell this capacity to
third parties. Previousty, where substantially
ali of the risks and rewards of ownership were
transferred to the purchaser over the economic
life of the asset, these transactions had been
accounted for as a sale and recognised in
turnover when all relevant conditions of the
coffract had been met.

Having reviewed current accounting practice,
the group concluded that an accounting policy
that treats such fransactions as grants of
operating leases {unless legal title passes)
rather than as sales is more appropriate as it



reflects the long-term nature of the transaction.
This accounting policy is aligned with the
subsequently issued TF Abstract 36 Contracts
for sales of capacity.

The effect of this change in accounting

policy is a reduction of shareholders® funds by
£4.5 million at 31 March 2002 and a reducticn
in profit and turnover for years ended 31 March
2003 by £1.0 million (net of tax) and £3.0
million respectively, 31 March 2002 by €18
million (net of tax} and £4.8 million respectively
and 31 March 2001 by £2.6 million {net of tax}
and £5.2 million respectively.

Financial Reporting Standard 17 Retirernent benedits
The group applies SSAP 24 as the basis for
accounting for pension costs, and continues

1o make the required transitional disclosures

for Financial Reporting Standard {FRS} 17 as
disclosed in note 25 of the financial statements.
During the vear, the Accounting Standards

Board has deferred mandatory implementation
of FRS 17 pending a review of the equivalent
International Financial Reporting $tandard.

Primarily due to the deterioration in the equity
markets and lower interest rates during the
year, the valuation of the group’s schemes
under FRS 17 resuft in a net pension liakility at
31 March 2003 of £298.1 million compared
with a net asset of £15.1 million at 31 March
20062. In light of this funding position, the group
has increased its contributions to the schemes
with effect from 1 April 2003.

International Financial Reporting Standards

As a European listed company, the group wil
be required, subject o enabling UK legislation,
to adopt Internationat Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS) for the year ending 31 March
2006. The group will continue 1o assess the
impact of adopting IFRS on an ongeing basis
given that both UK and Intermational Standards

are undergoing a period of rapid change to
assist harmonisation.

Group results

Turnover from continuing operations increased
by 2.6 per cent to £1,820.5 miliion in 2002/03
compared with an increase of 19.3 per cent
in 2001/02. The movement in both years
refiects growth in business process
owtsourcing, infrastructure management

and tetecommunications, offset by real price
reductions in the allowed regulatory revenues.
Tumaver in 2002/03 was reduced by the
withdrawal from infrastructure management in
the Americas, whereas 2001/02 was boosted
by the Welsh Water contract,

Operating profit from continuing operations
{defined as profit from continuing operations
before non-cperating iterns, goodwill
amortisation, exceptional items, interest and
tax — sea note 2 below) increased by 1.5 per

2003 2002 2001
Restated Aestated
Financial highlights £m £m £m
Turnover from continuing operations () 1,920.5 1.871.6 1,569.2
Profit from continuing operations before non-operating itemns, goodwil,
exceptional items, interest and tax @ 561.7 553.3 5058
Profit from centinuing operations before goodwill, exceptional items and tax 3303 3227 289.5
Profit before tax 327.5 302.8 477.7
Profit after tax 28041 263.4 3413
Basic earnings per share 50.0p 47.3p 61.9p
Adjusted basic earnings per share ® 48.8p 50.9p 40.3p
Dividends per share 47.6p 47.0p 48.1p
Interest cover @ 243 2.40 2.30
Adjusted dividend cover & 1.03 1.08 0.87

Notes

1. Tumover from contiruing oparations inckades tha geou’s share of loialk venbares' tumaver.,
2. Gpzerating profit frva satinung crenations 6 defirad 89 profl ront cantheng operalin g befre nen-gperating Jerns. goodwll amorisation, exceptional fems, inlerest and tor Operating profit #om continuing

sperations is reconciied to profit before interest as shawn below:

2003 2002 2001

Restated Restated

Bm £m £m

Profit on ordinary activites before interest 558.9 533.4 698.0

Exceptional tems [2%)] e {i74.6)

Bxscontinued operations - - 21.6)

Goodwll amortisation 75 80 4.0
Operaling profit from continuing operations (defined as profit from continuing operations

Lateed Bor-tperating B, goodad arodatian. exent toresd pnd tavh SB1.Y 5533 8058

3. Adusted basic samings per sharg excludes discontinued opefations, exceptional items and goodwi amortisation. The calculation of the adiusted earmings per sharg is set out in nole 10 to the accounts.

A BiereT oover S g ameiter oF trnes the inkena? chana @ cowerad by

y ool ST SOnkiRiy opersiens Befoe ko anerting Hems, goodwill amartisation, exceptional items, interest and tax.

B L

5. Adjusted dividend cover is caloulated as adiusted basic earnings per shara divided by dividend per share.
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Financial review (continued)

2003 2002 2001
Restated Restated
Summary cash low £m tm £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 851.5 799.8 841.7
Income from joint ventures 28 241 ~
Retumns on investment and servicing of finance {218.9) (223.7) {190.1}
Taxation - (2.4 1.7
Capital expenditure and financial investment (697.9) (683.6) (572.9)
Acquisitions and disposals 3.0 (9.8 195.4
Dividends (262.0) (256.1) (250.1)
Cash (outflow)/inflaw before use of liquid resources
and financing {321.5) {273.7) 223
Issue of shares, exchange and cther
non-cash adjustments 84 19.3 7.7
Movement in net debt {313.1) (254.4) 30.0
Opening net debt {3,060.8) (2.806.4) {2,836.4)
Closing net debt (3,373.9) (3.060.8} (2.806.4)

“Profit before
tax increased by

8.2 per cent to
£327.5 million.”
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Cent in 2002/03 to £661.7 milien reflecting
improved segmental operating profits* in
infrastructure management and business
Process outsourcing, offset by an anticipated
fall in the licensed businesses due 1o the real
reguiatory price reductions and cost growth as
the capital programme accelerates.
Telecommunications’ segmental operating losses*
reduced in 2002/03 as the business continued
1o focus on higher margin business sajes.
Qperating profit from continuing operations
{defined as profit from continuing operations
before non-operating iterms, goocwil
amortisation, exceptional items, interest and tax —
See note 2 on page 27) increased by 9.4 per
Cent in 2001/02 mainly due to the effect of
operating cost reductions in the licensed raulti-
utility operations, increased volumes in our
Support services businesses and improved
segmental operating margins* in business
process outsourcing.

Net interest expense for the year was
£231.4 million, compared with £230.6 million
in 2001/02 and £220.3 million in 2000/01.
The increass in 2002/03 reflects increasing
net debt and the additional marginal cost of
prefunding a substantial proportion of the
group’s future financing requirements in its
regulated businesses, offset by a reduction in
fioating rates. The larger increase in 2001/02
reflected the full year effect of the increase in
net debt in 2000/01 and a smaller reduction
in floating rates.

During 2002/03, the group completed its
withdrawal from infrastructure management in
the Americas by selling its 50 per cent interest
in US Water and withdrawing from IEBA, the
Argentine electricity Ltility, which, with effect

from August 2002, ceased to be accounted for
as a joint venture even though the group legally
retained a minority interest in EBA of 45 per
cent. The withdrawal from infrastructure
management in the Americas resulted in a net
exceptional credit to the profit and loss account
of £34.0 million.

With the construction of the telecommunications
network now completed, the group has reviewed
the carrying value of its telecommunications
assets, in accordance with FRS 11 Impairment
of fixed assets and goodwil. Based on an
assumed pre-tax nominal weighted average
cost of capitai of 16 per cent, and a long-term
real growth rate of 2.25 per cent, an adjustment
to value of £25.5 milion has been made.

Profit beforg tax in 2002/03 increased by

8.2 per cent to £327.5 million. This is stated
after an exceptional credit of £4.7 million,
relating to the withdrawal from infrastructure
management in the Americas and the
adjustment to the carrying value of
telecommunications assets discussed above
and also after restructuring charges primarily in
the telecornmunications business following the
completion of its network building phase.

The increase in profit before tax is driven by
improved segmental operating profits* in the
group’s support services businesses, Profit
before tax in 2001/02 included excepticnal
restructuring charges of £11.9 million.

Profit before tax reduced by 36.6 per cent to
£302.8 million in 2001/02. The reduction was
principally due to the exceptional profit on sale
of our energy supply business of £191.2 millien
and the resufts of the discontinued business

of £17.6 million included in 2000/01. Profit
hefore tax in 2000/01 included exceptional
restructuring charges of £16.6 million.

Basic eamings per share in 2002/03 improved
by 5.7 per cent o 50.0 pence, compared wilh
afall of 23.6 per cent in 2001/02.

Adjusted basic eamings per share decreasad by
4.1 per cent to 48.8 pence principally reflecting
the higher deferred tax charge offsstting the
increased operating profits from continuing
operations discussed above. This compares with
an increase of 26.3 per cent in 2001/02 reflecting
the impact of increased operating profits from
continuing operations and the benefit of a
higher deferred tax discount rate. The caiculation
of the adjusted earnings per share is set out n
rote 10 to the financial staterents.

The: dividend for the year is 47.6 pence, an
increase of 1.3 per cent,



Taxation

The cument UK mainstream corporation tax
credit in 2002/03 and fow charges in 2001/02
and 2000/01 reflect the effects of the high tevel
of accelerated tax alowances arising from the
capital investment undertaken by the group and
the benefits of ACT tax planning estabiished

in earlier years. A tax credit position has arisen
in the current year following agreement of prior
year tax returns.

The effective current ordinary tax credit {excluding
exceptional iterns) is 9.0 per cent compared with
a charge of 5.2 per cent and 3.8 per cent in
2001702 and 2000/01 respectively. The effects
of deferred tax increase the effective ordinary
tax charge {excluding exceptional items) to
17.6 per cent compared with 12,5 per cent
and 22.2 per cent in 2001/02 and 2000/01
respectively. An exceptional credit in 2002/03
of £9.4 million ncluding £3.1 million defered tax)
arises primarity on the adjustment to value in the
telecommunications business, Exceptional tax
of £69.0 milion on business disposals was also
charged in 2000/01, inchksding £24.0 wmillion of
deferred tax.

Deferred tax (excluding exceptional deferred
tax) is £85.9 milion in 2002/03 compared with
£23.0 million and £56.0 millien in 2001/02 and
2000/01 respectively. The increased charge

in 2002/03 is principally due to the effects

of lower gitt interest rates on the discount of
the full liability whereas the reduced charge in
2001/02 reflects the effect of a higher discount
rate compared with 2000/01.

Cash flows

Net cash inflow from operating activities
increased to £851.5 million, from £799.8 milion
in 2001/02 and £841.7 million in 2000/01.
The increase in 2002/03 refiects the increased
turnover and operating profits. The reduction in
2001/02 was principally as a result of increased
operating profits offset by an increase in
working capital mainly relating 1o the settlement
of outstanding cash balances following the
disposal of the energy supply business.

Tax payments remain very low reflecting the
benefits of previous tax planning and the
current tax charge discussed above.

A significant level of investment continues
to be made, mainly as a result of the water and
wastewater capital investment programime.

Cash receipts in respect of acquisitions and
disposals in 2002/03 ircluded the proceeds
from the disposal of our investment in US Water
offset by the investment in 7C. In 2001/02, the

acquisitions and dispesals cash flow included
cash settlements on the disposal of our energy
supply business and deferred consideration

on earlier telecommunications acquisitions.
Acquisitions and disposals cash flow was
boosted in 2000/01 by the proceeds from the
sale of the energy supply business in August
2000, offset by the purchase of Hyder Industrial
in December 2000, and the investment in our
jeint venture in Talinn, Estonia.

Dividend payments in 2002/03 represent
an increase in line with our dividend policy.

As aresult of the above, net borrowings
increased by £313.1 milion to £3,373.9 milion
at the year end. Gearing, measured as net
debt divided by total capital employed fbeing
equity shareholders’ funds plus net debt),
increased 1o 57.1 per cent, compared

with 54.9 per cent at 31 March 2002 and
52.1 per cent at 31 March 2001.

Treasury policy

Operating within policies approved by the
board, the group’s treasury function does not
act as a profit centre and does not undertake
any speculative trading activity. It seeks to
ensure sufficient funding is available to meet
foreseeable needs and maintains reasonable
headroom for contingencies. Long-term
borowings are structured or hedged to match
earnings, which are largely in steriing, indexed
to inflation and subject to regulatory price
reviews every five years. Exposure 1o interest
rate movements for the following twelve months
is largely efiminated at the start of each financial
year using short-term hedges. The credit quality
of counterparties and individual aggregate
exposures are reviewed annually.

Debt financing

Moody’s Investor Service rates the credit of
United Utilities PLC as A3 on & long-term basis
with a stable outiook and P-2 on a shert-term
basis. Equivalent ratings published by Standard
and Poar's Rating Senvices are BBB+ long-term
with a positive cutlook and A-2 short-term.

The group’s 4 bilion medium-term and US$1.5
billion shart-term note issuance programmes
continue to provide efficient sources of funding.
In addition, the group has a US$2 bilion shelf
registration in the name of the holding company
with the United States Securities and Exchange
Cornmission, which provides access to the US
bond market in a similer way to the European
medium-term note programme and increases
the flexibility of the group to raise finance.

During the year the group arranged £663 million

in term funding. This comprised £400 million in
various long-dated bonds; £28 million in five
year bonds; £10 million of additional European
Investment Bank facilities; £75 miliior in bank
term lpans; and time extensions for existing
medium-tern committed bank fagilities of
£150 million. Cash and short-term investments
at 31 March 2003 were £68% milion. Medium-
term bank facilities maturing in more than one
year, net of any uncommitted borrowings,
totalled £576 million. This, together with £60
milion of contracted, but undrawn, ferm funding
provides substantial pre-funding for the group’s
capital investment programme.

The group’s net debt of £3,373.9 million at

31 March 2003 comprised £2,825.1 miltion

of bonds, £715.8 million of loans from EIR,

our largest investor, £189.8 milkon of iong-term
leasing, £232.5 million of bank loans and
commercial paper, offset by £689.3 million

of cash and short-term invesiments.

Interest rate management

We manage interest rate exposure by secking
1o match financing costs as closely as possible
with the revenues generated by our assets.
Our exposure to interest rate fluctuations is
managed In the medium-term through the use
of interest rate swaps, and the use of financia!
futures contracts traded on LIFFE. The average
interest rate for 2002/03 was 6.9 per cent,
compared with 7.3 per cent in 2001/02 and
7.4 per cent in 2000/01.

QZL O-g*h\.

Simon Batey
Group finance director
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1 Sir Richard Evans (age 60)

Chairman

Sir Richard Evans was appointed a non-executive
diractor in September 1997 and chaitman in
January 2001. Bom in north wast England, he has
worked in the alrcraft and aerospace industry for
move than 30 years. He was appointed chaiman
of British Asrospace plc (now BAE SYSTEMS pic)
in May 1998. He has had a long association,
through BAC and BAe, with their Warton division
in Lancashire, where he was deputy managing
director from 1983 to 1986. Me joined the board
of British Aerospacs in 1987 as marketing director.
He was a director of the programme management
companies for the Anglo/French Jaguar aircraft
and for the Anglo/Genmanv/italian Tormado aircraft,
and a director of the Airbus company.

4 Gordon Waters (age 55)

Managing director

United Utilities Contract Solutions

Gorclon Waters is responsible for the group’s
infrastructure management business. He joined
the group in 1896, and was appointed to the
board in 1997, A qualified civil engineer and
structural engineer, he graduated from the City
University London in 1969, He jeined a major UK
consulting engineering practice before working for
a number of major UK construction companies.
From 1987 to 1996, he worked for Tarmac
GConstruction Limited, becoming managing
director of the civil enginaering division in 1992,
and joining the board of Tarmac Construction
Limited in 1993. He was responsible for all their
major projects and regional civil enginesring
companies and specialist companies both in the
UK and overseas. He is a non-executive director
of The Garbon Trust.

7 Jane Newell, OBE {age 59}

Non-exscutive director

Jane Newell joined the board as a non-executive
direcior in Septermber 1996. She is chaiman of
the United Utilities Pension Scheme and the United
Utilities group of the Blectricity Supply Pension
Scheme. After 10 years as an interational civi
servant, she joined the Liverpool School of Tropical
Medicine, and became chairman of Council from
1885 to 1997. In 1992, she was appointed founder
trustee and subsequently chairman of the Maxwell
Pensioners Trust and in 1997 receoived the OBE -
for this work. She is also a trustee of the
GlaxoSmithi<ine Pension Plan, trustee of the Dixon
Group's Pension Scheme, an external assessor
for the Home Office for promotions in the police,
prison and fire services, pro-chancellor and
chairman of tha board of govemers of London
South Bank University and a J.P,

2 John Robers {age 57)

Chief executive

John Roberts joined the board as chief executive
in September 1999. He had previousty been a
director of Hyder plc and chief executiva of Hyder
Utilities, and before that, chief executive of Sauth
Wales Hlectricity after its acquisition by Hyder.
Bafora joining Hyder in 1996, John had besn
chief executive of Manweb Pic from 1992, Having
graduated from Liverpoot University, he joined
Manweb in 1967, whers he was appointed finance
director in 1984 and managing director in 1991.
John is a non-executive director of Volex Plc. He
has been president of the Blectricity Association,
chaiman of the Blectricity Pension Trustees
Limited, a member of the CBI Walas Council

and a member of the Royal Commission on
Environmental Pollution.

5 Norman Broadhurst (age 61)

Chairman of the audit committee

Norman Broadhurst was appointed as a non-
exacutive diractor in April 1999. He retired from
his position as finance director with Raittrack
Group PLG in March 2000. Before joining Raittrack
in 1994, he was joknt deputy chief executive,
finance/commercial, with VSEL Pic and prior to that,
financs director. He worked for Platt Saco Lowel
Limited for 11 years from 1970, becoming finance
director. He joned the China Light and Power
Company Limited in Hong Kong in 1981 as financial
controfier and then divisional manager, finance and
administration. In 1986, he was appointed finance
director of United Engineering Steels Limited. He
joined VSEL. in 1990, He is chairman of Chioride
Group pic and Freightiner Limited and is also a
nor-executive director of Catties PLC, O Mutual
PLC and Tormkins PLC and deputy chairman of
Taylor Woodrow PLC.

8 John Seed (age 64)

Chairman of the remuneration committee

John Seed joined the board as a non-executive
director in March 1996. He was formerly chief
executive of South Western Electricity plc.

A chartered engineer, he spent 29 years in a
number of engineering and general management
posts with Eastern Electricity. He was appointed
deputy chairman of South Westem Blectricity in
1986, bacoming managing director at privatisation
and then chief executive in 1992. He is alse

a non-executive director of British Smaller
Companies VCT plc, Waste Pawer Limited,
Frazar-Nash Consultancy Limited and South
Waest Ventures. He was chairman of Great
Western Assured Growih plc from 1991 to 1997,
of Windelectric Limited fror 1996 to 1999 and
of Warren Associates Limited from 1998 to 2001.
He has held a number of other non-executive
directarships in the public and private sectors.

3 Siman Batey (age 49)

Group finance director

Simon Batey joined the board as group finance
director in April 2000. He had praviously been
group finance director of AMEC Plc from 1992
and prior to that deputy finance direcior. He was
closely involved in the reshaping of that group
through a number of major investments and
disposals and the development of its policy
towards private finance initistives. He also served
on the boards of Fairclough Homes Group Limited
and the major French electrical contractar SPIE
SA. After graduating from Oxford, Sirmon joined
Armitage & Norton (now part of KPMG) where he
trained and qualified as a chartered accountant,
and worked in a number of management posts.

6 Sir Peter Middleton {age 69}

Deputy chaiman and serior independent director
Sir Peter Middleton joined the board as

a non-executive director in Jaruary 1994,

After National Service, he joined HM Treasury,
sending as permanent secretary from 1983 to
1991, He is chairman of Barclays pic and

was deputy chairman of Barclays Bank and
chairman of Barclays Capitat from 1991 to May
1998. He has been a member of the Council of
the Manchester Business Schodl, the Financial
Reporting Council and the London Business
School. He is Chancallor of Sheffield Univeesity
and is chairman of Sheffield One.

9 Andrew Pinder {age 56)

MNor-exgoutive divectar

Andrew Pinder was appointed a non-executive
director on 1 September 2001. He has been

the Government’s e-Envay since October 2000.
He praviously worked for 18 years in the Inland
Revenue before moving to the private sector,
working for the Prudential Corporation as director
of systerms and business processes and then as
head of operations and technology for westem
Europe at Citbank. After performing other roles in
Citibank, including spells in New York, continental
Eurcpe and Dublin, Andrew left the bank in 1999,
Since leaving Citibark, he has been involved in
new technology related start-ups, as a pariner

in a venture capital fim, as well as carrying out a
number of management consultancy assignments
for the govemment including work an UK onfine.
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Directors’ report

Principal activities and business review

The company is the helding company of a group which manages and operates
electricity distribution, water and wastewater assets; manages infrastrugture and
business processss for its own and other businesses; and provides voice, basic
and advanced communication services fo the business customer mariet. The
principal subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures are listed in note 13 to the
financial statements. Details of acquisitions and disposals are in notes 13 and
31 to the financial staternents.

The chairman’s statement, the chief executive's review and the operational,
corporate responsibility and financial reviews on pages 1 to 29 report on the
group’s activities during the year and on likely future developments.

The business for the annual general meeting

Details of the resclutions to be proposed at the 2003 annual general meeting
are sét out in the notice calling the meeting, There is also a full explanation of
the resolutions in the leaflet containing the notice, enclosed with this report,

The dividend for sharsholders

The directors are recommending a final dividenyd of 32.1 pence for each ordinary
share {or the year ended 31 March 2003, making a total for the year of 47.6 pence.
Subject to sharehelders approving this recommendation at the annual general

At 1 April 2002 or upon appeintment

meeting, the dividend will be paid on 29 August 2003 to shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 27 June 2003,

The directors

The names of the present directors and their biegraphical details are given on
page 31. L.es Dawson resigned on 25 March 2003. John Roberts, Gordon Waters
and Jane Newell are standing, and are recommended by the board for re-election,
at the 2003 annual general meeting.

Purchase of own shares

At the 2002 annual general meeting, the company was authorised by the
sharehokders to purchase, in the market, up t© 55,599,589 of its own ordinary
shares of £1 each which represented ten per cent of the company's issued share
ordinary capital as at 31 May 2002, No shares were purchased pursuant to this
authority during the year. This autherity is renewable annually and approval will
be sought from shareholders at the 2003 annual general meeting to renew the
authority for a further year.

Directors’ interests

At 31 March 2003, the directors and their immediate famiies had the following
interests, all of which were beneficial interests, in the company’s shares and
opticns to subscribe for shares:

At 31 March 2003

Share Deferred Shate Deferred

Shares options shares Total Shares options shares Total
John Roberts 3,000 3,579 26,047 32,626 35,214 3,579 15,264 54,057
Simon Batey 42,150 1,740 11,675 55,565 40,464 1,740 12,732 63,936
Gordon Waters 19,789 2,290 15,029 37,108 26,595 2,621 8,850 38,066
Sir Richard Evans 245 - - 245 245 - - 245
Morman Broadhurst 34 - - 3 M - - M
Sir Peter Middleton 4,574 - - 4,574 4,574 - - 4,574
Jane Newell 3,356 - - 3,356 4,356 - - 4,356
Andrew Pinder - - - - - - - -
John Seed 4,076 - - 4,076 5,535 - - 5,535
Notes:

» Each executive director is a member of the class of discretionary beneficiaries of the United Utilities Employee Share Trust and is therefore treated as having an interest
in the 171,679 shares held by United Uttilites Employee Share Trust Limited as frustee of the United Utilities Employee Share Trust at 31 March 2003, As at 21 May 2003,

United Lkifities Employee Share Trust Limited held 171,679 shares.,

« Except as described above, none of the directors had any interest in any share capital of any other group company or in any debenture of any group campany.

» From the end of the financial year unti 21 May 2003, there have been the following changes in the above interests:

On 17 April 2003, John Roperts, Simon Batey and Gordon Waters each acquired 20 shares pursuant to the ShareBuy share incentive plan.

On 24 April 2003, John Seed's wife reinvested a dividend in the United Utilities personal equity plan and thereby acquired a further 20 shares.

Qi 19 May 2003, John Roberts, Simen Batey and Gordon Waters sach acquired 21 spares pursuant 1o the ShareBuy share incentive pian.
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. Directors’ report (continued)

People - key contributors to corporate success

The group's employees are key to achieving the business strategy and enhanvcing
shareholder value. The group is making special efforts 1o reeruit new employees
from ethnic minority communities and is seeking more applications from people
with disabilities. A review of key employes and safety issues arising in the year is
contained within the corporate responsibility review on pages 20 to 25.

United Utilties is committed to achieving the highest standards of health and
safety in every area of its business. Health and safety risks are managex) through
business specific policies and management systerns, which together with
established consultative arrangements have the full commitment of the board
and chief executive. Our risk profile is characteristic of a large mutti-utility but is
continually changirg as the business develops and wilises innovalive technology
such as sludge drying plant and wind farms. Full attention is given to managing
these risks from design stage onwards.

The majority of accidents continue to involve manual handling and ‘skps, trips
and fails’, which together accounted for 74 per cent of all lost time acciclents last
year. Exisling behaviour-based programmes therefore continue and their use has
been extended.

We met lasl year's short-térm heaith and safety targets, and bave changed the
focus from the use of trailing indicators to more proactive measures, designed to
influence and predict future performance, During the year, we developed a new
methodology for measuring risk reduction resulting from planned impravements.
In addition, we have widened centrally-reported performance data to include,

for example, contractors' performance. Working collaboratively, bath with our
contractors and with our clients on new contracts, remains a key goal for us. Qther
achisvements included group-wide implementation of a driving at work programme.

The greup continues to recognise, and work in partnership with, a range of

trade unions operating acress the sectors in which it operates. A statament of
pringiples underpins the approach to labour relations across the group. Changes
to employment legistation in the UK are increasing the numbers of employees
embraced by collective bargaining arrangaments. Giood indusirial relations remains
a priority for United Utilities across the whole of its business and parts of the group
have been recognised in the UK for excellence in this area.

In particular, our Service Delivery business has committed to work more closely
with five tradke unions {Unison, Amicus, Prospect, GMB and T&GWU] and collective
loargaining for 4,200 ernployees is a major part of this commitment. 1t has also
established a consultation process and guidelines to manage the relationship.

Tre group is committed 1@ improving its employees” skills, Through training

and development and nurturing a culture in which they feel valued, the group
encourages them to wark to thelr full potential. The group respects the dignity
and rights of every employee, Supports them in performing various mles in sodiety,
and chalienges prejudice and stereotyping. The group is equally committed

to involving them through open and regular communications about business
developments and issues of general interest, both formally and informally,

Owning shares in the company is an important way of strengthening employees'
involvement in the development of the business and of bringing together their and
shareholders” interests, The group encourages and befps employess to participate
in its share schemes and accepts responsibility to provide financial education to
employess, in particular, to make employees aware of the risk involved in trilding
up a large stake in a single stock. Accordingly, the company makes available a
multi-stock United LUitilities ISA for employees who wish to invest in a more diverse
portfolio and facilitates access for employees to independent financial advisors.

The success of these initiatives was recognised when the company won the
ProShare Award for ‘Best Finangial Education Programme for Employees® for the
third year running in December 2002, n May 2003 the company was alsa proud
to receive an award from Employee Benefits magazine for ‘Most Effective Share
Scheme Strategy”.
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Fuilling social and environmental responsibilities

As degeribed in the corporate responsiniity review on pages 20 to 25, the group
seeks 10 manage its total impact on society as a responsible corporate citizen.
Full detalls are set out in the company's separate corporate responsibility report,
which is an important part of the company’s integrated approach to reporting on
the group’s overall performance, together with the annual report, the annual review
and the website.

Political and charitable donations
Charitable donations by the group in the year amounted to £1,015,310
(2002 - £755,392).

The group's policy Is nat 1o make any donations Tor political purposes. However,
the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 200G has redefined the term
‘donation’ very widety and, as a result, certain expenses legitimately incurred as
part of the process of taking to government at all levels and making our position
kriown, are now reportable, At the last annual general meeting an authority was
taken to cover such expenditure, Pursuant 1o that authority, in the year the
company sponsored a fringe event at the Labour Party 2002 annual conference
at a cost of £4,000 (2002 - £nl).

Approach to technology development

The group is committed ta wse innovative, cost-etfective and practical
solutions for providing high quality services. It also continues to make full

use of the wide-ranging expertise, abliies and facilities within the group.

it recognises the importance of ensuring that it properly focuses its investment
in the development of technology, that it has the right skils to apply techneology
to achieve sustainable competitive advantage, and that it continues to be

alert to emerging technological opportunities,

Substantial shareholdings in the company
At 21 May 2003, the directors were aware of the following notifiable interests
in the company's issued ordinary share ¢apital:

Company Data notified No. of shares %
Legal & General Group PLC 24 January 2003 18,562,270 333
Bardlays PLC 12 May 2003 16,911,891 3.04

Creditor payment policy and practice

The group does not follow any specific external code or standard on payment
practice. its policy is normally to pay suppliers according to ferms of business
agreed with them on entering into binding confracts and to keep to the payment
terms provicing the relevant goods or senvices have been supplied in accordance
with the contracts. The group and the company had 60 days (2002 - 57 days)
and 35 days {2002 - 36 days) respectively of purchases outstanding at the end
of the financial year.

Independent auditor

As was reported in last year's annual report and at the last annual general
meeting, the board began a formal tender process for audit services in May 2002
to ensure that the company continued to receive best valua. As a result, on

9 September 2002 the directors accepted the resignation of KPMG Audit Ple and
appointed Deloitte &Touohe in their place. The directors will propose a resolution
at the annual general m 7] e-appomttng Deloitte & Touche as independent
auditer 1o the oompany

yihe ard on 21’May 2003 and signed on its behalf by

Mt




Report on governance

The Gombined Gode

The board is committed to high standards of corporate governance, Throughout
the year to 31 March 2003, the company has been in compliance with the
provisions set out In Section 1 of The Combined Code Principles of Good
Governance and Code of Best Practice’ issued by the Financial Services Authority.
This staternent together with the remuneration report on pages 38 to 44 describes
the way in which these principles of governance are applied within the company.

The board
The board is scheduled to mest ten times each year with additional meetings
called if required.

Tre: Doard has a jomnat schedue of matiers reserved 1o i, which ensures that

it takes all major strategy, policy and investment decisions affecting the group.

In particular it is responsible for business planning and risk management and for
the development of group policies including such areas as health and safety, and
on sodial, enwironmental and ethical issues,

The board has adopted policies governing the rights of directors to obtain
independent professional advice. The board also has acoess to the senvices of
tha company secretary who is responsible to the board for ensuring that board
procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied
with. The appointment or remaoval of the company secretary is a matter reserved
for the decision of the board.

The board has established a governance framework which encourages all
directors to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
performance, rescurces, including key appointments and standards of conduct,

Suitable training is made available to all directors upen ficst appaintment and
subsequently as necessary.

Delegating and working through committees

The directors of subsidiary companies are responsible at law for those business
enfiies, They are tasked with the delivery of the targets set within the budgets
approved by the group board and for the implementation of group strategy and
policy across their businesses. United Utiliies Water PLC, for example, is a sizeable
business in #s own fight and its board includes two independent non-executive
direciors {Phillida Entwistle and Deborah Morton).

The group’s governance structura ensures that all decisions are made by the
most appropriate people in such a way that the decision-making process itself
does not unnecessarily delay progress. The board has formally delegated specific
responsibilities to board committees, including the audit, remuneration, approvals,
nomination and treasury committees.

The roles of the audit and remuneration committees are described on pages 36
and 39 respectively.

The approvals committee congiders and approves experxditure and investment
proposals within limits delegated by the board. Its members arg the executive
direciors, the group strategic planning direcior and the company secretary,

The nominaticn committee meets on an ad hoe basis and considers and makes
recommendations to the board ¢on the composition, balance and membership of
the board. tts members are the non-executive directors, including the chairman
{who is chaiman of the commitiee) together with the chief executive.

The treasury comrmittes congiders and approves borrowing, leasing, bonding and
other barking facilities within limits set by the board. Its members are the chairman,
the chief executive, the group finance director and one of the other executive
directors together with, for mare significant or complex transactions, one other
non-axecutive director.

Chairman and chiaf executive
Separate individuals have been appointed to the positions of chairman and of
chief executive, The board has agreed clearly defined responsibilities for the roles

and has adopted a set of guiding principles to govern the relationship between
them. The chaimman is pimarily responsible for the working of the board. The chigf
executive is responsible for running the business and for implementing board
strategy and poficy.

Senior independent director

Sir Peter Middteton has been appointed as serior independent director.

The: terms of reference of the senior independent director state that his primary
ity is 10 ensure that the views of each non-executive direcior are given due
consideration. Other duties of the post include authority to call a meeting of
the non-executive directors and 10 conduct periodic performance appraisals

of the chaimman,

Board balance

The board aims to maintain a bafance of executive and non-executive directors.
The directors have a wide and diverse range of business experience and expertise
as their biographies on page 31 demonstrate. There are presently thiee executive
and six non-executive directors. All non-executive directors are independent and
free from any business or other relationship that could compromise their
independent judgerent,

Supply of information

The quality of the centribution that directors, particularly non-executives,

can make is directly dependent on the quality of the information they receive.
Accordingly, 2l directons receive comprehensive information on & regular basis.
Board papers are nomally distributed a week in advance of the relevant meeting
1o allow sufficient time for directors to be fully brisfed. The papers are sufficiently
detailed to enable the directors t© obtain a thaorough grasp of the management
and financial performance of the company and the operating businesses.
Mrutes of committee meetings are circutated to all board members.

Appointments to the board

The hoatd initially appoints all new directors, having first considered
recommendations made to it by the nomination committee, Following such
appointment, the director is required to retire and seek election at the next annual
general meeting, There is a process of ratation which ensures that approximatety
one-third of 2l directors are required 1o retite and seet Te-election at eath annual
general meeting, and that no director serves for more than three years without
being proposed for re-election at an annual general meeting.

Shareholders

Publications and the web

The intetim report, the annual repoit and the annual review remain the primary
means the board has of communicating during the year with all the company’s
sharehoklers, However, the board recognises the importance of the internet

as @ means of cormmunicating widely, quickly and cost-eflectively. A library

of information about the company is avallable 24 hours-a-day, world-wide at
www.unitedutiities.com, Financial news releases are made available on the site
contemnporaneousty with release through other news channgls and anyone with
an email address can register free of charge to receive an emall alert upon the
posting of each new release.

Institutional shareholders

There is a programme of investor meetings and presentations which take

place throughout the year, both & the UK and overseas. During the year,
representatives of the board met, or offered to meet with, 95 different funds,
repregenting 50 per cent of the company's issued share capital. This, together
with regular announcements of significant events affecting the group and frequent
updates on current frading, emphasises our commitment to keep our equity and
debt investors informed of developments affecting the group. The board regards
this programme as important to improve investors’ awareness of the business
and for the board to gain an understanding of investors’ priorities.
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. Report on governance (continued)

The annual general meeting

The hoard encouragas shareholders to exercise their right to vote at the

annual general meeting, The notice calling the meeting is sent to shareholders at
least 20 working days before the meeting and separate resolutions are proposed
on each substantially separate issue. Presentations are made on the progress
and performance of the business prior to the formal business of the meeting.
Sharehclders are encouraged to participate through a question and answar
session and individual directors or, where appropriate, the chairman of the
relevant committee, respond to those questions directly, For the first time at

the 2003 annual general mesting, voting on all resolutions will take place by
means of a poll which will ensure that the votes of those shareholders who are
unable to attend the meeting are taken into account according to the number

of shares they hold. Shareholders have the opportunity to talik informally 1o the
directors before and after the formal proceedings.

Accountability and audit

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the accourits

The directors are responsible for preparing, in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985, financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the company's and the group's state of affairs as at the end of the financial
year, and of the profit or [03$ and cash flows for the financial year,

The directors consider that, in preparing the fnancial statements, the group

has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently appfied and supported
by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. All applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject to any departure and explanation
described in the notes to the accounts.

The directors have a legal responsibility for ensuring that the company keeps
accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the
company's and the group’s financial position arkd which enable them to ensure
the financial statemenits comply with the Companies Act 1955. The directors also
have a general legal responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to safeguard the company’s and the group’s assets and to prevent and
detect fraud and other iregularities,

The external auditor’s staterment about its reporting responsibilities is set ¢ut on
page 45,

Financial reporting and going concemn

In presenting the annual and interim financial statements and similar significant
publications, the directors aim to present a balanced and understandable
assessment of the company’s position and prospects. The directors have adepted
the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements. This is based
upen a review of the group’s budget for 2002404, tne five-year business pian and
investment programme, together with the cash and committed borrowing facilities
available to the group. The board also took into account potential contingent
liabilities and other risk factors as interpreted by the ‘Guidance on Going Concern
and Financial Reporting for Cirectors of Listed Companies registered in the United
Kingdom', published in November 1994,

Internal control system - ting and ging risk

The board is responsible for the group’s internal contrel framework and for
reviewing its effectiveness. Throughaut the year under review and up to the date
of this report, the board has operated procedures meeting the requirements

of the Combined Code refating to internal contro! as set out in the Septesnber
1999 guidance 'Infernal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code’
produced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Each
year the board reviews alt controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management procedures. The internal control system is designed
o manage, rather than to eliminate, the fisk of fallure Yo achieve the group’s
business objectives and can only provide reascnable, and not absclute, assurance
against material misstaternent or loss,
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The key features of the internal control system are:

~ A control environment with clearly defined organisation structures operating within
a framework of policies and procedures covering every aspect of the business;

- Comprenensive business planning, risk assessment and financial reporting
procedures including the annual preparation of detailed eperational budgets
for the year ahead and projections for subsequent years;

- A monthly board review of financial and non-financial key performance indicators
to assess progress towards cbjectives;

- Monthly meetings prior to each board meeting of the executive leadership
team, a forumn in which the executive directors, the managing directors of the
group's businesses, the group functional directors and the company secretary
exchange information and discuss strategic and operational issues which are
of group-wide importance;

— Regular monitoring of risks and control systems throughotat the year by the
aperating busiresses, supported by the use of risks and issues datahases;

- A seif-certification process, subject to internal audit, whereby the operating
busingsses are required to confirm that the system of internal control is
operating effectively;

— An intemal awdit function to provide independent scrutiny of internal control
systems and risk management procedures;

- A bi-monthly risk management forum chaired by the group finance director, and
comprising the company secretary, the group internal audit manager, the group
health and safety rmanager and senior representatives from each of the operating
husinesses, 1o scrutinise key risks in depthy;

- A quarterly sustainable development panet chaired by the chief executive,
and comgxising the managing directors of United Utilities Service Delivery and
United Utiliies Contract Solutions, the head of environment and the community
and three external professional specialists, Walter Menzies, Clive Jeanes and
Dr Mark Everard. The role of the torum is to advise on environmental policy and,
in particular, to identify risks to the ervironment, recommend targets, and monitor
performance against those targets;

- An annual risk assessment exercise involving self-assessment by management
of alt business risks in terms of impact, likelhood and centrol strength and an
objective ¢hallenge of that assessment by the intemal audit tearn;

-~ An annual heatth and safety performance review camied cut by our in-house
safety professionals in addition to the normnal health and safety risk assessment
and management processes carried on within ¢ach of the operating businesses;

~ Centralised treasury operations operating within defined firmits and subject to
regular reporting requirements and intemal audit reviews; and

- Established procedures, set out in a group internal control manual, for planning,
approving and menitoring major capital expenditure, major projects and the
development of new business which includes short and long-term budgets,
risk evaluation, detailed appraisal and review procedures, defined authority tevels
and post-investment performance reviews.

The audit committee and the auditor

‘The audit committee has written terms of reference which clearty set out its
authority and duties. The members of the committes are the non-executive
directors, in¢luding the chaitman, all of whom are independent. Noman Broadhurst
is its chairman. The committee met four times in the year to 31 March 2003.

The audit committes reviews the intemal and external audit activities, monitors
compliance with statutory requirements for financial reporting and reviews the half-year
and annual financial statements before they ara submitted to the board for approval.

It also keeps under review the effectiveness of the group’s internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management




procedures), | alsh considers reports from the internal andd external auditors and from
management and reports and makes recommendations ta the board.

The audit committee keeps under review the scope and results of the extemal
audit, its cost effectiveness, the independence and objectivity of the auditor and
the rature and extent of non-audit services supplied to the group by the external
auditor, $eeking t¢ balance the maintenance ¢f objectivity and value for money.

In Miay 2002, the board began a formal tender process for audit services to
ensure that the company continued to receive best value. As a result Deicitte &
Touche were appointed in place of KPMG Audit Pk as auditor to the company
on 9 September 2002. In the year under review the fees paid to the continuing
andd retiring auditors were as follows:

Fees payable to the former auditor, KPMG Audit Plc, up to date of resignation:

2003 2002
Hom, £'000 £1000
Audit fees - 395
Auciit refated fees 310 538
Tax fees 97 33
Other {ees 20 76
Total 497 1,042

Fees payables to Deloitte & Touche following appeintment as auditor:

2003
Hem £'000
Audit fees 505
Audit related fees 168
Tax fees 200
Cther fees 149
Total 1,022

Notes:

* Audit related {ees are fees billed for assurance work reasonably refated to the
statutory audit, including due diligence and assurance work, work associated
with raising finance and securities filing work,

* Tax fees are fees incurred for tax compliance, tax advice and related tax work.
» Other fees incurred refate to project and financia rmodelling work.

» In 2003, £265,000 of tax and other fees were paid 1o Deloitte & Touche under
engagements commenced prior to their appointment as auditor which have
subsequently been completed.

All non-statutory audit or non-statutory tax compliance sendces provided by the
Auditer Must be reported to the audit committee and pror approval is teguired
from the senior independent director for any such projects. In granting such
approval, be is required to consider the curmnulative proportion of fees paid for
such work compared with the statutory audlit fees.

New developments in the field of corporate governance

In the past year there have been a number of new initiatives in the field of corporate
gavernance, In the UK, the Higgs Report and the Smith Report on Audit Committees
have been published. The board has considered the recommendations carefully and
has parficipated in the consultation process. It will consider any necessary changes
upon publication of the final combined code. In the USA, where the company
maintains a listing, the main developments were the passing of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 and also the infroduction of new listing exchange requirements. The
beard is implementing regulations under the Act as they are brought into force and
in the ight of emerging best practice.
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Directors’ remuneration report

REWARD PHILOSOPHY

To ensure corporate success and enhance sharehalder value, the group needs people of the right calibre able to meet and beat the challenges it faces. So the group
must ensure its remuneration arangemsnts attract and keep the right people.

The groups overall philosophy is to:

- attract, develop, motivate and keep talented people at all fevels;

- pay competitive salaries and benefits to all its staff;

- encourage its staff ta hold shares in the company; and

~ focus remuneration arrangements 10 help each business in the group meet its specific challenges.

When pay levels are set, acoount is taken of the work an employee does, what is paid in other companies for that work and how well the group’s busingsses are
performing. The beard believes that share ownership is an effective way of tringing together the interests of employees and shareholders. The company premotes
greater ownership of its shares by offering employees the opporiunity to build up a shareholding theough its share schemes - the company share option plan 1999,
the 'ShareSave' SAYE share option scheme ard the share incentive plan, 'ShareBuy’,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Board committees
A committee of the board decides the remuneration of the non-exscutive directers {other than the ¢chairman). Its members are the chairman (Sir Richard Evans)
and the executive directors (John Roberts, Simon Batey and Gordon Waters). Les Dawson alse served as a member of the committee up to 25 March 2003.

A separate committes of the board decides the remuneration of the chairman. This committes comprises the chief executive (John Roberts) and five non-executive
directors: Nomnan Broadnurst, Sir Peter Middteton, Jane Newel, Andrew Pinder and John Seed.

Both committees may take independent advice. The committees are also advised by the group's human resources director (Bavid Scott to 31 December 2002;
Linda Booth from 1 January 2003). Both committees met once during the year.

Terms of appointment
Non-executive directors are appointed for an initial period of three years, which may be renewed for further three-year terms thereafter. However, as with all directors,

they are subject 1o re-election at an annual general meeting at least every three years. They do not have ¢ontracts of service and, in the event of early termination of their
appointment for whatever reason, they are not entitied to compensation,

Table 1: Non-executive directors’ terms of appointment Date st Date of last Re-glection Compensation
appointed apponiment no later than MNotice upon early

to board AGMin AGMin period tenmination

Sir Richard Evans 01.09.1997 2001 2004 none nona
Sir Peter Middleton 01.01.1904 2001 2004 none none
Norman Broachurst 01.04.1939 2002 2005 none none
Jane Newell 01.09.1996 2000 2003 nong none
Arrdrere Pircer 01.09.2001 2002 2006 none none
Johr Seed 01.03.1996 2002 2005 none none

Policy statement on non-executive directors' remuneration

The company's policy is to pay annual fees which reflect the responsioifities placed upon the non-executive directors. Fees are reviewed pericdically. When reviewing fees,
account is taken of the level of fees paid in companies of similar size and compiexity, There are separate annual fees for the ¢hairman, deputy chairman and the other
non-executive directors. Additional fees are paid to the chaimen of the audit and remuneration committees (Norman Broadhurst and John Seed respéctivetyl. The fee
paid to Jane Newell inciudes an amount to reflect additional respansibilities as chairman of the trustees of the company’s major pension schemes.

Nor-execiudive directars do not participate in any bonus or incentive plan, the pension scheme, the healthcare arrangements, the company share option plan 1999,
ShareSave scheme or ShareBuy. The company repays the reasonable expenses they incur In carrying out their duties as directors.

Non-executive directors’ remuneration

Non-executive directors’ fees, with the exception of those of the chainman, were increased bt May 2002. The previous revienw was in Mey 1999, Sir Richard Evans
dedined a proposéd increase in his fee as chaimman, The annual fee paid to Sir Peter Middicton, deputy chairman, was increased from £50,000 to £60.000. The fee paid
to Jane Newell was increased from £45,000 to £55,000. The annual fee pald to the remaining non-executive directors was increased from £30,000 to £35,000. The
additional fee paid 1o the chairmen of the audit and remuneration commitiees was unchanged at £5,000 & year. The next review is due in May 2004,

Nor-exetutive directors” remuneraion for the vear 10 31 March 2003 is set ow in table 2.
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Table 2: Non-executive directors’ fees (audited information)

Total fees

2003 2002

£000 i)

Sir Rjichasd Evans 180.0 180.0

Nomman Broadhurst 39.6 35.0

Sir Peter Middleton 59.2 50.0

Jane Newell 54.2 45.0

Andrew Finder <R X 17.5

John Seed 39.6 35.0

Totals 407.2 362.5
Notes:

» £50,000 of Sir Richard Bvans’ total annual fee of £180,000 for 2002/03 was paid to BAE Systerns pla.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration committes

The remuneration committee makes recommendations to the board on the group's framework of executive remuneration and its cost, The committee approves, on the board’s
behalf, the general recruitment terms, remuneration benefits, employment conditions and severance terms for executive management. &t decides the specific recruitment terms,
remuneration benefits, employment conditions, pension rights, compensation payments and severance terms for the executive directors and for other senior executives.

The committee’s members are Norman Broadhurst, Sir Richard Evans, Sir Peter Middleton, Jane Newell, Andrew Pinder and John Seed (who is the committee’s
chairmnany. They are all indepentdent non-executive dirsciors. They have no personal financial interest in the company other than as shareholders and the fees paid to them
as non-executive directors. They have no conflicis of interest arising from cross directorships and are not invaived in the day-to-day running of the group’s businesses.

The comrmittee has appointed Mercer Human Resource Consulting to advise it on executive remuneration. They are afso the actuaries to one of the comparty's pension
schemes {United Utiiities Pension Scheme (UUPS)) and advise the company oh matters relating to its operation. Adtdieshaw Goddard provide legal advice on the operation of
the group's share incentive and share option plans, including drafting the rules and advising on their interpretation. They also provide general legal advice to the company and
other companies in the group.

The committes is also assisted by the chief executive (Jobn Roberts} who is consulted on proposals relating to the remuneration of the other executive directors and
senior expcutives. Assistance is provided by the group human resources director (David Scott to 31 December 200G2; Unda Booth from 1 January 2003). The chief
executive and group human resources director attend meetings except when the committee discusses matters relating to their own remuneration.

in its work, the committee considers fully the principfes of good governance and the code of best practice. The committee met five times in the year to 31 March 2003,
The beard accepted the committee’s recommendations without amendment. The chairman of the board ensures the company tatks 10 its major sharehciders, when
appropriate, about matters to do with remuneration.

Policy staternent oh executive directors’ remuneration
The board's policy for executive directors’ and senior executives’ remuneration is to:

~ pay a basic salary which competes with other companies of about the same size and complexity;

- use shart and long-term incentives to encourage executives to outperform key targets, thereby giving them the opportunity to increase their eamings;

- encourage executives to nold shares in the company; and

—overall, reward executives fairly and responsibly for their contribution to the group's shert and long-tetmn performanse and avoid paying more than is necessary for
achieving this objective.

In deciding the executive directors’ total remuneration package and ingdividual elements of it, the remuneration commitiee assesses where the company should be

positioned relative to other companies. it makes appropriate comparisans but treats them with caution. The company aims to pay about the market median but may pay

mare for an cutstanding performer or to attract executives of the right calibre. Eamings may be increased through the operation of annual and long-term incentive pians.

The incentive plans are designed 1o encourage and reward out-performance, They link executives’ rewards directly to the groups performance and sharehoiders” interests,

The company expects executive directors and other senior executives to acquire and hold shares at k&ast to the value of their basic pay. T assist them in satisfying this
minimum share ownership target, it may pay incentive awards partly or wholly in shares.

The committee aims for an appropriate balance between fixed and variable rewards. Fixed rewards include:

- basic salary;

— & car akowance of company oar and fuel for private mileage;
- medical insurance; and

~ pension benefits.

The taxable value of the car, fuel, medical insurance and fife insurance element of pension benefits are included in *other benefits” in the table opposite,

Variable rewards take the form of the annual bonus and the performance share plan. These rewards are performance based and provide each executive director with the
opportunity to earn up to a further 60 per cent and 80 per cent of basic salary respectively each year. Together, this is almost 60 per cent of their total annual reward
opportunity {excluding pension benefits}). Detalled poficy in refation to each element of executive directors’ remuneration is set out balow. The board continually reviews its
pdlicy in the light of emerging best practice.
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. Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Executive directors’ remuneration
Executive directors” remuneridion during the year ended 31 March 2003 is shown in table 3.

Table 3: Execulive directors’ remuneration (audited information)

A B c D

Long-term incentive vasting

Georss salary Sownal borus Qttver benefs Torel emchuments  during the year ended 31 March

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

£000 £000 £000 £°000 000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

John Roberts 429.2 366.7 228.2 2101 30.6 21.8 688.0 588.6 - -
Simon Batey 291.7 271.7 155.1 155.6 17.9 18.7 464.7 444.0 - -
Les Dawson 222.9 208.8 118.6 119.6 19.7 0.0 361.2 378.4 - -
Gordon Waters 221.7 198.8 117.9 1139 24.2 18.3 363.8 321.0 - -
Totals 1,165,5 1,046.0 £19.8 599.2 924 106.8 1,877.7 1,752.0 - -

Notes:

» John Roberts was the highest paid director in the year ended 31 March 2003,

= No fong-term: incentives vested during the year {see fong-term incentive plan in section D below).

» Other bengfits for 2001/02 include relocation costs of £31,700 for Les Dawson.

* Les Dawson resigned from the board on 25 March 2003, His emoluments for 2003 refate to the period up to and including the date of his resignation as a directar.

It is anticipated that he will continue to be employed by the company until 31 August 2003,
A Salary

The committee reviews salaries each year taking account of group and personal performance. Any changes are made with effect from 1 September. The committee
commissions independent assessments of market rates based on the practice of other utility companies and companies of a similar size and complexity. The commitiee
also takes account of the levels of pay awards elsewhere in the group.

Following its annual review in 2002, the committee agreed the following changes to the annual salaries of executive directors:

Table 4: Executive directors' salary review

1 September 2002 1 September 2001

£'000 £000

John Roberts 450.0 400.0

Simon Batey 300.0 280.0

Les Dawson 235.0 2150

Gordon Waters 230.0 2100
B Annual bonus

Tre annual bonus is designed to motivate executive directers and other senior executives to achieve the group’s key operational and strategic objectives. The masdmum
award is 60 per cent of anhual salary. Directors are rewarded according to the company's financial and noa-financial performance for the year and the achievement of
indivitual targets. Targets are set sach year. The non-financial and individual targets may include measures related to customer service and enwironmental performance

and performance against other key stakeholder measures. Annual bonus awards may be made partly or wholly in shares where a participant hag still to satisfy the
company’s minimum share ownership target.

{a) 2003/04

The financial performance measures 1o be used for determining annual bonuses for 2003/04 are profit before exceptional items, interest and tax (PBEIT} and profit before
exceptional items and tax (PBET). A maximum award of 24 per cent of salary is allocated to each measure. Cne-quarter of the maximum awards becomes payable when
threshold targets are met, Awards increase in value on a straight fine basis untd half of the maximum award is payable for achieving a target midway between the threshold and
stratch targets. Awards continue to ncrease in value on a straight line basis between the intermediate and stretoh targets at which point the maxiraum award is payable. Thus,
there is greater incentivisation 1o achieve stretch targets. The stretch targets are demanding and achievernent represents rasults which are in excess of expectations, One-fitth

of the annual bonus, accounting for 12 per cent of salary, will depend on: achieving improvements in environmental performance measuzed by the group's score in the Business
in the Environment (BIE} index; employee related targets, measured by results achieved in the group’s culture change programme; and the achievernent of individual objectives.
) 2002/03

The financial measures for the determination of annual bonuses for 2002/03 were also PBET andd PBET. The maxinmurm bonus opporunity alfocated 10 these targets was

48 per cant, the same as for 2003/04. The results for the year showed that although the stretch PBET target was achieved, the stretch PBEIT was not. The total payable for
performance against financial targets was, therefore, 47,18 per ¢ent. Non-financial targets accounted for up 1o 12 per ¢ent of salary. 6 per cent was divided between thiee customer
senvice targets (ntermuptions in electricity supply, achisvement of Ofiwat levels of service for water supply and popuation served by failng wastewater treatrnent works), 3 per cent was
based on the group score in the BIE index and 3 per cent based on UCan group scofes in the 2003 cuiture profie emplovee questionnaie. The environmental and ermmployes-related
targets were achieved; the customer service tangets were not, Therefore 6 per cent bonus was payabile bringing the overall bonus payable to a total of 53.18 per cent of salary.
(¢) Prior year annual boruses paid in deferred shares

The whele of the annual bonus awards for John Roberts and Gordon Waters in 2000 and half of the value of awards for all of the executive directors in 2001 were
satisfied by the grant of contingent rights to receive shares in the company to be purchased in the market by the company’s employee share trust. The right to these
shares may be forfeited in certain circumstances if an executive is not in the company's empleyment when the shares are due to be transferred to him from the trust.

The compary does not match the number of deferred shares and there are no additional performance measures asseciated with the release of these shiares (gea table b).
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Table 5: Executive directors’ contingent interests in deferred shares relating to past bonus awards (audited information)

Award in Contingent nterest in Contingert interest in Contngent interest in Shares transterred 1o Contingent inferest in

respect of shares at date of award shares at 1 Apri 2002 shares added during the year executive during the year sharas at 31 March 2003

Valg Value Value Valve Value

MNa. £000 No, £'000 No, £'000 Na, £'000 No. £'006

John Acberts 2000 10,471 69.8 12,050 73.6 - - 12,050 78.2 - -
2001 12,906 84.15 13,997 855 1.267 75 - - 15,264 £9.4

Simon Batey 2001 10,766 70.2 11,675 71.3 1,057 6.2 - - 12,732 746
Les Dawson 2001 3,450 22.5 3.741 229 338 20 - - - -
Gardon Waters 2000 6,008 401 6.913 422 6913 448 - -
2001 7.484 48.8 8,116 49.6 734 4.3 - - 8,850 51.9

Notes:

» The 2000 arnual Donus awards were made under the former short-term incentive plan. The contingent interest in shares at the date of award was the value of the
bonuses for that year which were paid wholly as contingent shares to be held in trust for two years, based on a share price of 667.0 pence. This was the average
of the mid-rarket price of a share over the 30 business days starting 15 business days before 31 March 2000.

* The 2001 awards were made on 1 June 2001 under the terms of the deferred share plan whereby 50 per cent of the value of the annual borus was paid as
contingent shares o be held in trust for three years, based on a share price of 652.0 pence. This was the average of the mid-market price of a share for the three
business days immediately pror to 1 June 2004,

* The value of the cantingent interest in shares on 1 April 2002 is based on the mid-market price of a share on 28 March 2002 of 611.0 pence being the last trading
day immediately prior to that date.

* The contingent interest in shares added during the year is calculated by taking the values of notional dividends payable on 1 Cotober 2002 and 10 February 2003
on tha shares in trust and dividing by the mid-market price of a share on those dates. These were 588.5 pence and 593.0 pence respedtively.

+ 12,050 and 6,913 shares in respect of their 2000 awards were transferred to John Roberts and Gordon Waters respectively upon their release from the plan on
30 May 2002. The values on the date of transfer were £78,168 and £44,845 respectively, based on a share price of 648.7 perce on that day.

+ The value of the contingent interest in shares on 31 March 2003 is based on the mid-rarket price of a share on that day of 586.0 pence.

» Les Dawson's contingent interest in 4,079 shares lapsed upon his resignation on 25 March 2003,

G Other benefits

Directors are paid a car allowance (or have the use of a company car where business use warrants it), are reimbursed fuel for business and private use and are provided
with medical and life insurance.

D Long-term incentives

(a) Performance share plan

The performance share plan, adepted at the annual general meeting held on 21 July 2000, is the leng-term incentive schema for executive directors and a restricted
number of other senior executives, Participation is at the discretion of the plan’s trustee (United Utilities Employee Share Trust Limited) on the recormmendation of the
remuneration comrmittee, Participants are awarded a right to acquire shares (or, at the discretion of the trustee, the cash equivalent) nomalty worth up to 80 per cent
of an executive’s yearty salary at the date of the award. The number of shares awarded is based on the market price of a share at that ime. The proportion of the

award that will vest depends on the group'’s performance against specified targets over a performnance period. This period is usually not less than three years' duration,
beginning at the start of the financial vear during which the award is made,

Far the 2003/04 financial year, & is proposed that each director will be awarded an option to agquire shares worth up to 80 per cent of their annual salary at the date
of the award at no cost to them. The extent to which awards will vest will depend on the company’s total sharehokder return (TSR) performance when compared with
the TSR performarce of a group of other companies over the period 1 April 2003 o 31 March 2006 and on underlying business performance measures. TSR is widely
accepted as an easily understood and externally verifiable measure of a shareholder’s return, Relating awards to the company's relative TSR performance supports the
policy objectives of finking executives’ rewards directly to the group's perforinance and shareholders' interests and giving executives the opportunity to increase their
eamnings by mesling and out-performing key long-term measures.

The inclusion of appropriate companies in the comparator group is critical for relative performance to be meaningfd. However, it is also important that the comparator
group should be of a reasonable size to avoid the performance of a very few companies having a dispropertionate impact on tha outcome of the plan, to be able to
accommuodate changes in the comparator group (for example following a takeover or merger) and to avoid too high a leverage between the company's relative posilion

in the group and the proportion of the award that vests. Companies are included if they provide essential services in well-established, mature markets with high barriers

to entry, have a large customer and/cr asset base, exhibit simiar charactenistics t¢ the group in terms of share price volatility, have simflar levels of gearing o are subject
to regulatory review. Accordingly, it is anticipated that for the 2003/04 award, the comparator group will comprise the following 15 companies in addition to United Utilities,
BAA, BG Group, The Boots Company, British Energy, Centrica, International Power, J Sainsbury, Kelda Group, Morrison Supermarkets, Mational Grid Transco, Scottish &
Soutrern Energy, Scottish Power, Saevern Trent, Tesco and Vindian.

No award will vest if the company’s TSR performance is below median. If the company's TSR performance is between median and upper quartile, the proportion of the
maximum award which the participant may receive will be calculated on a straight-line basis between 33 per cent and 100 per cent. However, awards will not vest unless
the remuneration committee is satisfied that the company's recorded TSR performance is consistent with the achievement of appropriate measwres of underlying business
performance such as performance against the earnings per share, dividend cover and interest cover targets for 2005/06 set out in the group's five year business plan to
2007/08. The awards are scheduled to vest after 31 March 2006,

Directors’ scheme interests in the performance share plan, including those awarded during the year, are set cut in table 6.
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. Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Table 6: Executive directors’ scheme interests in the performance share plan (audited information)

Contingent schame interest Contingent schemne interest  Contingent scheme intarest

Award detals at 1 April 2002 awarded duing the year at 31 March 2003 {nots c)
Maximum valig  Maret prce
Performance smanate LR M Mmae Mo Moo Manno,  Max.ve
Award date pericd % of salry £1000 pance of shares of shares £'000 of shares £000  ofshares £1000
John Roberts
2000/1  29.3.01 1.4.00t0 31.3.03 80 256.0 607.5 42,139 42,139 257.5 - - 42,139 246.9
2001/02 97.01  1.4.011031.3.04 80 2560 652.0 39,263 39,263 2399 - - 39,263 230.1
200203 3.40.02 1,402 3305 80 360.0 587.5 61,278 - - 61,276 360.0 61,276 359.1
Total 142,678 81,402 497.4 61,276 360.0 142,678 836.1
Simon Batey
2000/01  29.3.01 1,400t 31.2.03 80 208.0 B60T.5 34238 34,238 209.2 - - 34,238 200.6
2001402 9.7.01 1.4.011031.3.04 80 208.0 B652.0 31,901 31,901 194.9 - - 31,901 186.9
200203 1.10.02 1.4.021031.3.05 80 240.0 587.8 40,851 - - 40,851 240.0 40,851 2394
Total 106,990 66,138 404.1 40,851 240.0 106,990 626.9
Les Dawson - -
2000/01 20301 1.4001031.3.03 65 130.0 £607.5 21,399 21,399 130.7 - - 21,389 1254
2001/02 9.7.01  1.401t031.3.04 80 160.0 652.0 24,539 24,539 1489 - - 24,539 1438
2002/03  1.10.02  1.4.021031.3.06 8 188.0 587.5 32,000 - - 32,000 188.0 32,000 187.5
Total 77,938 45,938 280.6 32,000 188.0 77,938 456,7
Gordon Waters
2000/01  29.3.01 1.4.001031.3.03 80 146.4 6075 24,098 24,098 147.2 - - 24,098 141.2
2001/02 9701 1.4.011031.3.04 80 146.4 662.0 22,453 22,453 137.2 - - 22,453 131.6
2002/63  1,10.02 1.4.02t0 31.305 80 1840 587.5 31,319 - - 31,319 184.0 31,319 183.5
Total 77,870 46,551 284.4 31,319 184.0 77,870 456.3

Notes:
{a) No awards were due to vest during the year, The first awards under the performance share plan are scheduled to vest during 2003/04.

(b} The maximum values shown for 1 Aprl 2002 and 31 March 2003 have been caiculated using the mid-market price of a United Utlities PLC share on close
of business on the relevant date or, it not a trading day, the 1ast trading day immediately prior 1o that date.

{c) In the case of Les Dawson, the vaiue of the contingent plan interest is stated as at 25 March 2003, being the date on which he resigned as a director.

{d) Tha market price of a share at award s the mid-market price of a United Utlities PLC share on close of business on the last trading day immediately prior to the
award date. This is used to caloulate the maximum number of shares comprised in the award.

(e) The: above awards were granted as “option awards', whereby the participant is granted an option to acquire the number of shares which vests under the plan,
The options are exercisable over a period of three months from the vesting date. Mo consideration is payable by the executives either upon grant of the option
award or upon the subsequent exercise of the option.

() During the year, awards were made to directors in respect of the 2002/03 performance share plan. The extent ta which the awards will vest is on the same basis
as that proposed for 2003/04, except the company's TSR perfommance will be compared with a group of companies over the peried 1 April 2002 10 31 March
2005. At the beginning of the performance period the comparator group comprised the following 18 companies: AWG, BAA, BG Group, The Boots Company,
British Energy, Centrica, International Power, J Sainsbury, Kelda Group, Lattice Group, Morrison Supemarkets, National Grid Group, Safeway, Scottish & Southern
Energy, Scottish Power, Severn Trent, Tesco and Viridian, During the year, the merger of National Grid Group and Lattics Groun was annourced. Lattice Group has
therefore, been excluded. National Grid Group has been retained as National Grid Transco, The comparator group, thersfore, currently comprises 17 companies.
The test against measures of underlying business performance will inciude performance against the earnings per snare, dividend cover and interest cover targets
for 2004/05 set out in the group's 5 year business plan to 2006/07. The awards are scheduled ta vest after 31 March 2005.

b Long-term incentive plan (LTIF)
The long-term incentive plan has been replaced by the performance share plan. The final awards weva due to vest during the year for John Roberts, Simon Batey and

Gordon Waters in respect of performance periods ended on 31 March 2002. However, as anticipated in last year's annual report, no awards vested because the
performance criteria were not met.

Details of directors” interests under the LTIP which had been due te vest during the vear, are set out in table 7.
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Table 7: Executive directors’ LTIP awards (audited information) Corntingent schermne interest

at 1 April 2002 wﬁ'gAﬂm Gontngent sm:;“n:?r;e :;:::

Award data Performanca period % of salary £000 Max. value % of salary £1000

John Roberts. 20.7,00 1.4.00 10 31.3.02 87.5 393.8 - - -
Simon Batey 20.7.00 1.4.00t0 31.3.02 70 210.0 - - -
Gordon Waters 25.7.01 1.4.99 10 31.3.02 70 161.0 - - -

Notes:

= [f the awards for John Roberts and Simon Batey had vested, their value woukd have been muktiplied by 2.58 and 2.0 respectively to reflect their length of service
to the end of the performance period.

Performance graph

The following graph compares the company’s annual 1otal shareholkder return {TSR) perfformance for the past five years against the FTSE 100 index, the most appropriate

broad equity market index. Tre TSR indices used in the chan have been caiculated in accordance with the Cirectors' Rermmuneration Report Regulations 2002 relative 1o a
base date of 1 April 1998,
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Share options

The executive direciors can join the alt-employes ShareSave scheme. They do not paricipats in the company share option plan 1999, Neither the award nor the exercise
of ShareSave options is dependent upon the satisfaction of performance conditions. Further details of ShareSave options are shown in tabile 8,

Table B: Directors’ ShareSave options [audited information)

Granted/lansed)  Exercised during At 33 March 2003 Exercisa prica First clate lLast data
Ar 1 A 2002 chiring the year tha year {nate ¢) per share pence exercisable axarisable

John Roberts
ShareSave 2000 3,579 - - 3,579 471.5p (1.03.2005 31.08.2005
Total 3,579 - - 3,579
Simon Batey
ShareSave 2001 1,740 - - 1,740 556.5p 01.03.2004 F1.08,2004
Total 1,740 - - 1,740
Les Dawson
ShareSave 2001 3,032 - - 3,032 556.5p 01.03.2006 31.08.2006
Total 3,032 - - 3,032
Gordon Waters
ShareSave 2002 2,290 - - 2,290 500.0p 01.03.2007 01.08.2007
ShareSave 2003 - an - 33 430.0p 01.03.2006 01.08.2006
Total 2,280 331 - 2,621
Notes:

{a) The mid-market price of & share on 31 March 2003 was 586 pence and the range in the year was 551.5 pence 10 668 pence.
(b) No amount is payable by a participant for the grant of a ShareSave option.
(c) In the case of Les Dawson, the interest is stated as at 25 March 2003, being the date on which he resigned as a director,

{d) The aggregate national gain made by directors on the exercise of options during the year (based on the difference between the mid-market price of a share on the
day on which options were exércised ard the exercise price) was Enff (2002 ~ £4,456).
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, Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Pension arrangements

The United Utilities Pension Scheme is open to all eligible employees. |t provides pensions and other benefits to members within Inland Revenue fmits. Al the current executive
directors are members of, and confribute to, the defined benefit section of the scheme. |t provides a pension for them on nomnal retirernent at age 60 ecual to 1/30th of pensionable
earnings for each completed year of service. The maximum pengion is two-thirds of pensionable earnings. Early retirernent is possible from age 50 if the company agrees.

The Finance Act 1983 restricts the pension benefits that ¢an be paid by the scherne to the executive directors as the earnings cap timits pensionable earnings for
calculating benefits. The company has put in place separate arrangements the effect of which is to provide pension benefits calcufated on the same basis as for
executives whose pensionable earnings are not limited by the cap. These arrangements are unfunded.

Although pension benefits are calculated on basic salary only, to protect his contractual entitternent, the calculations are adjusted for Gordon Waters, whose annual bonus
had been pensionable before the ingentive plan was introduced.

The pension benefits earned by directors during the year are shown in table 9.

Table 9: Executive directors’ pension benefits (audited information) Increase in acciued pension during the year
Transter value Total change
T e ey
Increase net Meraber fnet of member {pat of marmber
Transfer vakue of inflation contributions contributions) contributians) Transfor value
£000 pa. £000 000 pa (1) £000 £'000 {2} £000 (3) £7000 p.a. £1000
John Roberts 35 458.3 8.8 14.6 285.3 345.6 51.2 818.5
Simon Batey 18.1 186.4 10.58 146 102.2 122.6 292 323.5
Les Dawson 9.8 83.9 8.1 11.3 64.2 74.5 18.2 169.7
Gordon Waters 5.7 714.9 13.6 14.6 194.0 2941 €6.9 1,023.6
Notes:

« Pension accruals shown are the amounts that woukd be paid annually on retirsment based on service to the end of the year, or date of keaving employment or refirement if eartier,

» Transfer values have been calcutated in accordance with version 8.1 of guidance note GN11 issued by the actuarial profession.

» The transfer value of the net increase in pension (2) represents the incremental value to the director of his service during the year, calculated on the assumption
service terminated at the year-end, or at date of leaving employment or retirement if earfier. It is based on the accrued pension increase (1} and is calculated after
deducting the director's contribution.

* The change in the fransfer value (3 includes the effect of fuctuations in tre franster value due 10 factors beyond the control of the company and directors, such as
stock market movernents. it is calculated after deducting the director’s contribution.

* Voluntary contributions paid by directors and resulting benefits are not shown.

* The transfer value represents a liabifity of the company to make pension payments in the future but not a sum paid to the individual.

Contracts of service and compensation for termination

The company’s policy is that the executive directors normally have rolfing one-year notice perieds. The company may offer a longer notice period if it considers

that necessary 1o reonudt a new divector, if it offers an inttial notice pariad of more than one year, it will usually reduce that to a roling one year after the initial period.
Contracts terminate automatically upon the director reaching ags 60 uniess the company agrees that a directar may continue to work after attaining age 60. No special
arrangements apply if there is a change of control,

Service contracts do not provide explicitly for termination payments (other than for holidays due but not taken), liquidated damages or payments in lieu of notice,

If a contract is to be terminated, the remuneration committee will, in each circumstance, determine the compensation that may be paid after applying such mitigation
it considers is fair and reasonable. It wil take into account the best practice provisions of the Combined Cede and will take legal achvice on the company’s liability to
pay compensation and the amount of the compensation in each case. The committes reviews this policy each year, No changes were made during the year, Details
of directors” confracts are set out in tabie 10.

Tahle 10: Executive directors’ service contracts

Dafe ot confract  Unaspired term (o 60t birthday Motica perod Contractual compensation upon eary termination
John Roberts 01.00.99 2 March 2006 12 months (rolling) No explicit provision (other than payment for cutstanding holidays)
Simcn Batey 01.04.00 4 Septernber 2013 12 months (roling) No explicit provision (other than payment for outstanding holidays)
Les Dawson 01.11.00 13 February 2017 12 months (rolling) resigned 25 March 2003
Gordon Waters 01.03.96 6 June 2006 12 maonths {rolling) Mo explicit provision {other than payment for outstanding hofidays}

Policy on external appaintments

The company recogrises that its executive directors may be invited te become non-executive directors of companies outside the group and that exposure to such non-
executive duties can broaden experience and knowledge, which will be to the benefit of the company. Subject to board approval (which will not be given i the proposed
appointrent is with 2 competing company, would otherwise lead 1o a conflict of interest o could have a detrinnental effect on a director's performance), execudive
directors are allowed ta accept a non-executive directorship and 1o retain the fees.

Approved by the board of directors on 21 May 2003 and signed on its behalf by

John Seed
Remuneration committee chafrman
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independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of United Utilities PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Unfted Utities PLC for the year
ended 31 March 2003 which comprise the consolidated profit and loss account,
the balance sheets, the consolidated cash flow statement, the staterment of total
recognised gains and losses, and the related notes 1 to 35 together with the
recongiliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt and the reconciliations

of movements in equity shareholdets' funds, These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting poficies set out therein. We have also audited the
nformation n the part of the directors’ remuneration report that is described as
having been audited.

This report is made solely to the company'’s members, as a body, in accordance
with section 235 of the Companies Act 1885, Our audit wixk has been undertaken
s0 that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required
1o state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s mermbers as a body, for our audit
work, for the report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the company’s directors
e responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
appiicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. They are also responsiie
for the preparaticn of the other information contained in the annual report including
the directors’ remuneration report. Our responsibility is to audit the financial
staternents ankd the part of the directors' remuneration report described as having
been audited in accordance with relevant United Kingdem lega! and regulatory
requirements and auditing standards.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the fnancial statements give a true
and fair view and whether the financial statements and the part of the directors'
remuneration report described as having been audited have been propery prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you i, in our
opinicn, the directors' report is not conaistent with the financial staterments, if the
company has not kept proper aceounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our awdit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors' remuneration and transactions with the company and
other mernbers of the group is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company’s
compiiance with the seven provisions of the Combined Code spacified for our
review by the Listing Rutes of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if

it does not. We are not required to consider whether the Board's statements on
intemal control cover all risks and contrals, or form an opinion on the effectiveness
of the group's comporate govVErnance procedures of its risk and cortrel procedures.

We read the directors' report and the other information contained in the annual
1eport for the above year as described in the contents section including the
unaudited part of the Sirectors’ rermuneration report and consider the implications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with United ¥ingdorn auditing standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board, An audit inciudes examination, on a

test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited. it also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumnstances of
the company and the group. consistently applied and atdequately disciosed.

Wa planned and performed our audit so as o obtain all the infermation and
explanations which we ¢onsideved necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part
of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited are free
from rmaterial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other imeguiarity or error.
In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of nformation in the financial staternents and the part of the directors' remuneration
report describad as having been audited.

Opinion
In our opénion:
+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

compary and the group as at 31 March 2003 and of the profit of the group
tor the year then ended; and

= the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report
described as having been audited have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985.

Delolle & Touche

Deloitte & Touche

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

21 May 2003
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-Consolidated profit and loss account

Discontinued
Befory  Goodwill Betora Gaoadwd Befory Goocharll
goodwill and and goodwl and and Restated  goodwit and and Restated
axcoptiona axcepfunal 2003 excepfioral  exoeptonal 2007 evoeptional  exceptional 2001
Htems Hems Total iterms items Total iterns ftens Total
For the year ended 31 March Note £m €m £m m €m £ fm £m ag] £m
Turnover: group and share of joint ventures 21,9205 - 19205 18716 - 18716 1,569.2 - 2015 1,770.7
Less: share of joint venture turnover 41.7) - (41.7) (85.4} - (85.4) #8.3) - - (78.3)
Group tumover 1,878.8 - 18188 17862 - 1,7862 1,4909 - 2015  1,692.4
Net operating costs 3 (13327 (36.1) (1,368.8) (1,245.4} {19.2) (1,284.8) {993.8) (20.6) (179.9) (1,194.3)
Group operating profit 546.4 {36.1) 510.0 540.8 (19.2) 5216 4571 {20.6) 216 4981
Share of operating profit of joint ventures 2,13 156 0.n 14.9 125 0.7} 11.8 a7 - - a7
Profit before hon-operating items,
Interest and tax 2 561.7 (36.8) 524.9 553.3 (19.9) 533.4 505.8 (20.6) 216 506.8
Profit on sale or termination of operations - 34.0 34.0 - - - - - 191.2 191.2
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 561.7 (2.8 558.9 553.3 {19.9) 533.4 §05.8 {20.6) 212.8 698.0
Nat interest payable and similar charges:
Group 7 (2201} - 220.1) (216.7) - 2B (2047) - {4.00  {208.7)
Joint ventures 7,13 {11.3) - (11.3) (13.9) - {13.9) {11.5) - - {11.6)
7 (231.4) - {231t4) (2306 - (230.8) (2163 - 4.0 (220.3)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 330.3 (2.8} 3275 3227 (19.9) 302.8 289.5 {20.6) 208.8 477.7
Current taxation credit/(chargs) on profit on
ordinary activities 8 291 {16.4) (11.4)
Deferred taxation charge on ordinary activities 8 {85.9) (23.0) (56.0)
Exceptional taxation credit/(charge) 8 9.4 - (69.0)
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 8 {47.4) (39.4) {136.4)
Profit oh ordinary activities after taxation 2301 263.4 341.3
Equity minority interest {2.3) (1.6) -
Profit for the financial year 24 2778 261.8 3413
Dividends 9,24 (264.8) (260.9} {254.9}
Retained profit for the financial year 13.0 0.9 86.4
Basic eamnings per share 10 50.0p 47.3p 61.9p
Adiusted basic earnings per share 10 48.8p 50.9p 40.3p
Diluted eamings per share 10 49.8p 47.2p 61.6p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 10 48.6p 50.7p 40.1p

See accompanying notes to the accounts.

There were no differences between reported profits and historical cost profits on erdinary activities before taxation in any of the above financial years.
The results of subsidiary acquisitions have not been disclosed separately as they do not form a significant part of the group’s results.

Prior years’ results have been restated to show the effects of applying UMTF 34 ‘Precontract costs' and the change in accounting policy for telecornmunications network

capacity sales as explained in note 1(a).

Prior years' profit and loss accounts have been re-presented in fine with the current disclosure to show profit on ordinary activities before taxation on both a pre and post

goodwil amortisation and exceptional items basis,

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003




LY
Ralance sheets

Group Company
Restated
2003 2002 2003 2002
At 31 March Nete £m m £m £m
Fixed assets
intangible assets " 69.2 81.2 - -
Tangible assets 12 7,087.3 6,673.1 1.0 14
Investrments in subsidiary undertakings 13 - - 5,554.8 5,565.6
Investments in joint ventures:
— share of gross assets 220.8 271.4 - -
— ghare of gross fabilities {180.6) {218.4} - -
13 40.2 53.0 - -
Other investmenits 13 19.4 26.4 3.9 3.9
7,216.1 6,833.7 5,659.7 5,570.6
Current assets
Stocks 14 20.6 8.8 - -
Debtors 15 4469 414.6 1,842.7 1,6721
Investments 16 668.9 389.5 371 80.4
Cash at bark and in hand 38.5 18.8 122 17.8
1,174.9 831.8 1,802.0 1,770.1
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year t7 {1,424.1) (1,341.8} (1,659.7) {1,900.3)
Met current {liabilities}/assets {249.2) {51004 232.3 {130.2)
Total assets less current Habilities 6,966.9 6,323.7 5,792.0 £,440.4
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (4,070.6) (3.478.2) [768.5) {753.1)
Provisions far Kabllities and charges 20 (345.0 31y - @1
Net assets 2,551.3 25344 5,023.5 4,683.2
Capital and reserves
Calied up share capital 24 556.5 555.9 556.5 565.9
Share premilm account 24 674.3 671.6 6743 6716
Profit and foss account 24 1,302.8 1,297 1,2479 9109
Other reserves 24 - - 2,544.8 2,544.8
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,533.6 25192 5,023.5 4,683.2
Equity minority interest 31 17.7 15.2 - -
Capital employed 2,551.3 2,534.4 5,023.5 4,683.2

See accompanying notes to the accounts.

Prior year figures have been restated to show the effects of applying UITF 34 ‘Pre-contract costs” and the change in accounting policy for telecommunications network

capagcity sales as explained in note 1(a).
l ) Apprd by the board of digctors cn 21 May 21 signed on T.Sehalf by

Sir Richard Evans
Chairrnan

Simon Batey
Group finance director
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A
. Consolidated cash flow statement

Restated Restated
2003 2002 200
For the year ended 31 March Nate £ £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 28 851.5 799.8 841.7
income from joint ventures 28 2.1 -
Retumns on investments and servicing of finance 20 f218.9) {223.7} {180.1)
Taxation - 2.4) (1.7
Capital expenditure and financial investment 30 (697.9) (583.6} (572.9)
Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisiticns 3 4.9} (2.8} (117.1)
Disposals 31 7.9 70 3125
3.0 9.8) 195.4
Equity dividends paid {262.0) {256.1) (250.1)
Cash (outflow)/inflow before use of iguld resources and financing (321.5} {273.7) 223
Management of liquid resources 32 (282.0) 13.4 (328.7}
Financing
Issues of shares 33 3.3 18.0 13.9
Increase in debst 33, 34 610.5 20214 3181
613.8 220.1 3320
Increasel{decrease) in cash 10.3 {40.2) 256
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
2003 2002 2001
For the year ended 31 March Note £m fin £m
Increase/(decrease) in cash 10.3 (40.2) 25.6
Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing {610.5) (202.1) (318.1)
Cash outfliow/(inflow] from management of liquid resources 282.0 (13.4} 328.7
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows {(318.2) (@55.7} 36.2
Exchange and other non-cash adjustments 34 5.1 1.3 6.2)
Movement in net debt {313.1) (2544 300
Opening net debt £3,060.8) {2,B06.4} (2,836.4)
Met debt at 31 March 34 3,373.9) {3.060.8} {2,806.4)
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses

Group
Rastated Pastated
2003 2002 2001
For the year exwded 31 March Mote £m tm £m
Profit/(loss}y for financial year:
Group 275.9 266.3 3473
Joint ventures 1.9 4.5) 6.0
24 217.8 261.8 M3
Unrealised gain on sale of minority interest in Vertex Data Science Limited 24, 31 - - 34.4
Currency translation adjustment on equity investment in Argentina 4,24 {6.8) (78.6) -
Other exchange adjustments 4.0 09 6.0
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 275.0 1841 369.7
Prior year adjustment - Pre-contract costs (12.6)
Prior year adjustment - Telecommunications netwerk capagity sales {4.5)
Total gains and losses recogrilsed since last annual report 257.9
Reconciliations of movements in equity shareholders’ funds
Group Company
Festated Festated
2000 2002 2001 2003 2002
For tha year ended 31 March £m £m fm m m
Profit/floss) for financial year 277.8 261.8 341.3 601.8 (4.0
Dividends (264.8) (260.9) (254.9) (264.8) (260.9)
Retained profit/joss} for the financial year 13.0 09 86.4 337.0 (284.9)
New share capital issued 3.3 18.0 13.9 3.3 18.0
Capitalisation ©f reserves in respect of shares issued via QUEST - (5.0 (1.5) - -
Goodwill on business disposals 0.9 - 101.0 - -
Unrealised gain on sale of mirority interest in Vertex Data Science Limited - - 34.4 - .
Currency translation adjustment on equity investment in Argentina {6.8} {78.6} - - -
Other exchange adjustments 4.0 0.8 6.0 - -
Net increase/{decrease) in equity shareholders' funds for the year 14.4 63.9) . 228.2 340.3 {266.9)
QOpering equity shareholders’ funds as restated 2519.2 2,583.0 2,354.8 4,683.2 4,950.1
Equity sharsholders' furds at 31 March 25336 251982 2,583.0 5,023.5 4,683.2
Effect of prior yéar adjustments on cpening equity shareholders' funds:
Group
2003 2002 2001
£m im £m
Opening equity shareholders’ furkds as previously stated 2,536.3 2,597.5 2,364.4
Pricr year adjustment — Pre-contract costs {12.6) 11.% 9.6)
Prior year adjustment - Telecormmwnications nefwork capacity sales (4.5} {2.68) -
Opening equity shareholders' funds as restated 2,519.2 2,583.0 2,354.8
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Notes to the accounts

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with
#tems which are considensd material in relation to the group’s financial statements.

(a} Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statemnents of United Utilities PLC and its subsidiaries
(the group) set cut on pages 46 ta 74 have been prepared under the historical
cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting standards and the
Comparies Act 1985 except as nated below under item (h).

Unless otherwise stated, the acquisition method of accounting has been adopted.
Under this method, the results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of
in the year are included in the consolidated proft and 10ss account from the date
of acquisition or up to the date of dispesal,

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United Kingdom requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the:

~ reported amounts of assets and liabilites;

- disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements; and

- reportad amouns of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

In the year ended 31 March 2003 the group has adopted Urgent Issues Task Force
(UITF} Abstract 34 'Pre-contract costs' the application of which is reflected in the
current and prior years reported resutts, UIMTF 34 requires that pre-contract costs
should only be recognised as an asset after the point where it is virtually certain
that a contract will be entered into with net cash inflows that will recover the costs
capitalised, Previously, the group’s policy was to capitalise and ully provide against
pre-contract costs until thelr recovery was considered to be secured by profitable
contracts. Onee the contract was secured, the provision was released and
capitalisedt costs amertised over the expected Ife of the contract. The impact of
adopting LHTF 34 is to reduce the profit for the year ended 31 March 2003 by
£1.5 milion {ret of tax), The results for the previous years have also been amended
to reflect the requirements of UITF 34, with the results for the ysar ended 31 March
2002 reduced by £1.4 million {net of tax) and 31 March 2001 reduced by £2.3
million (net of tax).

During the year the group reviewsd #ts palicy in respect of accounting for network
capacity sales. Your Communications owns a telecommunication network and
whera there is excess capacity it may sell this capacity to third parties. Previousty,
whare substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership were transferred to
the purchaser over the economic life of the asset, these transactions had been
accounted for as a sale and recognised in turnover when all relevant conditions
of the contract had been met.

Hanving reviewed current accounting practice, the group concluded that an
accounting policy which treats such transactions as grants of operating leases
{unless legal title passes) rather than as sales, is more appropriate as it reflects
the fong-term nature of the transaction. The current policy is aligned with the
subsequently issued UITF 36 'Contracts for sales of capacity'. The impact of the
change in accounting poficy on the results for the year ended 31 March 2003 is a
reduction in profit of £1.0 milion (net of tax), and a reduction in turnover of £3.0
million. The results for the previous years have also been amended to reflect this
change in accounting palicy, with the profit for the years ended 31 March 2002
reduced by £1.8 milion {net of tax} and turnover reduced by £4.8 million. The
profit for the year ended 31 March 2001 reduced by £2.6 million (net of tax) and
turnover reduced by £5.2 million.

) Cash

In the consolidated cash flow statement and related notes, cash includes cash
at bank, deposits repayable on demand and overdralts; depoesits are repayable
on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without peniaity.
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{c} Tumover

Turnover represents the income receivable in the ordinary course of business

for goods or services provided, which where relevant, includes an estimate of
the sajes value of units supplied 10 customers between the date of the last meter
raading and the year end, exclusive of value added tax and foreign sales tax.

{d) Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is expensed as incumed,

(e} Pre-contract costs

Costs incurred in the development of activilies ara treated in accordance with

UITF 34 'Pre-contract costs,’ which requires that pre-contract costs should only
be recognised as an asset after the point whera it is virually certain that a contract
wil be enterad into with net cash inflows that will recover the costs capitalised.
Such capitalised costs are amortised over the expected contract period.

@) Goodwill

Purchased goodwill {ooth positive and negative) arising on consolidation in respect
of acquisitions before 1 Apiil 1998, when Financial Reporting Standard (FRS} 10
‘Goedwill and intangible assets’ was adopted, was written off to reserves in the
year of acquisition. When a subsequent disposal occurs, any related goodwill
previcusly written off to reserves, as a matter of accounting palicy, is written

back through the profit and loss account as part of the peofit or loss on disposal.

Purchased goodwili (representing the excess of the far valug of the consideration
and associated costs over the fair value of the separable net assets acquired)
arising on consolidation in respect of acquisitions sincs 1 April 1998 is capitalised,
Positive goodwill is amortised to nk by equal annual instalments over its estimated
usetui life, generally not exceeding 20 years.

On the subsequent disposal or termination of a business acquired since 1 April
1498, the profit or loss on disposal or termination is calculated after charging/
(crediting} the unamortised amount of any related goodwillinegative goadwir).

In the company's financial statements, investments in subsidiary undertakings and
joint ventures are stated at cost less provision for any impairment.

{g) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assels comprise infrastructure assets (mains, sewers, impounding
and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls)
ard other assets {ncluding properties, overground plant and equipment and
electricity operational assets}.

infrasfructure assets

Infrastruciure assets comprise a netwerk of water and wasiewater systems,
Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating o increases in capacity or
enhancements of the network and on maintaining the operating capability of the
netwark in accordance with defined standards of service is treated as an addition,
which is included at cost after deducting related grants and contributions.

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets is the estimated level of annual
enenditure required to maintain the operating capability of the networlk which is
based on the group's independentty certified asset management plan,

Employee costs incumed in implementing the ¢apital schemes of the group are
capitalised within fixed assets.

Other assets

Additions are included at cost. Freehold tand is not depreciated. Other assets are
depreciated by wriling off their cost less their estimated reskiual value evenly over
their estimated economic lives, based on management’s judgement and
experience, which are principally as fallows:

Buildings 30-60 years
Operational assels 5-80 years
Fidures, fittings, tools and equipment 3-40 years
Computer scftware 3-10 years




Carrying value of tangible fixed assets
The carnying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment wherever
creurnstances indicate that the camying value of such assets may not bs recoverable.

(h} Grants and contributions

Capital contributions towards infrastructure assets are deducted from the cost

of those assets. This is not in accordance with Schedule 4 to the Companies Act
1985 under which the infrastructure assets should be stated at their purchase price
or preduction cost and the capital contributions treated as defermed income and
refeased to the profit and less account over the useful ¥fs of the comesponding assets.
The diractors ane of the opinion that, aithough provision is made for depraciation of
infrastructure assets (see note (g} abave), these assets have no finite econcmic fves
andl the capital contributions would therefons remain in the balance sheet in pemetuity.
The treatment otherwise required by the Companies Act 1985 would not present a
true and fair view of the group’s effective investrment in nirastructure assats. The
financial effect of this accounting policy is set out in note 12.

Grants receivable in respact of other tangible fixed assots are treated as deferred
income, which is credited to the profit and loss account over the estimated
sconamic lives of the related assets.

(i) Leased assets

Assets financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee (finance leases) are capitalised in the
consoiidated balance sheet and the correspording capital cost is shown as an
obligation 1o the lessor. Leasing repayments comprise both a capital and a finance
elernent. Where the lease is of a fixed interest rate natuna, the finance elemeant is
waritten off 1o the profit and loss account so as to produce an approximatety
constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding obligation. Where the lease

is of a floatitg interest rate nature, the finance element wiitten off to the profit and
loss account reflects the floating interest rate charge ncurred during ths period on
the outstanding obligation. Such assets are depreciated over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives and the period of the lease.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight
line basis over the period of the lease.

(i) Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments, except for investments in joint ventures, are stated

at tha lower of cost and recoverable amount. The consolidated profit and toss
account includes the group's share of the profits less losses, interest and taxation
of joint ventures, The group balance shest inciudes the investment in joint ventures
at the group’s share of their net assets in accordance with FRS 9 “‘Associates and
Joint Ventures'.

(k} Current asset investments
Current asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

0 Stocks
Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary 1o recognise damage
and absolescence.

Finished goods and goods for resale are stated at the lower of cost, including
appropriate production overheads, and net realisable value.

(m) Pensions

The group operates a number of defined benefit schemas, which are independent
of the group’s finances, for the substantial majority of its employees. Actuarial
valuations of the schemes are canied out as determined by the trustees at intervals
of not more than three years, the rates of contribution payable and the pension
cost being determined on the advice of the actuaries, having regard to the results
of these valuations. In any intervening years, the actuaries review the continuing
appropriateness of the contribution rates.

The cost of providing pensions is expensed over employees’ working fves.
Variations fror regular cost ars allocated over the average remaining service lives
of current employees. Any diference between the charge to the profit and loss

ateount in respect of furded plens and the contrtutions payable 1o sach plan
is recorded in the consotidated balance sheset as a prepayment or provision,

The group has included the disclosure requirements of FRS 17 ‘Retirement
Benefits' in note 25, together with detalls of pension and funding arrangements.

{n} Foreign currency

Teansactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates ruling on the
dates of the fransactions, adjusted for the effects of any hedging armangements.
Assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign cumencies are tranglated into sterling
at the relevant rates of exchange ruling at the consolidated batance sheet date.

On consalidation, the balance shoets of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures
are translated into sterting at exchangs rates applicable at the year end. The profit
and loss accounts are translated nto stering using the average rate. Exchange
differences resulting from the transation of such balance sheets at rates ruling at
the beginning and end of the year, togsther with the differences between profit and
loss accounts translated at average rates and rates ruling at 31 March, are dealt
wilh as movements on group reserves.

Wherae net investments in overseas subsidiaries are matched in whole or in
part by foreign currency bormowings, the exchange differences arising on the
re-translation of such borrowings are also recorded as movements on greup
reserves to the extent alowed by Statement of Standarg Accounting Practice
ISSAP) 20 ‘Fomign Cumency Translation'. Any excess is taken to the profit
and ioss account.

(o) Taxation

Current 1ax, including UK corporation 1ax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts
expectad to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantialy enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated
but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions of events that result
in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future
have occurmed at the balance sheet date, Timing differences are differences between
the group’s taxable profits and its resufts as stated in the financial statemnents that
arise from the mclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different
from those in which they are recognisad in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is measwed at the average tax rates that are expacied to apply

in the periods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based

on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date, Defermed 1ax is measured on a discounted basis to reflect

tha time value of morey over the period between the balance sheet date and the
dates on which it is estimated that the underlying timing differences will reverse.
The discount rates used reflect the post-tax vields to maturity that ¢can be obtained
on gevernment bonds with similar maturity dates and currencies to those of the
defered tax assets or liebilities.

{p) Joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities in which United Uilities PLC holds an interest on a long-
term basis and which are jointly controlled with one or more other parties under a
contractual arrangement. The group's share of profits less losses of joint ventures
is included in the profit and loss account on the gross equity accounting basis.

(g} Financial instrurnents

Debt instruments

New borowings are stated at net proceeds received after deduction of issue costs.
The issue costs of debt instruments are amorised at a constant rate over the life of
the instrument.

Interast rate swaps and financial futures

interest rate swap agreements and financial fulures are used to manage interest rate
axposure. Instruments that are designed as a hedge of a debt are accountsd for on
an accrudls bags, with amounts payabie or receivable in respect of these instruments
being recognised as adjustments o interest expense of the designated liabilty.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

Realised gains and losses that occur from the early termination of such instruments
designated as a hedge are deferred and are amortised to interest expense over the
period of the hedged position, to the extent that the criginally designated liablity
rernains outstanding.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the notional amount of the group’s interest
rate swaps and financial futures must not exceed the amount of its existing variable
rate debt, must change the interest rate characteristics of the underlying debt and
the contractual maturities cannot exceed the meturities of tha debt.

Currency swaps

The group enters into currency swaps 10 manage its exposure to fluctuations in
curency rates. Principal amounts are revalued at exchange rates niing at the date
of the group balance sheet and included in the stering value of debt. In order tor
such swaps 10 qualify for hedge accounting, the forward contract/currency swap
must relate to an existing asset, fability or firm commitment, be in the same
currency as the hedged item and reduce the risk of foreign cumency exchange
maovements to the group's operations, Whare they do, exchange gains and losses
are taken directly to reserves and are included in the statement of total recoguised
gains and losses in accordance with SSAP 20 ‘Foreign Currency Translation'.

{} Share-based compensation amangements

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options granted in accordance with the
rues of the schermes [soe nota 24) are recorded in share capital and share premium
at their exercise price at the date the option is exercised. A compensation expanse is
recomded in respect of the executive share option schemes for the difference, if any,
batween the exercise price and the share price al the date of grant,
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The costs of short-term and long-term incentive awards to executive directors in
accordance with the incentive plan (see the report on remuneration) are expensed
on a straight line basis over the peried in which performance is measured. The
amount to be expensed is based upon management’s estimate of the probability
that the performance criteria will be met.

In respect of the group's ShareSave schemas no compensation expense is
recorded for the difference between the exercise price and the share price at
the date of grant or exercise, as the group is taking advantage of the exemption
permitted by UITF 17 "Employea share schemes' in respect of Inland Revenue
approved SAYE schemas.

(s} Envionmental remediation

Environmental expenditure that relates to cument or future revenues is expensed or
capitalised as appropiate. Expenditure that relates to an existing condition caused
by past operations and does not contribute to curent or future sarings is expensed,

Liabilities for environmental costs are recognised when environmental assessmants
or clean-ups are probatle and the associated costs can be reasonably estimated.
Generally, the timing of these provisions coincides with the commitment to a formal
plan of actions o, if earlier, on divesiment or on closure of inactive sites.

ft} Recent UK accounting pronouncements

FRS 17, *Retirement Benefits' was issued in December 2000, however mandatory
mplementation has been defermed by the Accounting Standards Board. This
standard requires an assel or a liability to be recognised in the group accounts for
any surplus or deficit in a defined benefit scheme. The group has acdopted the
disciosure requirements of FRS 17 as set out in note 25,



2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Tomover, profit before non-operating items, interest and 1ax and net cperating assets for each class of business and by geographical arigin are set out balow:
Profices) before non-operating

Turnever 2(a) iterns, interest and tax 2(0) Net operaling assets 2(c)
Rastate] Restatod Rastated Restated Restated Restated
2003 2002 2001 2008 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Nota fm £m m £m m £m £m m £m
Continuing businesses:
Licensed multi-utifity operations 1,2301 1,2089 12016 502.8 529.6 5008 65537 62003 58137
Infrastructure management 3971 385.9 197.6 58.8 300 20,0 8238 113.0 194.4
Business process outsourcing 076 282.9 2112 13.8 141 7.6 121.6 64.5 46.1
Telecommunications 161.7 150.4 114.3 {19.5) 23.8} @5.1) 197.1 217.4 724
Other activities - 46 9.4 5.1 7.4 6.3 (46.9) {58.1} 60.3)
Comporate costs - - - 4.3) 4.0) 3.9) - - -
2,096.5 2.032.7 1,734.1 561.7 553.3 505.8 6,908.3 6,537.1 6,266.0
Goadwill amortisation - - - 7.5 8.0 4.0) - - -
Inter-business eliminations 2(dy {176.0) (161.1) {164.9) - - - - - -
Cantinuing operations, before exceptional charge 1,9205 18716 1,569.2 554.2 545.3 5018 69083 65371 6,266.0
Discontinued operations - - 2035 - - 218 - - -
Exceptional tems 2(e} - - - {29.3) {11.9) {16.6) - - -
1,9205 11,8716 1,770.7 524.9 533.4 5068 69083 65371 62660
By geocgraphical origin; 200
United Kingdom 1,868.3 17646 18781 5153 521.7 4937 6,8621 85,4876 61501
Europe 125 10.1 4.5 21 38 (1.5 320 354 29.8
The Americas 14.8 58.3 65.7 71 3 4.5 0.8 4.0 6.4
Rast of the world 249 18.6 224 0.4 4.8 4.1 134 101 9.7
1,9205 18716 17707 52449 5334 5068 65,9083 6,537.1 6,266.0

The accounting palicies for each segment are the same as those appearing on pages 50 to 52.

(a) Turnover includes the group's share of joint venture turnover of £41.7 milion {2002 — £85.4 million; 2001 - £78.3 milion) primardy refating to infrastructure managernent.
) Profit before non-operating items, interest and tax comprises group operating proft amounting to £510.0 milion (2002 - £521,6 milion: 2001 - £498.1 mifion) and share

of operating profits of joint ventures of £14.9 milion (2002 - £11.8 milion; 2001 - £8.7 miliion).

The above segmental analysis is combined with the profit on sale or temination of operations of £34.0 mition as discussed in nate 4 of the accounts, and net interest
payabla of £231.4 milion as shown in note 7 of the accounts, to give profit on ordinary activities befors taxation of £327.5 milior.

¢} Net operating assets comprise fixed assets and net cument assets excluding net debt, corporation and defermed taxation and dividends.

{th The inter-business eliminations are mainly from business process outsourcing primartty Yo the licensed muiti-utiity operations entirety within the United Kingdom.

{e) Inaccordance with FRS 11 'Impaimment of fixed assets and gootwill' the group has carmed out a review to detérmine whether there has been an impairment of its
tangible and intangible fixed assets withirt its telecommunications business, Your Communications. The cammying values of tangible and intangibie fixed assets of sach
of Your Comrumications’ income generating units have been compared to their recoverable amounts, being their values in use 10 the group. The values in use of the
income generating units have been calculated using discounted cash fiow projections and a discount rate of 16 per cent on a pre-tax basis, The review has resulted
in an exceptionst chargs 1o operating profit in 2003 of £25.5 milkon {of which £10.9 milion rejates 1o imangiole fied assets and £14.6 milion relztes 1o tangithe fized

assets) and an exceptional tax credit of £5.6 miliion.

Business restructuring costs in 2003 of £3.8 million refats to severance costs principally in telecornmunications. In 2002, severance costs of £11.9 milion, and in 2001 of

£16.6 milion principally related to icensed mutti-utifity cperations.

{ft  The geographical destination of tumover does not differ materially from the geographical origin analysis above.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

3 NET OPERATING COSTS

2003 2002 2001
Rastated Restated Restated
Confirulng Contiruing Contiruing Discontioved
operations operations operabions opsrations
Total Tota Total
Note £m Em frn £m fm
Employee cosis: 3a)
Wages and salaries 229.8 326.0 252.2 39 256.1
Social security costs 24.6 24.8 21.0 01 211
Pension contributions 25 8.2 S.0 6.3 0.4 6.7
362.6 355.8 2795 4.4 283.9
Capital schemes (69.8) (67.6) (509 - {50.9)
2928 288.2 228.6 4.4 233.0
Depreciation and amorisalion: )
Cwned fixed assets 345.6 3122 311.4 0.4 3t1.8
Fixéd assets held under finance leases 4.2 4.4 4.7 - 4.7
Amorisation of intangible assets T4 7.4 4.0 - 4.0
356.9 3240 3204 0.4 320.5
Other operating costs
Auditor's remuneration 0.5 0.4 0.3 - 0.3
Fesearch and development X 15 2% - 28
Operating leases:
~ hire of plant and machinery 45 41 24 - 29
-~ land and buidings 82 7.5 59 - 5.8
Blectricity purchases - - - 1500 150.0
Cost of sales 451.2 423.2 229.2 204 249.6
Rents and rates 75.7 668.0 76.2 0.2 764
General, adimiristration and other costs 163.8 1477 140.7 45 1452
T04.7 652.4 457.8 175.1 632.9
Other income 5 {14.9) 1.9 8.7 - 8.7
639.8 640.5 449.1 175.1 624.2
Net operating costs before exceptional items 1,338.5 1.252.7 997.8 179.9 1177.7
Exceptional items:
- business restructuring 3{a} a8 1.9 16,6 - 16.6
—adjustment 1o the carrying value of telecommmunications assets 3t 25.5 - - - -
Total net operating costs 1,368.8 1,264.6 1.014.4 179.9 1,194.3

Fees payabie to Delaitte & Touche and its associates for non-audit senices from the date of thelr appointment as aucitors were £0.5 million primarily retating 1o due diligence
and tax work. The audit fee for 2003 in relation to the company amounted to £74,000,

Fees payable to the group's former auditors KPMG Audit Pic and its associates for non-audit services, up to the date of their resignation in 2003, were £0.5 million
{2002 - £0.6 million; 2001 - £0.7 miliion) primarily relating to due diigence and regulatory work., The audit fee for 2002 in refation to the company amounted to £77,000.

Employee costs am included above on a gross basis before removing those components capitalised in connection with the group's capital schemes. The adjustments made

in the above table for ‘Capital schemes” are capitalised during the relevant period and included withén tangible fixed asset additions.
Information relating to the emaluments, long-term incentivas, share options and pension entitiements of the directors is contained i the report on remuneration,

{a) Total employee costs including business restructuring exceptional ittems amount ta £296.6 miflion (2002 - £300.1 milion, 2001 - £249,6 million).
{n) Total depreciation and amortisation including the exceptional adjustment 1o the canying valie of tefecommunications assets amounts 1o £382.4 miflion {2002 — £324.0

million, 2001 - E320.5 milion}.
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4 PROFIT ON SALE OR TERMINATION OF OPERATIONS

2003 2002 2001
Note £m £m em

Withdrawal from infrastructure management

activities in the Americas 4(a) 34.0 - -

Profit on disposal of energy supply business 4{b) - - 161.2

(8) IEBA, the Argentine electricity utility for which United Utilities has been techinical operator, and in which the group has a minority interest, dafaulted on its repayments to
bondholders in Septernber 2002. There is no regourse to United Utlities in respect of these debts and tha group has no further balance sheet exposure 1o IEBA. Following
the Argenting Govermment's dissolution of the Peso/US Dolar link, the subsaguent devaluation of the Argentine Peso and the restrictions ptaced on the utilty’s pricing
policies, there is no sxpectation of a financial restructuring of $he utiity in which United Utilities would choose 10 participate, United Litifties has notified IEBA and its majority
sharehoider, Gruppo Camuza, that it will neither inject any additional equity into the company nor, with the exception of meeting the group's obligations under the technical
suppaort contract, participate in he future management of IEBA and its operating subsidiary, EDEA. United Unifities has therefore concluded that it no longer has a
participating interest in JEBA. The accounting provision that existed at 31 March 2002 in respect of the investment in Argentina has been taken 1o the profit and loss

account which, along with the disposal of US Water and costs associated with withdrawing from infrastructune management in the Americas, gives rise 10 an exceplicnal
crecit of £34.0 milkon.

) Inthe year ended 31 March 2001 the group sold its energy supply business to TXU Europe for a cash ¢onsideration of £310 milion realising a profit of £191.2 millor.

5 OTHER INCOME

2003 2000 2001
Em £m £m

Proft/loss) on disposal of fixed assets 45 36 {0.5)
Net rents receivable 7.3 6.9 6.3
Dividend income 25 03 1.2
Other 0.5 0.6 1.7

4.9 11.9 87
6 EMPLOYEES

2003 2002 2001
Licensed mufti-utility operations 4,269 4,368 4,764
Infrastructure management 2,163 2,076 407
Business process oufsourcing 6,540 6,576 5015
Telecommunications 681 743 618
Cther acliviies 149 130 108
Discontinued activities:
Energy supply - - 114
Other - - 25
Average number of paersons employed by the group during the year 13,802 13,893 11,052
7 NET INTEREST PAYABLE AND OTHER SIMILAR CHARGES

2003 2002 2001

£m fm jag]

Interest payable:
Group:
- on bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 2438 2208 205.5
- on finance leases 2.2 8.0 101
- finance slement of onerous contract pravision (discontinued operations) - - 4.0
Jaint ventures 1.3 13.9 1.6
Total interest payable 257.3 242.7 2312
Interest receivable and similar income (25.9) {12.1) (10.9)
Net interest payable and other similar charges 2314 2306 2208
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8 TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Restated Rastated
2003 2002 2001
£m £m £m
Ordinary tax:
Current tax; IR
LK corporation tax at 30 per cent 1.0 13.6 74
Oversoas tax 0.1 0.4 09
Share of joint ventures’ tax 1.7 2.4 3.1
Prior years tax adjustments 41.9) - -
Tota? ordinary current tax (29.1) i6.4 11.4
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences 88.2 82.8 89.0
Decrease/{increase) in discount 0.3 59.8) (33.0)
Prior years tax adjustments (2.6) - -
Total ordinary deferred tax 85.9 23.0 56.0
Total ordinary tax 56.8 324 67.4
Excaptional tax:
Current tax:
Ex¢eptional tax on restructuring of businesses 6.9) - 45.0
Deferred tax: .
Crigination and reversal of liming differencas {4.5) - 24.0
Decroase in discount 1.4 - -
Total exceptional tax (9.4) - 69.0
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 47.4 39.4 136.4
The table below reconcies the notional tax change at the UK corporation tax rate for the year to the actual curment rate for taxation.
Restated Restated
2003 2002 2001
£m £m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3275 302.8 477.7
% % %
UK corporation tax rate 30.0 30,0 30,0
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation {24.2) (28.6) (1;5]
Ciner iming differences {1.4) 1.7 B4
Disposal of businesses - - 25
Withdrawal from infrastructure management in the Americas (4.0) - -
Prior years tax adjustments {12.8) - .
Net costs not deductible for tax purposes 1.6 2.3 ZE
Actual current tax rate {10.8) 5.4 118
o DIVIDENDS
2003 2002 2001
tm fm ag]
Interim dividend of 15.5 pence (2002 - 15.3 pence; 2001 - 15.0 pence) 88.2 84.7 829
Final dividend of 32.1 pence proposed {2002 ~ 31.7 pence; 2001 - 31.1 pence) 178.6 176.2 1720
264.8 260.9 254.9
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Restated Restated
2003 2002 pivaal
Profit for the financial year attributable to ordinary sharsholders £277.8m £261.8m £341.3m
Basic earnings per ordinary share 50.0p 47.3p 61.9p
Ciluted eamnings per ordinary share 49.8p 47.2p 61.6p
Adjusted basic earnings per share: £m £m £m
Profit for the finarkial year atiributable to ardinary shareholders 2718 261.8 3413
Adjustments:
Discontinued cperations - - (17.6)
Exceptionat itsms:
- business restructuring 3.8 19 166
— withdrawal from infrastructure management in the Americas [34.0} - -
- adjustment 10 the ¢amying value of telecommunications assets 255 - -
Profit on disposal of businesses - - (191.2)
Exceptional taxation 94 - 69.0
Amortisation of goodwill 7.5 8.0 4.0
Adjusted profit for financial year attributable to ordinary shareholders 271.2 281.7 2221
Adjusted basic eamings per ordinary share 48.8p 50.9p 40.3p
Adjusted diluted eamings per ordinary share 48.6p 50.7p 40.1p

Basic earnings per ardinary share and the adjusted basic eamings per ordinary share have been calculated by dividing profit and the adjusted profit for the financial year
atiributabie to ordinary shareholders by 556.1 million, being the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year (2002 - 553.5 miion; 2001 — 551.1 million).

Dituted eamings per ordinary share and acjusied diuted samings per ordinary share have been calodaled by dividing profit and tre adjusted profis for the finencial year
attributable to ordiinary shareholders by S57.€ milicn, being the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year including ditstive shares (2002 — 555.2 million;
2001 — 553.7 milion),

Adjusted samings per shars is being presented to provide additional nformation on the group's undertying performance.
The weighted average number of shares can be reconcdiled to the weighted average number of shares including dilutive shares as fofows:

2003 2002 2001
million rrition miion
Average number of ordinary shares in issue - basic 556.1 553.5 551.1
Averagde number of ordinary shares under option 9.6 100 128
Number of ordinary shares that would have baen issued at fair vakie 8.1} (8.3} (10.2)
Average nurmber of ordinary shares in issue - diluted 557.6 555.2 553.7
11 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Other
Goodwil infangities Total
£m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 Aprit 2002 84.0 9.0 93.0
Additions 1.2 - 7.2
Revaluations {1.2) - (1.2)
At 31 March 2003 20.0 9.0 99.0
Amottisation:
At 1 Aprit 2002 1.7 a1 1.8
Charge for ¥ year 8.8 03 T4
Revaluations 2.3 B.6 109
At 31 March 2003 20.8 9.0 208
Net book value:
AL 31 March 2003 69,2 - 69.2
At 31 March 2002 723 8.9 81.2
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12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtwes, Assets in
Land andt Infrastncture Operational fittings, tooks course of
puldings assols assets and expuipment corstruction Total
Group fm tm fm £m m ™
Cost:
At31 March 2002 as previously stated 245.0 3.278.6 4,368.1 7296 823.3 94486
Restatements - - 7.2} - - r.2
Restated at 1 April 2002 2490 32786 4,360.9 720.6 823.3 9,441.4
Acquisitions - - - 34 - 3.1
Additions 6.2 65.5 156.5 56.5 502.6 7873
Grants and contributions - 9.1) - - - 9.1)
Transfers 91.5 101.5 238.3 999 (531.2) -
Disposals (1.9) - 209 (52.1) - 7.9
At 31 March 2003 344.8 3,436.5 4,734.3 837.0 7947 10,147.8
Depreciation:
At 31 March 2002 as previcusly stated 53.8 1,044.6 1,263.2 400.5 - 2,768.1
Restatements - - 0.2 - - 0.2
Restated at 1 April 2002 59.8 1,044.6 1,263.4 400.5 - 2,768.3
Charge for the year 11.9 96.7 161.2 80.0 - 349.8
Transfers 242 - {30.8) 6.5 - -
Disposals [1.6) - (19.9) (51.3) - r2.2)
Revaluzations - - 146 - - 146
At 31 March 2003 94.4 1,413 1,389.1 435.7 - 3,060.5
Net book value:
At 31 March 2003 250.4 22952 3,345.7 401.3 794.7 7,087.3
Ar 31 March 2002 as restated 189.2 2.234.0 3,097.5 3291 823.3 6,673.1
Grants and contributions received relaling to infrasuucture assets have been deducied from the cost of fixed assets in order 10 show a true and fair view {accounting policy
note 1(n)). As a cansequence, the net book value of fixed assets is £99.4 million (2002 - £90.3 milion) lower than it would have been had this treatment not been adopted.
Within tangible fixed assels are assets heid under finance leases at the following amounts:
2003 2002
£m [
Cost:
Operational assets 2508 250.8
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 0.7 6.8
At 31 March 251.5 257.6
Accumulated depreciation:
Operational assets 814 7.2
Fixtures, fitings, taols and equipment 0.5 26
At 31 March 81.9 77.8
Net book value:
Operational assets 169.4 17386
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 0.2 6.2
At 3t March 169.6 179.8
Capital commitments at 31 March 2003 were as follows:
2008 2002
em £m
Capital commitments:
Corntracted but not provided for 402.7 1738
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Company

Cost;
At 1 Aprif 2002 and 31 March 2003 4.8
Depreciation:
At 1 April 2002 3.7
Charge for the year Q.1
At 31 March 2003 3.8
Nat baok value:
At 31 March 2003 1.0
At 3% March 2002 1.1
The company had no capital commitments in the years ended 31 March 2003 and 31 March 2002,
13 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Joirt ventures Other investments

Unlisted Loans Total Unistod Usted Total Totak
Group £m £m frn em £m £m om
At 31 March 2002 as prevously stated 48.5 8.6 571 186 78 26.4 835
Restaternents (4.1} -~ {4.1) - - - (4.1}
Restated at 1 April 2002 44.4 8.6 530 18.6 7.8 264 79.4
Additions 1.2 5.0 6.2 1.0 - 1.0 7.2
Share of prefits 19 - 19 - - - 19
Disposals 7.0 - (7.0) - 7.9) (7.8) (14.8)
Distributions and loan repayments (11.9) {2.0) {13.9) - - - (13.9
Exchange adjustments 0.1) 01 - 02 - 0.2) 0.2
AL 31 March 2003 85 117 402 184 - 194 59.6

Included within unisted joint ventures is E7.7 milion of goodwll (net of £1.3 million amortisation) in respect of the group's investment in AS Talinna Vesi and £1,1 milion [net of

£0.1 million amortisation) n respect of tha group's investment in international Water UU (Highlang) Limited.

Share of profits comprise share of operating profits £14.9 milion, share of interest charge £11.3 million and share of taxation charge £1.7 million,

Sharesin
subsidiary Other

wunarakings inmstrments Tatal
Company £m Bm £m
Cost:
At 1 April 2002 5,685.6 3.8 5,569.5
Revaluation (10.8} - {10.8)
At 31 March 2003 5,554.8 3.9 5,588.7
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

Detalls of principal operating subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures, all of which are unksted, are set out below.

These undertakings ane included within the consodated group firancial statements.

Class of sharg  Propoction of share capitel  Natua of

capitaf held awned/voting rights bustess
Subsidiary undertakings:
Great Britain:
United Utililies Water PLC Ordinary 100%" Water and wastewater services and network managemant
United Utiities Bectrigity PLC Ordinary 100%™ Blectricity distribution and related services
Your Communications Limited Crdinary 100%" Telecommunications
Vertex Data Science Limited Ordinary  B5.6% Business process outsourcing
Vertex Customer Management {UK) Limited Ordinary  B85.6%" Business process oputsourcing
United Utilities International Limited Ordinary 100%™ Consulting services and project management
United Utilties Green Energy Limited Ordinary 100%* Ranewable energy senices
United Ltiities Industrial Limited Ordinary 100%™ Water freatrment operations
United LHiities Facilities and Property Services Limited Ordinary 100% Property and faciliies management
United Uliklles Operatiorial Services Limited Ordinary 100%" Cperation and maintenance of water and wastewater assets
of Dwr Cymiu
United Ltilities Operational Services (Highland} Limited Ordinary 100%" Operation and maintenance of wastewater assets
United Lhilities Operational Services (Tay} Limited Crdinary 100%" Operation and maintenance of wastewater assets
United Utifties Operational Services (Moray) Limited Crdinary 100%" Operation and maintenance of wastewater assets
Australia:
Unitee! Utilities Macarthur Operations Pty Limited Ordinary 100%* Jechnica! and management services
Yabulu Water Pty Limited Ordinary 100%™ Technical and management services
Canada:
Vertex Customer Management [Canada) Umited Ordinary 85.6%" Business process outsourcing
India:
7C Customer Services India Private Limited QOrdinary 64.2%" Busingss process outsourcing
Joint ventures:
Great Britain;
Catchment Uimited Ordinary 50%"° Contract operations and maintenance services
Catchrment (Tay) Limited Ovdinary 33%" Contract operations and maintenance services
Catchment (Moray) Limited Ordinary 33%” Contract operations and maintenance sexvices
Meter Serve (North Wast) Limited Ordinary 50%" Metering senvices
Mater Servee (North East) Limited Crdinary 50%" Metering services
Australia:
Yar: Yean Water Pty Limited Ordinary 50%* Water treatment operations
Macarthur Water Pty Limited Ordinary 50%* Water treatment operations
Riveriand Water Pty Limited Qrdinary 50%" Water treatment operations
Estonia:
AS Tallinna Vesi Ordinary 25.2%" Confract operations and maintenance services
Bulgaria:
Sofijska Voda A.D. Ordinary  39.5%" Contract operations and maintenance services

* Shares are held direcily by United Uiilities PLC except where marked with an asterisk where they are held by subsidiary undertakings.
Afull list of the company's subsidiary undertakings is included within the compary's annual retum.,
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Acquisitions

Revaluation Fair vakse

Book value adjusimants te group

m fm £m

Tangible fixed assets 5.1 2.0} 341
Debtors 0.2 - 0.2
Cash 0.3 - 0.3
Creditors falling dus within one year 2.3 0.3) (2.6
Provisions for liabilities and charges (.0} (5.2) 6.2)
Delferred tax asset - 3.2 3.2
Minority imergst ©0.2) - 0.2
Net assets/(iabilities) 21 4.3 2.2}

Consideration:

Cash 5.0
Goodwill arising T2

Vertex Data Science Limited acquired the business and assets of the UK contact cenire operator, 7C, and its 75 per cent shareholding in 7C India Ltd on 2 Decembex 2002,

Apove is an analysis of the net asssts acquined and the fair value to the group.

The results and cashflows of the acouisition have not bean disclosad separatety in the profit and loss account or cash flow statement as they do not form a significant part of

the group's resufts.
14 STOCKS
Group
Restated
2003 2002
£m £m
Raw materials and finished goods 8.5 6.1
Work in progress 121 2.7
20.6 8.8
15 DEBTORS
Group Cormpary
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m em om
Amounts falling due within one yean
Trade debtors 313.6 327.6 - -
Provisions for doubtful debts {93.9) (70.8) - -
219.7 257.0 - -
Amounts owed by subsiciary undertakings - - 18410 1,662.1
Other debtors 8.6 16.8 - 6.6
Prepayments and accruad income 218.6 140.8 1.7 3.4
4459 414.6 1,842.7 1,672.1

Within prepayments and acerued incoms is £59.6 milion which falls due after more than one year (2002 - £36.9 miion).
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

16 CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £rn £m m
Managed funds and short-term kwvestments. 650.8 368.8 3741 804
Other curment assat investments 18.1 20.7 - -
66B.e 3825 aTa 834
17 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Growp Company
PRestated
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m om £ £m
Loans 359 71.0 - -
Bank overdrafts and termporary bormowings 157.8 164.9 124.3 142.3
Ohbligations under finance leases 108.7 - - -
Trade creditors 612 72.1 - -
Arnounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 1,285.2 15205
Dividends 179.T 178.4 797 1785
Caorporation taxation 148.9 186.8 - -
Other taxation and social security 3.2 75 4.5 2.6
Accruals and deferred income 728.8 661.1 55.5 56.4
1,424.1 1,341.8 1,659.7 1,900.3
18 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Gop Sampany
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Loans 3,680.0 3,012.0 768.5 753.1
Obligations under finance isases 81.1 206.6 - -
Other craditors 24.0 - - -
Deferred grants and contributions (note 19) 285.5 265.6 - -
4,070.6 3,478.2 768.5 753.1
19 DEFERRED GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
£m
At 1 April 2002 265.6
Received in the year 290
Credit to profit and loss account for the year 8.1)
At 31 March 2003 285.5
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20 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Group Company
Share of nat
liabiities. of
Deferred joint veniue
tax Restructuring (Avgenting) Cther Total Other
£m m m £m £m Em
At 31 March 2002 256.0 89 38.0 7.9 3108 4.1
Restatements - - 0.3 - Q3 -
Restated at 1 April 2002 256.0 89 38.3 79 3111 41
Arising on acquisitions 3.2} 3.3 - 2.9 3.0 -
Uitised - {r.1) - B.OY (15.1) {4.1)
Profit and loss account 828 15 (38.3) - 46.0 -
A% 31 March 2003 3356 66 - 2.8 345.0 -

The restructuring provisions are for costs of restructuring within the telecommunications business, and in relation to the 7C acquisition which are expected 1o be utilised
within the following twelve months.

21 DEFERRED TAX

2003 2002
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 1,183.4 1,106.9
Short-tern timing differences {80.7) 821}
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 1,102.7 1,024.8
Discount LT (165.8)
Discounted provision for defemed tax 335.6 256.0
22 BORROWINGS
Below is an analysis of gross debt which, after taking inte account cash and short-term investrents of £689.3 mikion, reduces 1o net debt of £3,373.8.
2003 2002
£m om
Bank overdrafis and {emporary borrowings 157.5 164.9
Term oans 3,7115.9 3,083.0
Finance leases 139.8 2006
4,063,2 3,448.5
2003 2002
Rapaymenis fall due as follows: Year £m Yaar £m
After five yoars 2009+ 2,291.0 2008+ 26144
From four to five years 2008 901.2 2007 56.6
From three to four yaars 2007 50.9 2006 448.8
From two to three years 2006 468.1 2005 54.4
From one to two years 2005 49.9 2004 38.4
Alter more than one year 3,761 32126
Within one year 2004 3021 2003 235.9
4,063.2 3.448.5

Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings

The bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings are repayabie in less than one year. The weighted average rate of nterest on bankoverdraﬁsandtemporarybonumngsms
4,25 per cent (2002 ~ 4.8 per cent). The group had available committed bank faciiies of £835.0 milion {2002 - £1,010.0 milicr) of which £934.2 milion was unutiised at

31 March 2003 {2002 - £986.2 milien). Of the amounts unutiised, £200.0 milion expire within ona year, £160.0 millon expire after one year but in less than two years, and the
remaining £574.2 million expire in move than two years. In addition, the company has contracted but not yet issued, £50.0 mifion of long-term debt securities and a £10.0 miion
fong-termn oan had not been drawn down 28 21 March, 2002

Term lodans

Amounts repayatle after mare than five years comprise bank and other kans repayable betwesan 2009 and 2053. Interest rates range from 3.375 per cent to 14.83 per cent
on £1,932.0 mifion {2002 - £2,386.0 miion) and are &t fioating rates on £359.0 mihion (PO02 - £228.4 mition).
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

On total hormowings, interest @ies ranga from 0.75 per cent to 14.83 par cent on £3,264.6 milion and are at flcating rates on £798.6 million,

The analysis of net delst prior %0 the effect of derivative instruments, and its interest rate profils, is as follows:

Weighted average interest Weightex averaga period for
Borrowings at 31 March rate at which bomowings are fxed which interest is fixed
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
m £m % % Yoars Years
Fixed rate borrowings:
Bieriing 4,308.7 978.8 7.5 3.2 1%3 165
United States dollars * 753.0 7530 6.5 6.5 10.8 11.8
Euros * 1,102.3 108186 5.9 5.9 5.0 6.0
Japanese yen * 100.6 84.0 31 36 16.0 19.2
3,264.6 2,9074 6.6 6.7 1.1 1.3
Floating rate borrowings:
Sterling 641.0 484.5
Japanese yen * 123 12.3
United States doliars * 13.8 44.3
Euro * 118.0 -
Hong Kong doflars * 12.5 -
7986 541.1
Floating rate investments:
Sterling (ncluding cash} (689.3) (387.7}
Net debit at 31 March 3,373.9 3,080.8

* Currency items are recorded in the balance sheet at the hedged rate.

Included in the abowve table is a loan with Japanesse yen principal paying a United States dollar coupon. included in fixed rate borrewings is a loan of £50.0 milion for which the

principal and interest is linked to the Retail Price Index.
The fair values of the group's financia instruments are shown on page 65.
Taking into account dervative instruments, net debt can be analysed as follows:

Weighted avexage interest Waeighted average period for
Borrowings at 31 March rati at which bomowings are fixed which interest is fixed
2003 2002 2063 2002 2003 2002
£m £m %% % Years Yeors
Fixed rate borowings:
Sterling 2,938.8 2,569.5 73 7.4 4.1 5.5
Floaling rate borowings:
Stering 1,124.4 879.0
Floating rate investments:
Sterling (including cash) (689.3) (387.7)
Net debt at 31 March 33739 3.060.8

Floating interest rates are based on LIBOR,
Company

Excluding amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings, the company has borrowings totaling £893.3 milion (2002 - £895.4 milkon} of which £124.8 million falls dus within one
year, The temaining 10ans totaling £768.5 milion comprise £212.1 milion repayabie in the year ending 2006, £15.3 mifion repayable in the year ending 2008, £288.7 milion

repayable in the year ending 2009 and £242.4 milion repayable in the year ending 2028.

The loan repayable in the year ending 2006 is at a fixed rate of interast of 6.26 per cent, the loan repayable in the year ending 2008 is at a floating rate, The an repayable in the

year ending 2009 is at a fixed rate of interest of 8.45 per cent. The loan repayaldle in tne year ending 2028 is at a Tixed rate of nterest of 6,875 per cent.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The primary financial risks faced by the group are interest rate risk and exchange rate risk.

The board has revewed and agreed policies for managing each of these dsks as summarised below. The baard has also appmved af of the ¢lassaes of financial instruments
used by the group. The group’s treasury function, which is authorised to conduct the day-to-day treasury activities of the group, reports at least annually to the board,

The group uses a variety of financial instrurments, inchuding derivatives, to raise finance for its operations arxd 1o manage the risks arising from those operations.

The group bormows in the major global debt markets in a range of cumencies at both fixed and floating rates of interest, using derivatives where appropriate to generate the
desirad effective currency profife and interest basis. The affect of the use of derivatives is ilustrated in note 22.

Under an interest rate swap, the group agrees with another party to exchange at specific intsrvals the difference between fixed rate ard fioating rate interest amounts calculated
by reference 1o an agmed notional principal amount, The notional principal of thesa instruments reflects the extent of the group’s involvement in tha instruments, but does not
represent its axposum 1o oredit risk wihich is assessed by reference to the fair value.

Under a cumency Swap, the group agrees with ancther party 1o exchange the principal amount of two currencies together with interest amounts in the two cumencies agreed
by reference to a specific interast rate basis and the principal amount. The principal of thess instruments reflects the extent of the group’s involvernent in the instruments, but
does not represant its exposure to credit risk which is assessed by reference to the far value,

All transactions are undertaken 1o manage the risks arising from underlying business activities and no speculative trading is undertaken. The counterparties to these instruments
generally consist of finarcia institutions and other bodies with good credit ratings, Althcugh the group is potentially exposed to credit loss i the event of non-perfoamiance by
counterparties, such credit risk is controlled through credit rating reviews of the counterparties and by imiting the total amount of exposure to any one party. The group does
not beliowe it is exposed to any materal concentrations of credit risk,

As noted above, the group uses dervatives 10 manage 45 exquosure to currency risk on its bomowings, Subsidiary underiakings make no significant sales or purchases in
currencies other than that of the country in which they operate. Accordingly, the group has no material unhedged forsign curmency exposures.

Financial instrurrients utiised by the group can be surmmarised as follows:

Inferest rate swaps

lnterest rate swaps are used solely to manage floating rate borrowings in order 1 reduce the financial risk to the group from potential future changes in medium-term
interest rates,

Financial futures

Financial futures are used to manage the group's exposure to possible future changes in short-term interest rates.

Forward contracts

The group generally hedges foreign exchange transaction exposures up to one year forward. Hedges are put in place using forward contracts at the time that the forecast
exposure becomes reasonably certain.

Currency swaps

The group uses currency swaps to hadge currency exposure whers debt is raised in one currency to fund in a difierent currency.

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are made at a specific pint in time, based on refevant market information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates are

subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore cannot be determined precisety. Changes i assumptions could
significantfy aftect the estimates.

2003 2002

Fair Far

Book vakie vafua Book value value

At 31 March £m £m £m £m
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt 302.1 302.1 235.9 235.9
L ong-term debt 3,761.1 4,230.2 32126 3,383.6
4,063.2 4,532.3 34,4485 3,619.5

interest rate swaps - 217 - 87.3
Foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps - (240.3} - {93.6)
Total borrowings 4,063.2 4,318.7 3,448.5 3613.2

Fair vakses have been estimated using the folowing methods and assumptions:

Long-term investments

The fakr value of investrments for which there are no quoted market prices, approximats to their canying value of £58.6 milion.
Current assets and liabilities

Financial instruments inciuded within current assets and liabifties (excluding cash and borrowings) are generafly short-termn in nature and accordingly their fair values approximate
{0 their book values.

Long-term receivables and liabilities

The fair values of financial Instruments included within long-term receivables and Babilities {excluding borrowings) are based on discounted cash flows using appropriate market
interest rates,
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

Net borrowings and non-equity interests (excluding foreign exchange contracts)

The camying vaiues of cash and short-terrn borrowings and currert asset investments appraximate 1o their fair values because of the short-term maturity of these instruments.
The fair value of quoted long-term borrowings and guaranteed preferred securities is based on year end mid-market quoted prices. The farr value of other long-term borowings
is estimated by discounting the future cash fiows to net present values using appropriate market interest rates prevailing at the year end.

Currency and interest rate swaps

The group enters into currency and interest rate swaps in order to manage its foreign cumency and interest sale exposures.

The fair value of these financial instruments is estimated by discounting the future cash fliows to net present values using appropriate market interest rates prevaiing at the year
end. The carmying and fair values of currency and interest rate swaps include the related accrued interest receivabies and payables.

Hedges

Unrecogrised gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities for which hedge accounting has been used at the balance sheet date wen £379.3 milion and £166.7 milion
respectively (2002 - £191.7 milion and £185.4 million).

The group anticipates that £58.9 million of thesa gains and £67.2 milion of these losses wi be realised in the forthcoming financial year. Of the unnecognised gains and kosees
on hedges as at 1 Aprl 2002 tha net loss recogrised in the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2003 was £14.1 million.

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
The movernents in shareholders’ equity as restated are as folows:

Group and company Group Company
Caited up Shara Profit Profit
share Ppramium and loss and loss Othex
capital account account Totad acoount resenyes Total
£m £m m £m £m £m m
At 31 March 2000 550.5 645.1 1,168.8 2,364.4 1,645.1 - 2,840.7
Restatement - - (9.6} Q.6 - - -
Restated profit/ioss) for financial year - - 3413 341.3 (194.4) 2.544.8 2,350.4
Dividends on ordinary shares - - (254.9) (254.9) (254.9) - (254.9)
Shares issusd net of costs 2.4 1.5 - 13.9 - - 1398
Capitalisation of reserves in respect of shares
issued via QUEST - - (1.5) 1.5} - - -
Goodwill on business disposals - - 101.0 i01.0 - - -
Unrealised gain on sake of minority interest in
Vertex Data Science Limited - - 344 344 - - -
Exchangs adjustments - - (6.0) 6.0 - - -
At 31 March 2001 552.9 656.6 1.373.5 2,583.0 1,195.8 25448 4,950.1
Restated profit/joss) for financial year - - 261.8 261.8 24.0¢ - [24.0
Dividends on ordinary shares - - {260.9) (260.9) (260.9) - {260.9)
Shares issusd net of costs 3.0 150 - 18.0 - - 18.0
Capitalisation of reserves in respect of shares
issued via QUEST - - 5.0} 6.0 - - -
Currency translation adjustment on equity
investmant in Argentina - - {78.6) {7188 - - -
Exchange adjustments - - 09 0.9 - - -
Al 31 March 2002 555.9 6716 1.291.7 2,519.2 910.9 2,544.8 4,683.2
Profit for financial year - - 2778 277.8 601.8 - €018
Dividerds on ordinary shares - - (264.8) (264.8) (264.8) - (264.8)
Shares issued nst of costs 0.6 2.7 - 3.3 - - 3.3
Goodwill written back on the sale of US Water - - 09 c9 - - -
Currency transtation adjustment on equity
investment in Argentina - - (6.8) 6.8} - - -
Exchange adjustments - - 4.0 4.0 - - -
At 31 March 2003 556.5 £74.3 1,302.8 2,533.6 1,247.9 2,544.8 5,023.5

As alowed by section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985, the company has not resented its own profit and 1055 account, The amount of group profit for the financial year dealt
with in the company's profit and loss account is £601.8 million (2002 - £24.0 milion loss; 2001 ~ £194.4 mifion loss) after accounting for dividends receiveble from subsidiary
undestakings of £958.6 milion (2002 — £6.9 milion; 2001 — £23.1 milion).
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The cumulative amount of goodwill included in reserves resulting from acquisitions during the years ended 2003, 2002, 2001 and prior years, before FRS 10 became
effective, net of goodwilt attributable to subsidiaries or businessas demerged or disposed of prior to 31 March 2003, amounts to £1,023.0 million (2002 ~ £1,023.9 milion;
2001 ~ £1,023.9 miflion). Consolidated retained eamings at 31 March 2003 include retained losses of joint ventures and agsociated undertakings of £12.5 milion {2002 as
restated - 14,4 milion; 2001 as restated — £10.9 million). The cumuiative amaount of exchange adustments included within consciidated retained eamings is £{7 .3) mifion
(2002 — £(11.3) mifion; 2001 — £{12.2} milion).

Apart from dividends from United Ulilities YWater PLC and United Litilties Electricity PLC, which are subject to certain regulatory restrictions, there are no significant statutory or
contractual restrictions on the distribution of cument profits of subsidiary or joint veniture undertakings; undistributed profits of prior years are, in the main, permanently employed
in the businesses of thesa undertakings. The undistributed profits of group undertakings overseas may be liable to overseas taxes and/or UK taxation {atter allowing for double
1axation relef} if they were to be distrbuted as dividends. No provision has been made in respect of potential taxation kabifittes on realisation of assets at restated or revalued
armounts or on realisation of joint verhure undertakings at equity accounted value,

The authorised ordinary share capital of the company was 800,000,000 ordinary sharss of £1 sach. The aotted and fully paid share capital of the company at 31 March 2003
was 556,526,651 ordinary shares {555,942,338 ordinary shares at 31 March 2002; 552,801,025 ordinary shares at 31 March 2001).

584,313 ordinavy shares wera alictted during the year ended 31 March 2003 {2002 — 3,041,312 ordinary shares; 2001 - 2,389,139 ordinary shares) for the exercise of options
in accondance with the rules of the employee ShareSave schemes and the executive share option scheme for & total consideration of £3.3 mifion (2002 - £18.0 mikion; 2001 -
138 mikon).

Since 3t March 2003, 168,762 shargs have been alictted on the exercise of options and at 21 May 2003, the company's issved share capital, credited a5 fully paid, was
£556,695,413.

During the year ended 31 March 20(H, an internal mestructuring msulted in a profit of £2.544.8 million in the company's acoounts. This profit, 2s it arosa on an intemal
restructuring, is not distributable and is shown within other esenves. The restructuring has had no effect on the group accounts. Certain assets of a subsidiary, United Utilites
Electricity PLC, wera trangfemad to other subsidiaries of the company. Under the Companies Acts this transfer would have requined the company to recogrise gn impairment in
the camying vaiue of United Utlities Electricity PLC and a reduction in the profit and loss account by that amount. As the transfer did not result in any overall loss in value of the
company's investments, in order to show & true and fair view, it is necessary to depart from the Act and reallocate an amount from the cost of imvestment in United Utiities
Electricity PLC to other subsiclaries. There is no effact on the group accounts.

The employee ShareSave scheme is available to all eligibie employees and the company share option scheme 1999 is for senior executives (excluding, with effect from the
introduction of the greup’s long-term incentive plan, executive diractors and other executives participating in that plan and its successor, the perfomance share plan). The
ShareSave scheme is based on SAYE savings contracts with options exercisable within a six-month perdiod fom the conclagion of a three or five-yesr period as appropriate from
the date of grant. Under the terns and conditions of this scheme, for every month fap to no mere than six months) an employee fails to contribute the agreed monthly amount
determined under the nules of the scheme, the last date exercisable will be delayed by cne month. Options under the company shars option scheme 1999 ara exarcisable in a
period beginning no earlier than three years (five years for discounted options under the formmer executive share option scheme, which are ne longer granted) and ending no later
than ten years from the date of grant. Options cutstanding under the share option schemes at 31 March, together with their exercise prices and dates, were (as set out overdeaf):
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

Exercise Nemal @m
2000 2002 prica of eworciss
Employse ShareSave scheme - 7,848 404.8p (1} 2000 or 2002
- 99,720 476.0p (1) 2002
578,707 682,778 616.5p (1) 2001 or 2003
260,356 391,203 707.5p (1) 2002 or 2004
2560664 3,041,976 4715p (1) 2003 or 2005
1,429,551 1,678,910 556.5p (1) 2004 or 2006
1,797,600 1,971,047 500.0p (1) 2005 or 2007
1,976,405 - 490.0p (1) 2006 or 2008
Executive share option scheme - 2,713 392.7p(3) 1995 {0 2002
- 904 334.2p{2) 1887 to 2002
2,1 12,978 463.4p {3) 1995 to 2003
4,197 18,038 394.2p(2) 1998 to 2003
4,650 4,650 446.9p (3) 1996 to 2003
2,647 7,842 3802p (&) 1998 to 2000
58,519 120,718 566.9p (3) 1997 to 2004
41,018 66,262 482.0p(2) 1909 to 2004
3ggi2 |I12 S30.4p (3) 1997 to 2004
23,510 32617 450.8p (2) 1992 to 2004
23,441 45,518 479.9p (3) 1997 to 2004
31,165 43420 408.2p {(2) 1998 ta 2004
56,155 56.155 564.0p (3) 1998 to 2005
21,252 21,252 479.8p (2) 2000 to 2005
136,449 151,450 584.5p (3 1998 to 2005
168,126 178,448 544.5p (3) 1999 fo 2006
204,909 328,908 628.0p(3) 200010 2007
169,500 169,500 632.0p{3) 2000 to 2007
528,249 562,249 768.5p{3) 2000 to 2007
155,750 155,750 886.0p (3) 2001 tc 2008
297,750 310,250 868.0p (3) 2001 to 2008
949,634 968,451 768.0p (3) 2002 to 2009
Comgpany share option scheme 1999 399,089 402,728 615.5p (3) 2002 to 2009
980,905 1,005,559 660.0p (3} 2003 to 2010
527,293 527,293 666.0p (3} 2003 to 2010
978,400 983,462 6852,0p (3} 2004 10 201 1“
542,814 542,814 589.0p (3} 200510 2012
725,061 - 611.0p (3) 2005 to 2012
1,296,085 - 630.0p (3} 2005to 2012
17,080,894 15,432,424

{1) The exercisa price represents BO per cent of the market price as at the date the option was granted.
{2) The exemise price represents BS per cent of the market price as at the date the option was granted.
{3) The exercise price etualied the markst price a the date the option was granted.

An opportunity 10 join the employes ShareSave scheme was offered during the years ended 31 March 2003, 31 March 2002 ang 31 March 2001, and options were also
granted under the company share option scheme 1999. In the year ended 31 March 2003, options were granted under the option schemes in respect of a total of 4,016,642

ofdinary shares {2002 - 3,538,123 ordinary shares, 2001 - 3,636,897 ordinary shares), options for 1,447,851 ordinary shares (2002 - 3,079,711 ordinary shares,

2001 - 2,179,862 ordinary shares) were exercised and options for 349,451 ordinary shares (2002 - 1,386,409 ordinary shares, 2001 ~ 1,899,714 ordinary shares} lapsed

or were cancelled.

United Utilities established a Quealifying Employse Share Ownership Trust (QUEST) in 1998, an employee benefil trust complying with requicernents of the Finance Act 1989, The
QUEST trustee assumed the obligation to satisfy options granted under the existing United Utlities ShareSave scheme. During the year, shares hekd by the QUEST were used to
satisly all grants under the continuing United Utiities ShareSave scheme. All finance costs and administration expenses connected with the operation of the QUEST wers written
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off to the profit and less account as they accnued. All dividends have been waived in accordance with the st deed between United Utiilies PLC and United Utilites QUEST
Trustea Umited as trustee. The QUEST is not leveraged. There were no shares held in the QUEST at 31 March 2003. As a result of changes in the tax regime, shares have been
alotted directly to ShareSave participants since 1 Apd 2003 and amangements are now being made to wind up the QUEST,

25 PENSIONS

The group participates in a number of pension schermes principally in the UK. The major schemes are funded defined benefit schemes — the United Utilities Pension Scheme
{UUPS) and the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS) (the 'Schemes’, of which the ESPS is dlosed to new employess. UUPS also includes a defined contrbution section
which constitutes less than 0.5 per cent of the to1al asse! value, The assets of these Schemes are held in tust funds independent of group finances.

For UUPS and ESPS, the pension cost under the accounting standard SSAP 24 have been assessed in accordance with the advice of a firm of actuaries, Mercer Human
Resource Gonsulting, using the projected unit methad. For this purpose, the actuarial assumptions adopted are based ypon nvestrnent growth of 6.0 per cent per annum,

pay growth of 4.0 per cent per annum and nerzases to pensions in payment and deferred pengions of 2.5 per cent per annum, The actuarial value of the agsets was taken
as the market valus of the assets.

The last actuarial valuations of the two Schernes wera cared out as at 31 March 2001, The combined markst value of the groupy's shars of the assets of the two Schemes at
the valuation date wag £1,833.0 mifion. Using the assumptions adopted for SSAF 24 the combined actuanial value of the assets represented 113 per cent of the value of the

accrued benafits after aflowing for expected future eamings increases. In deriving the pension cost under SSAP 24, the surplus in the Schemes i being spread over the future
working kfetime of the existing members.

For UUPS, the employer's contributions have been assessed in accordance with the advice of Mercer Human Resource Consuling using different assumptions to those
described above. For ESPS, the employer’s contributions have been assessed in accordance with the advice of a firm of actuaries, Hewitt Bacon and Woodraw, using different
assumptions and methods to thase described abave.

The group also operates a seres of unfunded, unapproved etirement benefit schemes. The cost of the unfunded, unapproved retirement benefit schemes is included in the
total pension cost, on a basis consistent with SSAP 24 and the assumptions sat cut hove. In accordance with these ynlunded arangements, the group has made payments
to former cirectors, nchuding lumg sum payments, of £207,387 in total in the year ended 31 March 2003 (2002 - £205,946; 2001 - £231,388).

The total pension cost for the period was £8.2 milion {2602 — £5.0 milior; 2001 - £6.7 million}. A prepayment of £68.5 milkon is included i the balance sheet at 31 March 2003
{2002 - £36.2 rmifien). Information About the pension arrangements Tor execulive drectors is contained in the repon on remuneration.

FRS 17 Transitional disclosures

Group

Tha pension cost figures used in these accourts comply with the current pension oost accourting standard SSAP 24. A new pension cost accounting standand, FRS 17
‘Retirement Benefits', was originally intended to be applied in the accounts for the year ending 31 March 2004 and subsaquent years. However, during the year, the Accounting
Standards Board (ASB) has defermed the full implementation of FRS 17. Under transitional arrangements, the group is required to disclose the fofowing infonmation about its
pension amengements and the figurss that would have been shown under FRS 17 in the financial statements.

The katest formal valuations of the Schemes were camied out a5 at 31 March 2001, The valuation of labities detalled below has been derived Ly projecting forward the position
at 31 March 2001 and has been performed by an ndependent actuary, Mercer Human Resource Consulting. FRS 17 gives the prasent value of pension liabilities by discounting
pension commitments (including an alowance for salary growth), at an AA corporate bond yield. Deferred pensions are revalued o retirement age it ine with the Schemes’ niles
ard stabutory reguirements. The major inandial assurmnplions used by the actuary were as fokows:

At 31 March AL March
2003 2002

Discount rate 5.50% 6.00%
Pensionable salary growth 4.00% 4.30%
Pension increases 2,50% 2.80%
Price inflation 2.50% 2.80%

The assets and liabilities of the Schemes, along with the expected rates of eturn on the Schemes’ assets as at 3T March 2003 and 31 March 2002 were as follows:

At 31 March 2003 Al 31 March 2002
Expected Expecied

rate of Total rata of Total

retum €m refumn &m

Equitiss 7.50% 1,003.0 B.25% 11375
Property 7.50% 3.5 8.25% 735
Bonds 5.50% 217.4 6.00% 233.0
Giits 4.50% 4.3 5.25% 02.5
Other 4.50% 24.2 5.25% 283
Market value of assets 1,567.4 1.774.8

Prasent value of Schemes’ liabilities (1,993.2) (1,753.2)
Implied (deficit)/surplus in the Schemes (425.8) 218

Related deferred tax assat/(iability} 127.7 6.5)
Net pension {liability)/asset under FRS 17 (298.1) 151
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

If the: above amounts had been recognised in the financial statements, the group’s net assets and peofit and less reseve as at 31 March 2003 and 31 March 2002 wouid

be as follows:
Restated
2003 2002
£m £m
Net assets excluding pension fiabilityyasset 2,551.3 25344
SSAP 24 prepayment, net of deferred tax 41.0) (25.8)
Accruals for unfunded scheme 6.2 5.4
Pension (iability)/asset (296.1) 154
Net assets including pension (iabitity)/asset 22184 25291
Profit and loss reserve excluding pension (iability)/asset 1,302.8 1,291.7
SSAP 24 prepayment, net of deferred tax 41.0) (25.8)
Accruals for unfunded scheme 62 5.4
Pension (iatilityyasset |288.1) 15.1
Profit and loss reserve including pension {iability)/asset 969.9 1,286.4
The amourits which, or ull implementation of FRS 17, will be required in the financial statements are as follows:
Analysis of the amouni charged o operating profit m’::
GCurrent service cost 41,4
Past service cost 26
Tota operating charge 44.0
Analysls of other finance costs: 2003
£m
Expected return on pension schema assels 129.5
Interest on pension scheme liakilities (104.4)
Net retum 251
Analysis of amount recognised in sta t of total recognised galns and losses mct:
Actual retum lass expected retum on pension scheme assets (395.49)
Experience gains and losses ansing on the scheme habiities 3.3
Changes in assumptions underying the present value of the scheme liabilities (Sm!!;)
Actuarial loss (457.7)
History of experience of gains and losses
2003
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets:
Amount (£m) (395.4)
Percentage of scheme assets (25.2%)
Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities:
Amount {£m) (3.3)
Percentage of the present valua of the schemas kabllities {0.2%)
Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and josses:
Amourt {£m) 457.7)
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities (23.0%)

I addition, £1.5 million is included for pansion severance benefits, within the business restructuring excegtional itern.

During the year to 31 March 2003 the group contributed to UUPS at rates which ranged from 12.8 ger cent to 28.3 per cent of pensionable salanies depeadent on benefit
category. Since 1 April 2003 the group is contributing an additional 2 per cent of pensionable pay. In addition, further contritutions are made to cover the cost of additional
severance benefits granted, No company contrbutions wers paid 10 ESPS during the year 1o 31 March 2003, Sinca 1 Aprl 2003 the group has resumed contributions to ESPS
at a rate of 19 per cent of pensionable salaries. During the year to 31 March 2003, member contributions to ESPS were reduced from their normal rates by 2.5 per cent of

pensionable salaries. Since 1 April 2003 member contrbutions to ESPS have retumed to nomma rates.
Company

The company's assets and kabilifes ars included in the Schemes but its share of undertying assets and liabiliies cannot be separately identified.
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26 LEASE COMMITMENTS
Subsidiary underiakings are committed to making the foliowing payments under operating leases during the next 12 months:

31 March 2003 31 March 2002
Land and Plant and Land and Flant and
ik g mactinery

£m £m £m £

Leases which expire:

Within one year 0.3 0.6 0.1 0.8

Between two and five years 24 a4 2.2 6_7'

Atfter five years 4.6 - 9.9 -

73 4.0 12.2 7.5

Minimun fulure lease payments under finance leases and minimum rental commitrnents under non-cancellable aperating leases of property, plant and equipment at 31 March
2003 were as follows:

Flnance Operating

leases leases

£m £m

2004 108.7 13
2005 - 8.9
2006 0.3 64
2007 5.1 5.2
2008 6.3 4.5
Thereafter £68.9 179.5
Total 139.3 2158

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The company guaranteed certain loans and overdrafts of group undertakings up to a maximum amount of £715.8 million (2002 - £508.4 million}, including £625.8 mition
(2002 - £505.8 million) refating to United Utiities Water FLC's loans from European Investrnent Bank and £90.0 milion 2002 - £nil relating 10 United Utiities Blectricity PLG's
loans from Suropean Investment Bank.

The company has entered into performance bonds in the ordinary course of business.

28 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO OPERATING CASHFLOWS

Restated festated
2009 2002 2001
Nota £m em £m
Group operating profit 510.0 521.6 498.1
Exceptional charges within operating profit 29.3 1.9 16.6
Operating profit before exceplional charges 5303 5335 5147
Depreciation 349.8 316.6 316.5
Amortisation of goodwill and intangible assets 3 7.1 7.4 40
(Profityioss on disposal of tangible fixed assets (4.5) (3.6) 05
Stocks (increasa)/decrease 11.8) 0.5 {1.0)
Debtors (increasedecrease 21.9) 3.4 (€5.8)
Greditors increase/(decraase) 0.6 @1.0) 716
Outflow related to exceptional items .1} {17.0) 08
851.5 799.8 8417
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

29 RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

2003 2002 2001
£m £m £m
Interest received 26.8 121 1.2
Interest paid on bank loans, averdrafts and other ioans (233.2) {227.8) {181.2}
Interest paid on finance leases (12.1) (8.0} {10.1}
Dividends paid to minority equity interest ©-4) - -
(218.9) (223.7} (190.9)
30 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENT
Rastated Restated
2003 2002 2001
Em £m m
Purchasa of tangik!e fixed assats, nat of grants and contriautions (182} {588.2) {582.9}
Sale of tangibly fixed assets 7.2 12.2 322
Purchase of intangible fixed assets - ~ (9.0}
Purchase of fixed asset investrents 0.9 {20.4) 6.6}
Financial restructuring of joint ventures 5.7 - -
Sale of fixed asset investments other than joint ventures 7.8 12.8 34
{697.9) {583.6) {572.9)
31 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
Aoquistiions Disposais
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets [3.1) - (92.4} - - 120.0
Net curent liabilties/(assets) 2.1 (2.8) 3.7 10.0 79 56.9
Provisions for liabilities and charges 3.0 - 18] - - {171.9)
Fair value of net assets acquired/book vakia of net assets disposed 20 2.8 96.0) 10.0 7.0) 50
Cost of disposal 34) - 153
Goodwill acquired/written back on disposal {7.2) - (25.2) 0.9 - 101.0
Cansideration for undertakings acquired 5.2 2.8 (12t.2)
Profit on disposals 0.4 - 191.2
5.2 2.8) {121.9) 7.9 7.0) 3125
Less:
- Cash intiuded in undertaiings acquired/disposed 0.3 - 0.4 - - -
— Deferred congsideration - - 40 - - -
Cash consideration {4.9) 2.8) (117.1) 7.9 7.0 3125
Comprising:
— ([Cutflow)infiow arising on:
- current year acquisitions/disposals 4.7} - {115.7) 7.9 - 3125
- previous year acquisitions/disposals {0.2} (2.8} (1.4) - {7.0) -
{4.9) {2.8} {1171} 79 ) 3125

On 2 December 2002, Vertex Data Science Limited acquired the business and assets of the UK contact centre operator, 7C, and its 75 per cent shareholding in 70 India
Limited as shown in note 13. The cashilows in respect of that acquisition are shown above. On 31 July 2002, the group sokd its joint venture sharsholding in US Water, effectively
completing the group’s withdrawal from infrastructure management in the Americas. The cashfiows in respect of that sale are included above,

Qn 31 March 2001 the group acquired the business process outsourcing business of Cap Gemini Emst & Young. The consideration for the acquisition consisted of a madmum
15 per cent interest in a subsidiary. Vertex Data Stience Limited depending on the size of the business transferret and the achievement of certain business perfomance objectives
over the following three years, The transactions did not affect group cashfflow. The gain resuliing from the exchange of asseks was reflected in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses. A put option was granted to Cap Gemini Emst & Young in respect of the sharehaiding in Vertex Data Science Limited and Cap Gemini Emst & Young granted
2 G2l option 10 e group over the same shareholding. The put and call options may be exertised, subject to cerain conditions, in the period Juby 2003 1o June 2005,

In the year ended 31 March 2001 the group soid its energy supply business. to XU Europe and acquired Netforce Group ple, Hyder Industriaf Limited and Hyder Energy
Sarvices Limited,
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32 MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESCURCES

2003 2002 2001
£m £m £m
{increase)/decrease in bank deposits, cerificates of deposit and managed funds (282.0) 13.4 {328.7}
33 FINANCING
Financing - shales Financing - debt Total
Shares issued Short-term
by company Domowings
Share Share other than Finarce
capitah premium Total Lo ovardrafts loases Tatal
£m £m m Ern £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2000 (550.5) 645.1) {1,195.6) (2.054.5) (640.1} (260.1) 2,894.7) (4,090.3)
Exchange and other
non-cash adjustrnents - - - 5.5 0.2 - B3 5.3)
Financing:
- New financa 2.4 (11.5) {(13.9) (763.8) - - (763.8} F77.7)
- Finance repaid - - - 474 3238 Q5 445.7 445.7
Cash flow 2.4) {11.5) (13.9 (716.4) 398.8 (0.5} {318.1) (332.0)
At 31 March 2001 (562.9) (656.6) (1,209.5) (2.776.4) 241.1) 200.6) 3.218.1) {4,427.6)
Exchanga and other
non-cash adjustments - - - 1.2 - - 1.2 1.2
Financing:
« New fnance (3.0) 15.0) (18.0) [443.4) - - (443.4) (461.4)
- Finance repaid - - - 135.6 105.7 - 2413 2413
Cash flow 3.0) (15.0) {18.0) {307.8) 105.7 - (202.1) {220.1)
At 31 March 2002 (555.9) (671.5) {1,227.5) {3.083.0 (135.4) {200.6) (3,419.0) (4.646.5)
Exchange and other
non-cash adiustments. - - - - - 4.9 4.9 4.9
Financing:
- New financa 0.6 2.7 fickas) 704.2) - - {704.2) {(707.5)
- Finance repald - - - 7.3 16.5 59 93.7 93.7
Cash flow (0.6} (2.7 (3.3} 632.9) 165 589 {610.5) (613.8)
At 3% March 2003 {656.5) ©74.3) (1,230.8) {3,715.9) {113.9) (18%.3) 14,024.6) 15,255.4)
Repayment Rate Amount
dates Curvency % £m
Loans repaid Eurmpean [nvestrnent Bank varions £ various 300
Dot securities 25 March, 25 September £ 8875 4.4
US dollar loan 8 Novernber $ foating 306
Stering loan B April £ floating 50
Lecal authority various g various 1.3
713
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

34 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

Curent asset
Cash Financing — debt nvestments Net debt
Loans Snort-tnm
bomowings
Do after Due within other than Finance
R year R YR redialts feases Total
£m om fm n £m £m £m
At 31 March 2000 48 {2.002.2} (52.3) (640.1) (200.1} 2,894.7) 53.5 {2,836.4)
Exchange and other
non-cash adjustments 0.9) - (5.5) 0.2 - {5.3) - 6.2)
Gash flow 25.6 [638.5 freds) 308.8 0.5 B18.1) 3287 36.2
At 31 March 2001 29.5 {2,640.7) (135.7) (241.1) (200.6) {3.218.1) 3822 (2,806.4)
Exchange and other
non-cash adjustments a1 1.2 - - - 1.2 - 1.3
Cash flow 0.2} B372.5) 64.7 105.7 - 2021} (13.4} (255.7}
At 31 March 2002 (10.6) 3,012.0) {71.0) (135.4} {200.6) (3,419.0) 368.8 {3,060.8)
Exchange and other
non-cash adjustrments 0.2 - - - 4.9 4.9 - 5.1
Gash flow 103 (668.0} 35.1 165 5.9 810.5) 2820 {318.2)
At 31 March 2003 ©.1) {3,680.0) (35.9) (118.9) {189.8) {4,024.6) 650.8 13,973.9)
Cash
{at bank and
Cash and short-term borrowings Cash at bank Short-term bomowirgs Mat total overdrafts)
Overdrafts Other Totad
£m £m m £m £rn £m
At 31 March 2000 305 {25.7} 640.1) {665.8) (635.3) 4.8
Exchange adjustiments 0.9 - 0.2 0.2 0.7 0.9)
Cash flow 211 45 3398.8 403.3 424.4 25.6
AY 31 March 2001 0.7 21.2) [241.%) (262.3) 211.8) 295
Exchange adjustments .1 - - - 0.1 o1
Cash flow (31.9) (8.3) 105.7 97.4 655 (40.2)
At 31 March 2002 189 22.5) (135.4) (164.9) {148.0) (10.6)
Exchange adjustments 0.2 - - - 0.2 0.2
Cash flow 19.4 (9.1) 16.5 7.4 26.8 10.3
At 31 March 2003 38.5 (38.6) (118.9) (167.5} (119.0) {0.1)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Sales and recharges to joint ventures on nemal trading tenmns during the year ended 31 March 2003 were £22 8 milion (31 March 2002 - £22.4 milion), of these amounts
£8.6 million was outstanding at the year end (2002 — £5.1 miion),

Movements on loans and investments with joint ventures are included in note 13 of the accounts.

Therg were na other material related parly ransactions during the year,
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¥ Five year summary

Restated Restated Restated Restated
2003 2002 2001 2000 1969
Profitand loss accounts £m £m £m m £m
Group turnover 14878 1,786 14892 2.356 2,277
Net operating costs {1,369} {1,265} (1,194) (1,897 {1,620)
Group operating profit 510 521 488 659 657
Share of operating profits of joint ventures and associated undertakings 15 13 g 4 2
Exceptional iterns 3 - 191 - -
Net interest payable and other similar charges (231} (231} {220 {208) {203}
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 328 303 A78 457 456
Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities BN {39) (68} 92) (164}
Exceptional taxation credit/(charge) ] - 69 - -
Profit on ordinaty activities after taxation 280 264 341 365 292
Minority interest {2 @ - - -
Profit for financial year I8 262 341 365 292
Dividends (265) (261) (255) (249) (243)
Retained profit for the finandial year 13 i 86 116 49
Balance sheets
Fiied assels 1,216 6,833 5,586 5,300 5911
Net current liabilities (249) (510) 634) {1,139 (994)
Creditors falling due after more than one year {4,071) (3.478) (3.083) (2.434) 2377
Prvdsions for fabiities and charges {345} 311 262) =70y (304}
Net assets 2,551 2,534 2,597 2,357 2,236
Equity share capital and share premium 1,231 1,227 1,209 1,195 1,192
Resarves and retained profits 1,303 1,292 1374 1,162 1,046
Mincrity interest 17 15 14 - @
Capital emplcyad 2,551 2,534 2,597 2,357 2,236

Prior years' figures have been restatad for the effects of the changes in accounting policy in respect of pra-contract costs and telecommunications network capacity Sakes as

discussed in note 1(a) of the accounts,
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Useful information for shareholders

Key events for shareholders during the year

The company is holding its 2003 annual general meeting on Wednesday, 30 July,
2003 at the Bridgewater Hall, Manchester. It will start at 11.00 am. The notice
caliing the meeting and a full explanation of the resclutions 1o be proposed at
the meseting are sst out in the lsaflet sent to sharshoiders with this report.

During the next year, the company will:

- pay the 2003 final dividend on 28 August 2003;

—announce the hali-year results in December 2003;

- pay the 2003 intedim dividend in February 2004;

- announce the preliminary full-year results in May 2004;

- publish the annual repert end accounts, the annual review and summary
financial staterment, and form 20-F in June 2004; and

- hold the annual general meeting in July 2004.

Keeping you in the picture

You can find ove information abcut United Utiies quickly and easity on the
United Utilities website, As wedl as the annuat report and accounts, the corporate
responsdility report and other reports, company announcements are also published
on the websits, including the interim and prefiminary results announcements and
associated presentations.

www.unitedutilities.com

In addition to these reports, the group also publishes in printed form a wide ranga
of reports, leaflets and facisheets about aspects of its businesses. You can get
mare inforrmation about them from lan Priestner, group director of cormmunications,
at Dawson House, Great Sankey, Warrington WAS 3LW {telephone: 01825 237000;
emai: ian.priestner@uuplc.co.uk).

Amarican Depositary Peceipt hokders can get a copy of the annual report on
form 20-F, which is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in the
USA, from the depositary (see 'Enquiring about the American ksting” beiow).

Cther shareholders can get a copy from Julie McGowan, Group Secretariat, at
Dawson House, Great Sankey, Warrington WAS 3LW {telephone: 01825 237000,
email: juie.megowan@uupic.co.uk}.

Copies of the separate regulatory accounts for the year ended 31 March 2003

for the licensed water and electricity distribution businesses, which have to be
given to the water and energy regulators, are available free of charge. If you wodd
like copies, please contact Julie McGowan.

Enquiring about your shareholding

K yous want 1o ask, o need any information, about your shareholding, please
contact the company's registran, Uoyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing,
West Sussax BN93 6DA (telephone: 0870 600 3971, or textphone for sharsholders
with hearing difficulties: 0870 600 3950},

The registrar's website allows sharehdiders with on-iine internet access 1o view
details of their shareholdings, to vote at general mestings and to register to receive
communications slectronically. The service is secure — data transfermed to you is
encrypted and you have a personal user ID and PIN; free - as long as you have

a computer and access 10 the intemet; and easy 10 use - you just resd your

user ID and FIN to log an,

To register for the service, please go to www.sharsview.co.uk — you will need
your shareholder account number (which can be found on the proxy form
accompanying the notice of annual general meeting or your share cerlificate) and
you will be asked to select your own PIN, A user ID will then be posted ta yol
You can also find on this website more details of the service and practical help
and extensive information on other share registration topics.

www.shareview.co.uk

If you have received more than one copy of this annual report, you may have
muore than one account in your name on the register of members. To merge your
hokdings, please write to the registrar giving details of the accounts cancerned
and how you want them to be merged.

United Utilities Annual Report & Accounts 2003

Commuricating in alternative formats

If it would help you to receive sharehoider communications in an alternative format
- large print, Braille or audio tape - please contact the registrar, Lioyds TSB
Registrars {ses above), and give detsils of your name, address, shareholder
account number and your preferred attemative format,

Paying your dividends direct to your account

The company pays dividends direct to a shareholder's bank or building scciety
account through the BACS [Bankers' Automated Clearing Service) system. The
benefit to shareholders is that the company can send tax vouchers direct to them
rather than to their bank o building society. If you have not already amanged for
your dividends to be paid direct to your bank or building society account and you
want 10 do 50, please contact the company's registrar, at the address above.

Dealing in United Utilities shares cost effectively

You can get details of the simple postal service for dealing in United WKilities sharas at
an altractive commission rate from NatWest Stockibrokers, Corporate and Employee
Senvices, 55 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN (telephene: 020 7895 5026).

www.natweststockbrokers.co.uk

Helding your shares tax efficiently

The United Utilities 1SA (a Maxi or Mini shares-only individual savings account),
managed by Hakfax Share Dealking Uimited, offers a tax efficient way of holding both
United Utilities shares and also other 1SA eligible shares. Te get more information,
please ring 0870 600 9966 quoting United Utilities shareholder,

www.halifax.co.uk/sharedealing

Donating shares to the ShareGift scheme

Many sharehoiders can find themselves owning parcels of shams so small that

it would cost more 1o sell them than they are worth. They may theretore appear
1o be too small to do anything with but may still bring a tax Eability on dividends
paid and unwanted documentation,

The ShareGift scheme, a registered charity administered by The Orr Mackintosh
Foundation, ofters an alternative. Any shares donated to the ShareGift scheme are
transferrad into the name of The O Mackintosh Foundation which aggregates them,
sefis thermn when possible and donates the proceeds to a growing list of charities,

If you would like to participate in the ShareGift scherne or would like further information
about it, you can ring 020 7337 0501, or write to The O Mackintosh Foundation,
24 Grosvenor Gardens, London SW1W O0H, or visit the scheme’s website,

www.sharegift.org

Enquiring about the American listing

United Utilities shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange in the ferm

of American depositary shares (ADS), evidenced by American depositary receipts
{ADR) and trade under the symbol UU. Each ADS represents two shares.

The Bank of New York s the depositary and its address for enguires is The Bank
of New York, Shareholder Relations, PO Box 11258, Church Street Station, New
York NY 10286- 1258 {telephone: 1 {888) BMY-ADRS (US toll free) and outside the
U3, 1-610-312-5315).

www.adrbny.com

Avoiding unsolicited mail

The company is legally obliged to make its register of members available to
otner organisations. Because of this, you may receive mail you have not asked
for. If you want to limit the amount of personally addressed unsclcited mail
you feceive, please write for information and an application form to the Mailing
Preference Service, Freepost 22, London W1E 7EZ or ring 08457 034509.

i mpsonline orgak




